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ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2017 has been a very interesting year. Many companies begin to adopt new technologies such as Artificial Intelligence, Internet of
Things, Blockchain, Cloud Computing Service and etc. Among those technologies ”Big Data” is one of the most important and relevant
to our business. Big Data remains one of the hottest trends and continue to attract interest from organizations. The more online system
is increasingly important, the massive data it is. Therefore, organizations must be data-driven to cope with the more complex needs
of the customers. BOL, as a leading information provider for business decision-making, is aware of this importance and has started to
prepare for this by obtaining new knowledge and data management tools, which is in accordance with one of our missions to be an

innovative organization in the area of Data Analytics.

Apart of this new technological trend, we also saw the birth of new business models in forms of fintech startups. BOL has established
a new subsidiary, namely BOL Digital Company Limited, which focuses on the research and development of new innovations of future
services. Furthermore, the company has invested in Peer Power Company Limited, a fintech startup that is an intermediary for online
personal loan which directly connects potential borrowers who could borrow at a lower rates currently quoted by banks and financial
institutions, to investors who receive better returns on investment that is more regular and attractive than other financial products. This
investment serves as a new era for the company’s service while this is also the start of big data utilization for consumer data analytics

and improvements to services that adapt to consumers’ needs.

In the aspect of business expansion to the AEC, the company continues to extend the scope of business information services for local

and international companies and financial institutions which will result in future business expansion.

The consolidated operating results for 2017 fiscal year saw the total revenue of 436.52 Million Baht, an increase of 9.32% compared

to 2016 while net profit after tax stood at 76.61 Million Baht, an increase of 5.55% from 2016
Lastly we would like to thank our shareholders, patrons, partners, staffs and stakeholder for their continuous support. The company

is determined to improve future growth along with product and service quality. We will continue to be a responsible member of the

society while sustainably adding value to our organization.

VS /4‘//

Mr. Noravat Suwarn Mr. Jack Min Intanate
Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

UNgUSIUU 2SSt
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oy 77U

Mr. Noravat Suwarn

Chairman of the Board
Age 77
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dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560

0.59%

MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU

655,000 1ju

nsfioRUNLdoUYDVAaUSAIla:

yasAgoliussatanio:

Taid

3uiiicivdv / Shusuliibunssums

24-10-2546 / 15 1

nsAnun

e Master of Science (Ag. Econ.),
University of Wisconsin-Madison,
USA

o Qg e UATHFMANTD TR
WINPT Y5IINAERT

o Sganiias Inenavilesdunzeraning
(we.) §u 35

o szmatieling UnUIMIszauge Ju 11
Y4 A

e 1szmdiioting 1aseams Role of The
Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)

e 1szmdiioting 1asems Director
Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

e 1szmdiioting 1asems Director
Certification Program (DCP)
(31 15 /2546)

o Ysemeitioiins 1asams Finance for
Non-Finance Director (FN) (2546)

Us:aunisaidoukav 5 U

2546-ifa91iu Ysznunssums usEm

Igma saulad Mie (Wmnww)

2546-ifa91iu U5znnIsums

USHN eeaa Usziude Usemdlne)

NAN (NINBU)

2545-ilagiiu assumsdasuazlseam

AFINMIATNEOY U3EM Lol 3a i

(HBU)

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.59%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

655,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

24-10-2003 / 15 Years

Educations

e Master of Science (Ag. Econ.),
University of Wisconsin-Madison,
USA

o BA (Econ) Thammasat University

e Certificate National Defence
College (Class 35)

e Certificate Senior Executive Program
(Class 11)

e Certificate The Role of The Chairman
Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

e Certificate Director Certification
Program (DCP) 15/2003 (IOD)

e Certificate Finance for Non-Finance
Director (FN) 2003 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Chairman of the Board

Business Online Public Company Limited

2003-Present Chairman of the Board

KSK Insurance (Thailand) Public

Company Limited

2002-Present Independent Director and

Chairman of Audit Committee IT City

Public Company Limited
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dagdounisiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
6.87%
MSIUABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KI U
1,120,000 ¥ju
n1sfioKunvdouvaveausaia:
yashgoliussatanio: ld
Suficivdv / $rusuliibdunssunis
24-10-2546 / 15 U

Mr. Jack Min Intanate
Director & Executive Chairman
Age 63

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017) 6.87%
Changes in number of shares
during the year

1,120,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of
spouse and immature children
None

Appointment Date / Duration of
Directorship 24-10-2003 / 15 Years
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nsAnu

o 5gyan HAmansguiiananaandna
Dominican University of California,
Uszmaanigonism

o Hayan Mnmaniquiianaiaiudng
ANITUVAIEUINALTHENITANS
wninndenmansna

o Pganandindnd Inenananitiadio
(Anenendninoniimes) agIaInss
uazmaluladmsinuas NIne1ay
maluladnsuna Sais

o gygn amilaensanmaniiadia
Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (IéiTu)

o Yszmeiloifns nangmsinemalseiudy
JEhUge Ui 1 diln NuAmzAIINMI
MmAvuazduasumalszneugina
Usziuae (aUna.) 1) 2554

e 1szmaileins 1a3am3 Role of The
Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)

e 1szmaiieing 13am3 Director
Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

Us:aunisaigoukav 5 U

2546-ia31iu nssumsuazlszsu

ASTUMIVIMT V3EM DBud eoulan

NAA (NINBU)

2554-il990iu nssums v3Em ea @i 3 le

NAA (NINBU)

2551-il99iiu nssums v3Em eliad

Araasud Nin

2549-ia31iu Usznunssums u3Em

& woud 1 (Wszmelne) e

2543-ilaq1iu n3sums 13EM Jeyalasan

UMImA 119

2542-ilgiiu n3sums U3E eenslet Mifa

2539-iloqiiu Assumsuazlsznnssums

USMNT 13 lofl 87 Miia (unaw)

2538-ilaq1iu nssumsnazdszmuuiEm

U3EN avfuoudlia Nin

2538-ilagiiu n33uMs U3EM Leufin Hia

2532-ila91iu Assumsuazlszmasms

UINT 13EN 8o ledl Miie (W)

2530-ila31iu n3TuM3

UIEN nguueanud 3185y 1

2560-ilagiiu Uszmunssums

1380 Tlouea Mnea 1in

g nasms U3Em nuwes nslid ifa

2556-2560 N33NMIUAZUITHIUNTINMS

U35 UM Leailete MAa ()

Da

Educations

e Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,
Dominican University of California,
USA

e PhD in Science (Honorary)
Information Technology for
Management, Mahasarakam
University

e Bachelor (Honorary) of Science,
Engineering and Agricultural,
Rajamangala University of
Technology Thanyaburi

e Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing
Institute of Technology (Taiwan)

e Certificate Thailand Insurance
Leadership Program Class 1/2011,
Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC)

e Certificate The Role of The
Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005
(IOD)

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Director & Executive

Chairman Business Online Public

Company Limited

2011-Present Director S P V I Public

Company Limited

2008-Present Director ABIKS

Development Co.,Ltd

2006-Present Chairman of the Board

D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

2000-Present Director National Credit

Bureau Co.,Ltd.

1999-Present Director ARIT Co.,Ltd.

1996-Present Director & Executive

Chairman IT City Public Company Limited

1995-Present Director & Chairman Core &

Peak Co.,Ltd.

1995-Present Director ANET Co., Ltd.

1989-Present Director & Executive

Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited

1987-Present Director Advanced

Research Group Co.,Ltd.

2017-Present Chairman of the Board

BOL Digital Co.,Ltd.

Present Director Venture Profile Co.,Ltd.

2013-2017 Director & Executive

Chairman SVOA Public Company Limited
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Mr. Prayoon
Rattanachaiyanont
Director

Age 54
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560

0.53%

MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU

1,120,000 #u

nsfioRUNLdoUYDVAaUSAIla:

yasAgoliussatanio:

Taidi

Suficivdv / $rusulfidunssunis

24-10-2546 / 15 1)

MsAnuU

e Master of Business Administration,
University of Scranton, USA

o SN Malssmanitann
PNANTANNINEAY

o Y vIMsgInAloudin
wmImeavglefisssngis

e 1szmaileting 1A3am13 Director
Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

Us:aumsnigourav 5 U

2546-ila91iu N3NNI

U3HN D%md eeulasl NAa (WNww)

2555-ilagiiu nssums U3EM 19.013.

udarauia asuFauaun iia

2555-ifa91iu n3TuMT

1380 18av eeulai Nfa

2553-ilagiiu nssums v3EN werslei

NAN (WINBU)

2551-ifagliu n3sums U3Em eiiad

araasuud Nin

2551-ifagiiu n3suMs USEN Ay

Feaind hiia

2545-ila9iiu nssums v3EM teifin H1in

2543-ifa91iu N353 U3EN 18l

AvdlaLstu Nin

2542-ifa91iu N3INANT USEN ADSUEUA

WA 119

2542-ihiiu n3sums 13 eeniledi fiia

2539-ifagiiu fonnemshetysuas

M3 VIEN nguueanus 185% Nia

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.53%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

1,120,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

24-10-2003 / 15 Years

Educations

e Master of Business Administration,
University of Scranton, USA.

e Bachelor of Commerce,
Chulalongkorn University

e Bachelor of Business Administration,
Sukhothai Thammathirat University

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Director Business Online

Public Company Limited

2012-Present Director A.R. Accounting

Consultant Co.,Ltd.

2012-Present Director Health Online

Co.,Ltd.

2010-Present Director ARIP Public

Company Limited

2008-Present Director ABIKS

Development Co.,Ltd

2008-Present Director D2 Systems

Co.,Ltd.

2002-Present Director Anet Co.,Ltd.

2000-Present Director Anew

Corporation Co.,Ltd.

1999-Present Director Core & Peak

Co.,Ltd.

1999-Present Director ARIT Co.,Ltd.

1996-Present Financial Controller

Advanced Research Group Co.,Ltd.




uadsluws afinaddlis
nssunsiia:daNISTkey
01y 56 U

Ms. Chamaiporn
Apikulvanich

Director & Chief Executive Officer
Age 56
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dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.656%
MsIVABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KIOU
1,360,000 #u
nsiioRUNLIoUYDVAEUSAIla:
yashgvoliussatanio:

Taidi

3uiincivav / srusudiidunssums

24-10-2546 / 15 1)

nsAnu

o WaUSMIMAaATUMTNANaan
Yszgnd 1Nesdliennnn dantutuda
fnuimsendns

o San isEgmansadia 1Roshtion
DUAUEDI NNINATHEMIA INY

o szmeileting 1a3ams Driving Company
Success with IT Governance (ITG)
JUN 1/2559

o 1lszmeiloiins Fostering a Board and
Management Team (2548)

o Uszmeiioiing lasams Director
Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

o szmeiioling vidngns Executive
Development Program (EDP) ;'uﬁ 6

e [OD Breakfast Briefing 2/2017
“Cybersecurity : Risks, Liabilities, and
Best Practices

Us:aunisnigoukav 5 U

2546-ilagiiu nssumsuazfinmslia)

v dgma eoulal hiia ()

2559-ilagiiu nssums v3Em uiing-u

N

2557-ifa91iu A3INMT UTEN DN

agdle 11

2549-i}a91iu N35SI UTEN & weud I

Wszmealne) Nia

2560-ilagiiu n3sums v3En ilouea

Maoa 1Aa

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.65%

Changes in number of shares
during the year

1,360,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of
spouse and immature children
None

Appointment Date / Duration of
Directorship

24-10-2003 / 15 Years
Educations

Master of Applied Statistics (Computer
Science, HONS.), National Institute of
Development Administration (NIDA)
Bachelor of Arts (Economics,

2nd Class Hons.), University of the
Thai Chamber of Commerce
Certificate Driving Company Success
with IT Governance (ITG) Class 1/2016
Certificate Fostering a Board and
Management Team 2005

Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
Certificate Executive Development
Program (EDP) Class 6

10D Breakfast Briefing 2/2017
“Cybersecurity : Risks, Liabilities, and
Best Practices

5 Years’ Work Experience
2003-Present Director & Chief
Executive Officer Business Online Public

Company Limited

2016-Present Director Taxi - Beam
Co.,Ltd.

2014-Present Director Ecartstudio
Co.,Ltd.

2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand)
Co.,Ltd.

2017-Present Director BOL Digital
Co.,Ltd.

13

o
o
s
]
=
(]
=
=
—
]
(9}
o
>
-
o
=2




z
o
=
<
o
[t
w
-
z
[* 5
o
o
w
S
o
o

Qs. 32du 1IGYD YOVIWD
nssuNs
919 51U

Dr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng

Director
Age 51
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.20%
MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU
1,120,000 #u
nsfioRUNLdoUYDVAaUSAIla:
yasAgoliussatanio:

Taidl

3uiiicivdv / Shusuliibunssums

15-02-2549 / 12 1)

nsAnun

e DBA. Doctor BA, University of
Manchester (UK)

e ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive
Program, Kellogg School of
Management (U.S.A.)

e MBA, Oxford Brookes University
(UK.

e FCCA, Fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.)

e FCA, Fellow of The institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants

o FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising
Accountants (Australia)

e IIA, The Institute of Internal Auditors
(US.A)

o 1lszmdiioting 1asems Director
Accredited Program (DAP) (57/2549)

Us:dunisaigaukav 5 U

2549-ifa91iu N33 USEN DFiua

ooulal NAR (nsw)

2555-2556 N3NNI LIEN 9% an 11na

(HBU)

2554-ilagiiu nssums v3EN wersled

NAN (NINBU)

2551-ifagliu n3sumMs UsEn eliad

fnaastiuug M1ia

2549-ifa91iu A33NM3 U3EM 1ol

aosdeIsTU Nia

2549-ifa91iu n3IuMT VSN mdnu

By (Uszmdlng) Mina

2547-iha1iu N3NNI USEN 1084

AoNiIAe3 NNA

2545-ilagiiu n3sums V38N edilele

NAN (NINBU)

2543-ila91iu N3NNI VIEN Agu

BEANUS 31833 NAa

2543-ila1iu N3NNI USEN 10185

N

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.20%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

1,120,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

15-02-2006 / 12 Years

Educations

e DBA, Doctor BA, University of
Manchester (U.K.)

e ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive
Program, Kellogg School of
Management (U.S.A.)

e MBA, Oxford Brookes University
(UK.)

e FCCA, Fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.)

e FCA, Fellow of The institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants

e FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising
Accountants (Australia)

e [IA, The Institute of Internal Auditors
(US.A)

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 57/2006 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2006-Present Director Business Online

Public Company Limited

2013-2014 DirectorLease IT Public

Company Limited

2011-Present Director ARIP Public

Company Limited

2008-Present Director ABIKS

Development Co.,Ltd

2006-Present Director Anew Corporation

Co.,Ltd.

2006-Present Director Dataone Asia

(Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

2004-Present Director Asys Computer

Co.,Ltd.

2002-Present Director SVOA Public

Company Limited

2000-Present Director Advanced

Research Group Co.,Ltd.

2000-Present Director Acerts Co.,Ltd.




ungTgWSs Ingsauundua
NSSUNSIIA:NoIUIENISKIBUSKIS
oy 46U

Mr. Chaiyaporn
Kiathuntavimon

Director & Chief Operating Officer
Age 46
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dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.656%
MsIVABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KIOU
1,600,000 #u
nsiioRUNLIoUYDVAEUSAIla:
yashgvoliussatanio:

Taidi

Suficivdv / $rusudfidunssunis

13-08-2558 / 3 1l

SuRicivdv /91udulRITURUSKIS

12-12-2546 / 15 1

MsAnu

o YSgyan vimagsnanmUaidia University
of South Australia

o Sgyan Meeanitadia (@aamnIsn
10d) daandiunszaanind) 1QuNM3
GREHESI

o szmaileiing ¥angns Director
Accreditation Program (DAP)

(3u 126/2559)

o szmeiioling nangaimemalssiudy
JAUGE JuN 1 diinnuamznIsums
miuuazdadinmIlsznauginlssiuiy
(AYn.) ¥ 2554

o Uszmeiioiing lasams Company
Secretary Program (CSP)

(Ui 8/2547)

Us:aumsnigourav 5 U

2546-i}a91u NITUMIUALHOIMIEMS

thovudms U3Em I3wa seulal Nfa

(HBU)

2549-i}a91u N33UMT UTEN & weud I

Wszmealne) Nia

2560-il9giiu n3sums V38 ilouea

fimea Nia

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.65%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

1,600,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

13-08-2015 / 3 Years

Appointment Date/Duration of

Executive

12-12-2003 / 15 Years

Educations

e Master of Business Administration,
University of South Australia

e Bachelor of Science, Major in Chemical
Industry, King Mongkut’s Institute of
Technology Ladkrabang

o Certificate Director Accreditation
Program (DAP) Class 126/2016 (IOD)

o Certificate Thailand Insurance
Leadership Program Class 1/2011,
Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

o Certificate the Company Secretary
Program (CSP) Class 8/2004 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Director & Chief

Operating Officer Business Online Public

o
o
s
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=
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=
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Company Limited

2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand)
Co..Ltd.

2017-Present Director BOL Digital
Co..Ltd.
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01y 67 U

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas
Independent Director,

Chairman of Audit Committee,
Chairman of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Age 67
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.10%
MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU
Taid

nsfioRUNLdoUYDVAaUSAIla:

yasAgoliussatanio:

Taid

3uiiicivdv / Shusuliibunssums

09-08-2553 / 8 1

nsAnun

o Y vIMsgInaNmoda
wminendeladuide wnuasieesa
ansgoINTM

o SQan 1ATEgMaASTaudin
WINPT Y5IINAERT

o vangaImatlesfiunseraninimaiy
JMeNTU MNdedesnunsoaing
(1se. 377)

o szmaileiias 1asams Director
Accredited Program (DAP) ‘g'uﬁ
85/2553

o 1szmeileting 1asams Risk Management
Committee Program (RMP)

(3uM 2/2557)

e Chairman Dinner 2018 Social
Responsibilities in Action

Us:aunisaidoukav 5 U

2553-ifagliu n3sumIdaszuazliznu

ATINMIATIEOY USEM TFiua eoula

NAN (WINBU)

2557-fa91iu Uszmmunssumsassmuaz

Ansanameuuny USEn I%ma seulai

NAN (NINBU)

a0, 59-19giiu nssumIdaszuazlizsu

AFINMIATEOY USEM 1odlole Nna

(HBU)

2555-1.0. 59 AIINMIDEITLUALATINAG

A5REL U3EN 1odileto NAA (NNBU)

2552-2553 3303 U3EN /AU 11Ae

(HBU)

2548-ila91iu N3NNI USEN nuaden

N

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.10%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

None

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

09-08-2010 / 8 Years

Educations

e MBA (Finance), Columbia University,
NYC, USA

e BA (Economics), Thammasat University

e Thailand National Defence College
(Joint Government - Private Sectors
Program - Class 377)

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) 85/2010 (IOD)

e Certificate Risk Management Committee
Program (RMP) Class 2/2014 (IOD)

e Chairman Dinner 2018 Social
Responsibilities in Action

5 Years’ Work Experience

2010-Present Independent Director &

Chairman of Audit Committee Business

Online Public Company Limited

2014-Present Chairman of Nomination

and Remuneration Committee Business

Online Public Company Limited

Feb 16-Present Independent Director &

Chairman of Audit Committee SVOA

Public Company Limited

2012-Feb 16 Independent Director &

Audit Committee SVOA Public Company

Limited

2009-2010 Director Crown Seal Public

Company Limited

2005-Present Director Green Spot

Co.,Ltd.




uvadUItian 3ulasiuvu
ﬂSSUﬂ’]SﬁHS:, NSSUNTSQSJOvYdouU
l1a: NSSUNNSASSKIIIa:WDISUNAN
Qaulinu

01y 51U

Ms. Manida Zinmerman
Independent Director,

Audit Committee,

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Age 51
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dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.50%
MsIVABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KIOU
-500,000 1ju
nsiioRUNLIoUYDVAEUSAIla:
yashgvoliussatanio:
s
3uiiicivdv / Shusuliibunssums
24-10-2546 / 15 1l
nsAnun
o Y vIMmsgInaNmouda
aMInendedaduty
o g Himaniumiadia Columbia
University
o Syan Nimanitada
WINPT EFIINANERT
e Graduate Diploma Business Law
WINPT EFIINANERT
o 1szmdiioiins 1asams Role of the
Nomination and Governance Committee
(RNG) 94 2/2555
o 1szmdiioting 1asems Director
Certification Program (DCP)
U 8/2544
Us:aunisaidoukav 5 U
2546-i}a91u NITNANITATL UALATINMI
A519d0U U3t DBud eoulay fida
(HBU)
2557-ifa91iu AsINMIAITINUAZHNTAN
Mmasuuny U3Em IFma eeulad hiAa
(HBU)
2556-ifagiiu n3sus vsEm 1l
DU MmN Nia (Nnw)
2556-ilagiiu Assums 13N Fudu ueus
Jaaend (Invuaud) Hifa

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.50%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

-500,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

24-10-2003 / 15 Years

Educations

e MBA Assumption University
LL.M., Columbia University

e LL.B., Thammasat University

e Graduate Diploma Business Law,
Thammasat University

e Certificate the Role of the Nomination
and Governance Committee (RNG)
Class 2/2012 (IOD)

e Certificate the Director Certification
Program (DCP) Class 8/2001 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Independent Director &

Audit Committee Business Online Public

Company Limited

2014-Present Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

Business Online Public Company Limited

2013-Present Director Wave Entertainment

Public Company Limited

2013-Present Director Hunton &

Williams (Thailand) Limited
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560 Shareholding Percentage
0.20% (as of 29 Dec 2017)
MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU 0.20%
700,000 ﬁ’u Changes in number of shares
nsfisRunNvdouvavAdusala: during the year
yasAgoliussatanio: 700,000 Shares
Taidl The indirect shareholding of
3ufncvdv / Shudsudfidunssunis spouse and immature children
17-09-2551 /10 1 None
AsAnV Appointment Date / Duration of
o AMP, Advanced Management Directorship
Program, 2013, Harvard University 17-09-2008 / 10 Years
(USA) Educations
" o N Menemanitadia (adinenani) e AMP, Advanced Management
nmInenaeiBolvi Program, 2013, Harvard University
e o nangaIfUIMIIEAUG aniineims (USA)
" . . @AAANYU (MANGAT 19N.) U 4 e Bachelor of Science, Chiangmai
~ U‘I\)EI'DE!SS'I F[-Sr[wuvaﬂ e 1szmdiioting 1asems Director University
o NSSUMSOES:, NSSUNISASIvddU Accredited Program (DAP) (2552) e Certificate Senior Executive Program
5 lla: NSSUNSASSKMA:WDISTUIAN Us:dunisaidgaukav 5 U (Capital Market Academy) Class 4
o Qouinu 2551-5]%@‘13’1& A33IUNI0632 uaznIsums e Certifcate Director Accredited Program
w 91y 64U @5 ay UsTm Dga saulad Mfa (DAP) 2009 (I0OD)
z . . (HvBU) 5 Years’ Work Experience
= Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 2557-ifagliu n3suMIaTILATiNgaN 2008-Present Independent Director &
- Independent Director, Mmaouuny 13En I3 eeulatl e Audit Committee Business Online Public
s Audit Committee, (W) Company Limited
o Nomination and Remuneration 2556-i}a91iu N353 U3EN Joyaiasdn  2014-Present Nomination and
= Committee UHING AR Remuneration Committee
Age 64 2554-ilagiiu s09f3amslva) §3nmsare  Business Online Public Company Limited
malulad snMsngamm 11Aa (nsu) 2013-Present Director National Credit
tagiiu Assnms U3E venen @nimmia  Bureau Co.Ltd.
Famu NAa 2011-Present Senior Executive Vice
tagiiu nssums U3Em el Aedlelstu President, Technology Division Bangkok
NA9 Bank Public Company Limited
ﬂﬁ]@ﬁu ATINMT UIEN @uéﬂizmawa Present Director Bangkok Smartcard
N System Co.,Ltd.
n.N. 256'()-“1']’113‘13'1; AIINMT Present Director Anew Corporation
15 wduuua lefiduidad S Co..Ltd.
2555-n.11. 2560 UsgmnIINms Present Director Processing Center
15 wuuua lefiduidad S Co..Ltd.

Feb 2017-Present Director

National ITMX Co.,Ltd.

2012-Feb 2017 Chairman of the Board
National ITMX Co.,Ltd.
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Asst. Prof. Dr. Karndee
Leopairote

Independent Director,

Audit Committee,

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Age 43
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dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.20%
MsIVABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KIOU
1,120,000 #u
nsiioRUNLIoUYDVAEUSAIla:
yashgvoliussatanio:

Taidi

3uiincivav / srusudiidunssums
29-03-2556 / 5 1

nsAnu

e Ph.D., Industrial Engineering

Department, University of

Wisconsin-Madison, USA
e M.S., Industrial Engineering

Department, University of

Wisconsin-Madison, USA
e B.Eng., Industrial Engineering

Program, Sirindhorn International

Institute of Technology Thammasat

University
o Uszmefloiing lasen1s Director

Accreditation Program (DAP)

(3u 110/2557)
Us:aunisnigoukav 5 U
2556-i}a91u N333UMIDETL UALAIINANT
avdeu USEm I%d soulatl 1
(HBU)
2557-ifa9liu n3suMIaTILATingaN
mapuunu 13Em I%md eoulmi 91Aa
(HBU)
2558-ila91iu N3INMT USEN & 19 &
NAa
2556-ifa91iu {onnems anifuesnuuy
omanlszmdlng
2551 {onnems vangasdadaans
uMtodia §UITIUIANTINAIILINT
(WINIR) INPIAPUINATIN NHINENFY
FIINANERS
2548-2557 fjonnems qudliamuinm
NNFINT AizAIBEAdATuasMITYs
ANINNAYBTIUANENS '
2560-ifa91iu fredauazisenmuidmig
U3 v5Em lelas Mia

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.20%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

1,120,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

29-03-2013 / 5 Years

Educations

e Ph.D., Industrial Engineering
Department, University of
Wisconsin-Madison, USA

e M.S., Industrial Engineering
Department, University of
Wisconsin-Madison, USA

e B.Eng., Industrial Engineering
Program, Sirindhorn International
Institute of Technology Thammasat
University

e Certificate Director Accredited
Program (DAP) Class 110/2014 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2013-Present Independent Director &

Audit Committee Business Online Public

Company Limited

2014-Present Nomination and

Remuneration Committee Business

Online Public Company Limited

2015-Present Managing Director

C A C Company Limited

2013-Present Executive Director

Future Innovative Thailand Institute (FIT)

2008 Director and Program Advisor

Master in Service Innovation (MSI)

College of Innovation, Thammasat

University

2005-2014 Executive Director

Thammasat Business Consulting Center

(TBCC), Thammasat University

2017-Present CEO & Co-Founder,

ICORA Company Limited
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Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom

Chief Financial Officer
Age 44
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560
0.23%
MsIUABUIUAVSIUDURUS:KIOU
453,600 ¥ju
nsfioRUNLdoUYDVAaUSAIla:
yasAgoliussatanio:

Taidi

3uRndvdv / udulRibunssums
12-12-2546 / 15 1

nsAnu

o Jigan Aadmansumiadia cuim

METINGEITINTNINOMITOENT

WINFIE (MANBITINGH)

NHINENFUTIINAENS
o Y vIMsgInaNmouda

NiMINNFeAsUATUNTI '
o PN Toydvada 1nesAtiouduaunil

NMINETUNFAUNN
o Y vIMsgInIlaudia W Inenae

qlfiessansng
o Uszmefioiing lasen1s Director

Accredited Program (DAP)

(3uM 105/2556)
Us:aunisaigoukav 5 U
2546-ifagiiu fonnemshetysuas
M3 13 IFwa eeulal Nia
(HvBU)
2549-i}a91iu N3IMT VFEN & weud I
@szmealne) Nia
2559-ifa91iu n3sumMIdaszuazliznu
NFINAINTIEOU
135 1855 e tenhsenmud e
2560-ilagiiu n3sums v3En dlouea
fiimea NN
thatiu faeuliydiveyana
thtiu HinlgyFimsnensen

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.23%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

453,600 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

12-12-2003 / 15 Years

Educations

e Master of Arts (Career English for
International Communication (English
Program), Thammasat University

e Master of Business Administration,
Major in Management, Srinakarin
Tharavirot University

e Bachelor of Accounting (1st,
Class Hons.), Bangkok University

e Bachelor of Business Administration,
Sukhothai Thammathirat University

o Certifcate Director Accredited Program
(DAP) Class 105/2013 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience

2003-Present Chief Financial Officer

Business Online Public Company Limited

2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand)

Co..Ltd.

2016-Present Independent Director &

Chairman of Audit Committee

Earth Tech Environment Co.,Ltd.

2017-Present Director BOL Digital

Co..Ltd.

Present Certified Public Accountant

(Thailand)

Present Asean Chartered Professional

Accountant (ASEAN CPA)




uLE1IdUNST dunsSaun
WoudenMsWedoya
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Ms. Intira Inturattana
Chief Data Officer
Age 48

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

dadounsiioRu tu 29 s.A. 2560

0.18%

MsIVABUIUAVFIUDURUS:KIOU

1,325,000 #u

nsiioRUNLIoUYDVAEUSAIla:

yashgvoliussatanio:

Taidi

3ufdvdv / SusulRibunssums

1/3/2558 / 3 1

nsAnu

o Y vIMsgInINYida @1vg
ama daulafiaimuusmIanans

o Uszmailoifas MuIuAI AINENAY
Wi ssasTlszmsuIu

o Sgyan Aadmanivadia
anussansnumaaiuazasiimamans
aMMInedevounal

Us:aunisnigoukav 5 U

2560-ilagiiu fonnemsrhedeya

v Ugma eoulal hiia ()

2558-2559 fFafianamly fheiann

nanAaminazyinms Uism D3 ooulal

NAN (NINBU)

2559-ifa91iu N33

1380 dmimagale 91na

Shareholding Percentage

(as of 29 Dec 2017)

0.18%

Changes in number of shares

during the year

1,325,000 Shares

The indirect shareholding of

spouse and immature children

None

Appointment Date / Duration of

Directorship

01-03-2015 / 3 Years

Educations

e Master of Business Administration,
Major in Marketing, National Institute
of Development Administration
(NIDA)

e Certifcate of International Language,
Major in Madarin, Jinan University,
The People’s Republic of China

e Bachelor of Arts, Major in Library
and Information Sciences, Khon Kaen
University

5 Years’ Work Experience

2017-Present Chief Data Officer

Business Online Public Company Limited

2015-2016 Assistant General Manager ;

Product Development & Customer Service
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Business Online Public Company Limited
2016-Present Director Ecartstudio
Co.,Ltd.
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

goyantomisidulagasy

(KUD® : WUUIN)

dhicsut) Susasur 31 Sus AL LUMSIDUSOU VUMSIDURWINDNTS
' 2560 2559 2558 2560 2559 2558

funindsm 641,068 578,217 538703 607,197 553,813 533,733

wilaunn 172,287 175,107 164,859 153457 160,934 160,535

dveaderu 468,771 403,109 373,845 453,740 392,879 373,198

aldsm 436,517 399,300 341,710 376,604 350494 337,905

neldnnmsneuazuims 414,226 378,151 323,768 354,346 328,678 319,964

ladudu 200,798 185,145 169,945 179,614 165294 169,923

mlsgninouns 89,416 81,597 71,079 82,395 69,442 71,514
u mlsdmsud 76,614 72,589 61,187 71,809 63,005 61,553

[ N | i . _

920AS1ddunN1vNISIvU

é’mwdauﬁﬂs%uﬁu(%) 4848 48.96 52.49 50.69 50.29 53.11

s dandmmligns(%) 17.55 18.18 17.91 19.07 17.98 18.22

E DANFIUHANBL UNUADFUNTNE (%) 11.95 12.55 11.36 11.83 11.38 11.53

o andmHanUINUABdINTeIADY (%) 16.34 18.01 16.37 15.83 16.04 16.49

E SandndumindvyuIoudoniidumuidou (i) 2.72 2.24 2.10 2.79 2.32 2.13

“ Sandnmilaudedivesdderu (nh) 0.37 0.43 0.44 0.34 0.41 0.43

-

; IWUSsuifigudayacioku (u1n)

2 lssorfutuiiug 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08
yasmuyBderu (11n) 0.57 0.51 0.47 0.55 0.49 0.47
Ha@hﬁmﬂiﬁaﬁu (L) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Ruiluraseriu (um)* - 0.07 0.06 - 0.07 0.06
Ruiluradie (@ mumn)* - 55.67 47.64 - 55.67 47.64
Imhuiuadey - yueanzion (Suiu) 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00
Snowumity - yuiteenuazSensiizudr (@) 820,51 795.23 793.99 820.51 795.23 793.99

* msUs:mAgeduduwaus:510 2560 vnwansaiduviuls:310 2560 duagiuudoudduavius:uuriioRuUs:$10 2561 voUSUN
Boo:domsus:yufuidoudunay 2561
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated The Company Only
For the year ended December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

Total Assets 641,058 578,217 538,703 607,197 553,813 533,733
Total Liabilities 172,287 175,107 164,859 153,457 160,934 160,535
Total Equity 468,771 403,109 373,845 453,740 392,879 373,198
Total Revenues 436,517 399,300 341,710 376,604 350,494 337,905
Revenue from sales and services 414,226 378,151 323,768 354,346 328,678 319,964
Gross Profit 200,798 185,145 169,945 179,614 165,294 169,923
Profit before tax 89,416 81,597 71,079 82,395 69,442 71,514
Net Profit 76,614 72,589 61,187 71,809 63,005 61,553

Financial Ratio

Gross Profit Margin (%) 48.48 48.96 52.49 50.69 50.29 53.11
Net Profit Margin (%) 17.55 18.18 17.91 19.07 17.98 18.22 o
Return on Total Assets (%) 11.95 12.55 11.36 11.83 11.38 11.53 E
Return on Equity (%) 16.34 18.01 16.37 15.83 16.04 16.49 :
Current Ratio (times) 2.72 2.24 2.10 2.79 2.32 2.13 ;
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 0.37 0.43 0.44 0.34 0.41 0.43 o
[
>
Comparison of Information per share (Baht) =
Basic Earning per share (Baht) 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08 g
Book Value per share (Baht) 0.57 0.51 0.47 0.55 0.49 0.47
Par Value per share (Baht) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 Em
Dividend per share (Baht)* - 0.07 0.06 - 0.07 0.06
Dividend payment (Million Baht)* - 55.67 47.64 - 55.67 47.64 m
Number of shares - Registered (share : Million) 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00 826.00

Number of shares - Issued and paid-up

(share : Million ) 820.51 795.23 793.99 820.51 795.23 793.99

* Annual dividend payment announcement for the year 2017 is subject to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2018 in March 2018.
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s1gvi1uUs:9MU 2560

gayadiAtynivnisivu

Wssuingusigld

s1eldsou
d1KsuU 2560

sngldsou

aKksuu 2559

n1sIUSguInguddiay
N1vYN1SIdUaIKSUU
2556-2560
(LUNTSIDUSIV)

(KU2® : Wuu1n)

N g o

USMS3U 9

27,399

uSMsanudala

343,330

®

. usNsauNs
usNISdu )* USKISADWIFED

22,292 43,496

g:ﬂ:i?)qa ””””””” 7 9 %
usSmsdu<q 6 %
usSmsdug* . 6 %
usMscuns

USKISADWIFED

s1gldsounvKuQ

436,517

(KU2® : Wuuln)

(KUD® : WUUIN)

=

USMS3U

27,796

usSmsaudaya

325,045

S)

) usSNISAUNS
usSNSAU 7* USKISADWIZED

21,149 25,310

usnmas 8 1 O/
audaya O
usSmsdu<q 8%
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usmsdwums 6Cy
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s1gldsounvKuQ

399,300

(KU2® : Wuu1n)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE COMPARISONS

Total Revenues
for the year 2017

Total Revenues
for the year 2016

FINANCIAL COMPARISON
FOR THE YEAR 2013-2017
(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS)

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

& &

dg,b
Information
Services Other Services
343,330 27,399
= il
Risk Managment
Other Income* Service
22,292 43,496
Information
Services : 79%

Other Services

Other Income*

Risk Managment
Service

Total Revenue

436,517

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

* Interest & Dividend & Other

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

& &

déb
Information
Services Other Services
325,045 27,796
= an
Risk Managment
Other Income* Service
21,149 25,310
Information
Services 81 %

Other Services

Other Income*

Risk Managment
Service

,,,,,,,,,,,,,

Total Revenue

399,300

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

(Unit : Million Baht)

436.5
4557 o
4045 3993 |
o 3417
3
C
0 o
(0] o
T =
S m
(o] 0
'_
o
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 -
z
=
76.6 s
& 900 - e
= 79.1 [ >
£ o1 20 =
b= o
< =
%
a 5
@
z oo
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
O
641.1
n
5342 5387 9782
o 4490
[0
7]
)
<
I
—
(o]
'_
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
468.8
]
a7as 103
2063 3383
2
=
O
w
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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USuUn U3Iud aaulaud s1na (UKkisu) (BOL)

2423(7)/2556 lasumsdudiumsamulufoms sevldus

Usz1nn ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE uag DIGITAL CONTENT 1sginn 5.8 famssenldua’
109l 900/8-10 e1ATEFIT010 MINBT AUUNTZIN 3 UTIUHTIN AT
AN 10120

U3 S3ma eouladl Sifa ne) Wudiblumslhsnsteyafiomsdaaulimagsne
fiasounquiusimamgndlval mansndeudeyauasamiifinumesgimagaia myliansi
naztimsanuidsmaiasan Tnsmahadsdoyamliuimauusondusuazuonwdiady
aslisnammagsia islulszmauazgiimasBou Fanudimssenuuuuasiannssuy
sauma szruuiamesdanud aaemaunsRamuvimamd iemaifilangseves
aednanudu

0107546000407

+66 2657 3999

+66 2657 3900-1

https://www.BOL.co.th

82,600,000 v

82,050,550 v

0.10 v

Yuaaley 1o 820,505,500 iU

USUN @ 1pud U (UsanAlne) $1ia

1wl 900/8-10 e1M3todIlolo MBS AULUWTEIN 3 UYRLNTI WATNANN
AN 10120

Wsmadeyagane WaBnnuagismadiensidmanuidensio waglemamenama
+66 2657 3939

+66 2657 3901

1,000,000 v

1,000,000 v

10 U™

Yuenday 91w 100,000 ¥y
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

N1SsJ1AS:KIIa:AN2SUNgYIVYWIgYQNS

IUS8UIREULUIEQVIIU:MSIBU fu SUi 31 SudnAL 2558 fiv U 2560
KUD2® : Wuun

VUNISIDUSOU VUNISIDURWI:ADNS

2559

dunswe
dunswdkyuidsu

Juaanazduehagatumsidu 111,016 17% 100,493 17% 85,824 16% 85,013 14% 92,996 17% 85,152 16%

fuaauinaIm 107,893  17% 39935 7% - - 107,893 18% 39935 7% - -

qnwiimaduazgaviiou 189.882 30% 191974 33% 80848 15% 179515 30% 182434 33% 74264 14%
[ Bunndviuiioudu 28,016 4% 38682 7% 160554 30% 24,976 4% 36826 7% 163214 31%

soudunswekyuiBgu 436,806 68% 371,084 64% 327.226 61% 397,397 65% 352,191 64% 322.630 60%
[ N |

Funswelikyudeu
5 Surhasneansiidimssrni 14,200 2% 17200 3% 17.200 3% 14,200 2% 17200 3% 17,200 3%
E Ruasuluisimsn 31,587 5% 31,401 5% 112,071 21% 30,000 5% 30,000 5% 111,805 21%
© Ruampulusimdes - - - - - - 16,000 3% 1000 0% - -
E ﬁuamusw:maéu 92,555 14% 80.805 14% - - 92555 15% 80,805 15% - -
" dlSulpeasuazgunsel 19,324 3% 21,158 4% 21569 4% 18,653 3% 20975 4% 21569 4%
: Funindlifican 38274 6% 45332 8% 52486 10% 30258 5% 40511 7% 52447 10%
; gunsudai Quldsemsdatad 6,629 1% 6,191 1% 6353 1% 6596 1% 6,164 1% 6284 1%
= dunsndlaimgiiousu 16838 1% 5045 1% 1798 0% 1537 0% 4967 1% 1798 0%

soudunswelikyudeu 204,252 32% 207,132 36% 211477 39% 209,800 34% 201.622 36% 211,103 40%

soudunswe 641,058 100% 578,216 100% 538.703 100% 607,197 100% 553.813 100% 533.733 100%

kliauna:gougavriioku

KUauKyuBsU

Fmiimsduasidmiiou 103443 60% 112,676 64% 44,787 27% 87331 57% 101,346 63% 40,925 25%
Uszanaimsniiauszezdu 25000 15% 23.165 14% - - 25000 16% 23165 14% - -
milQulafifyanadeie 4258 2% 1,899 1% 382 0% 3,100 2% - - 382 0%
manduszlomidig 14,758 9% 14,742 9% - - 14758 10% 14742 9% - -
wilaummious 13,356 7% 13,130 7% 110,688 67% 12,107 8% 12,317 8% 110,226 69%
soukdiaukyuBeu 160,815 93% 165,612 95% 155,857 95% 142,296 93% 151,570 94% 151,533 94%
witawlaiviaui3ou

thyeanaselomiszazem

YoYU 11472 7% 9495 5% 9,002 5% 11,161 7% 9364 6%  9.002 6%
soukdaulukyuidsu 11472 7% 9495 5% 9002 5% 11,161 7% 9364 6% 9,002 6%
SoUKUAU 172,287 100% 175.107 100% 164,859 100% 163,467 100% 160,934 100% 160,535 100%
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s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

UNSIDUSOU VUNISIDURW:ADNS
2559

douyavriioRu

nudan:idgu 82,600 18% 82,600 20% 82,600 22% 82,600 18% 82,600 21% 82,600 22%
nueenihguazentszndy 82,051 18% 79,523 20% 79,399 21% 82,051 18% 79,523 20% 79399 21%
damifAnyadiuasiy 139,271 30% 91,096 23% 88,868 24% 139,271 31% 91,096 23% 88,868 24%

drnAuuIInMINY
Taglduiihunast - - 5798 1% 4216 1% - - 5798 1% 4276 1%
mls (anu) deen
- JadITNdd - I0INUNYYIINY 8260 2% 8260 2% 8260 2% 8260 2% 8260 2% 8260 2%

- Halailddaass 239,189 50% 218432 54% 193,041 52% 224,158 49% 208,202 54% 192,395 52%
soudouvovKiioku 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 373,844 100% 453,740 100% 392,879 100% 373,198 100% &
soukUauna:asuyovRioRu 641,058 578,216 538,703 607,197 553,813 533,733 E
)
o = — . o - ~ e o
masu’w||a:msalns1:KNamso1|uumuua:g'lu:msn)uua\)vhuaoms -
=
-
1. sneldsouyavusUnia:uSEngoy =
e L =
KUDJ¥ : aauun >
=
o
2
455.7 436.5

404.5 399.3 n
i mm

3417 |
! ]

{ ] - - - ‘-

2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

nnwilsnaquiiaiaiivensimuansimdeshill 2560 neldnudaiiudu 4365 Swum Wty 37.2 Suum viedutudesas 9
dleifeufungldnuenisn wasusindeslil 2559 Wi(i]Nﬁ“ﬂéjﬂLﬁﬂmﬂmﬁlﬁu‘ﬁu%ﬂﬁ’]ﬂlﬁﬁLﬁﬂmﬂﬂ‘l‘ﬂﬁ’iﬁmiﬁ’lumi‘]ﬁ“ﬂﬁﬂ’nuL?%EN
dintuazneldimenansliimseeulaidndeyaiifyananazszuudeyadslumsdadulingsfaiutuifion 10% ieifeuiy
neldlsmamdenmidiiug smtiingldnnanemedeyamalzmailismslasiindosveniind futusnde
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s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

1.1 MsiVSyuifisusieldonmMsuneia:IkusnsyavUSENIa:uSUngoy
KUd® : duuin

B USnas3u 9
B USNSAIUNISUSKISAD I Y

usnisdudaya
67.1 27.8 43.5

25.3
29.0
421 or7 N2
3250 343.3
279.8 2559 275.6
]
. . L L L L n
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560
=2
o 9 9 - o P - Y 24X Y 2%y
= wldnnmsneduduazuimsvenisinuazyiindeslul) 2560 nauiluidu 414.2 dwum sy 36.1 Swumviderinduiosas 10
= wenSeuisuiuneldnnnsneduduasyimavailul 2559 mgrandnvesmsiindAananeldniaanamsliuimiudoya
© . . z p ¢ o u .
w (Information Services) voulatinazoevlla dmsudeyalulszmanazialssme
=
o 1.2 msilsuiigusieldonmsunenalkusSMssouyaLUSBNIa:USBNEDe (%Common Size)
-4
w
E , 9% 7% 7% EEE  USN1SOU 9 .
o 17% 21% 6% 7% 10% EE  USNSAIUNISUSKISADWIAEL
1% usnisaludoya
21%
79% 85% 86% 83%
58%
L L L L] L}
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

dwsumaAlenzinasilsouiisudadiuiesas (Common Size) voanulannmnedumuazliuimsvesStnuazusindesudazyszian
Tt 2560 wuh neldiiRanamslfsmsumndmsanudsaiiniuethanadiefesibiden Juhlisanievazveansldniionn
msliEmssumsaimsanudsaiingy Tnodfisdunndosas 7 i 2559 Wudesaz 10 Wil 2560 luvaizidaniovazvesnuldiifa
namslfimadudoyaliuamnitu Yovaz 86 ufl 2559 hidesas 83 Wil 2560 urdBeuifendudiaviiugiiuseansldnn
mslsmsdudioyatl 2560 ifinganhmeldssiamdendul 2559 Tasifintuiosas 6 nnildeu
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s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

1.3 dunuusmistia:AfgoglunISuILIR:USKIS

KU2® : WuuIn

PUNISIDUSOU
2559

VUMSIDUIWI:ADNNS

-3 -3
IWUUU (acav) IWUTU (aaav)

97udu . 97udu . 97udu . 97UdU . 97udu . 97UdU .
(V1] w ou % ou w ou % ou % vu %
Funumslisms 213 61% 193 61% 20  10% 175 60% 163  58% 12 %
mldnelumsneuaziisms 134 39% 125  39% 9 % 119 40% 118  42% 1 1%
Sou 347  100% 318 100% 29 17% 204  100% 281 100% 13 8%

Tl 2560 digumumsliimanhay 218 duum wasiialdhelumsnguazuimamiy 134 Suum aaumluNvessnuazstnges
IMRHANANTOIMINNTY 1RANMINTHYRITIUIasM g sineITesivlasanslyg) (One-Off Projects) HAaMIANUMIAAINGAT
wanuasuvesuansalsemasazaldiheninendiemamssuamulugsilmivewisndes

1.4 nMsIUSEUIRgulsanskavABouGioulduovusUnia:uSEngoy

o
KUd® : auuln o
=
m
-
90.0 2
79.1 76.6 =
72.6 [ | :
61.2 l 2
| >
] =
| [e]
[ 2
3 [ W
| .
- - { ] - L |
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

Tl 2560 Mlsgminasmnldhemiituldvessinuazusimdos sudluitu 76.6 dnum Wndudaihitu 4.0 SumnmiSerintuiovas 6
nndnen mgnaranveamsinTueiinemudeyanldiianzidiedu
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2. MS3IAS1KIIU:NIVNISIDU

UNISIdUSOU VUMSIDUIWI:ADNNS

2559

-3 - 3
IWUUU (acav) IWUTU (aaav)

KU2® : WuuIn

Junswd

Aunsndnyuion

RudanazRurhagantiumsi{u 111,015 17% 100,493 17% 10,522 11% 85,013 14% 92,996 17% (7.983) -9%
ﬁuamu%’mm 107,893 17% 39,935 7% 67,958 170% 107,893 18% 39,935 7% 67,958 170%
gnwﬁmsﬁmazgnwﬁﬁu 189,882  30% 191,974 33% (2.092) -1% 1795156 30% 182433 33% (2.918) -2%
?{uw%’wéwguﬁau?ﬁu 28,016 4% 38,682 7% (10,666) -28% 24,976 4% 36,826 7% (11,850) -32%
soudunswakyui3su 436,806 68% 371,084 64% 65,722 18% 397,397 66% 352,190 64% 45207 13%
Funindlaivyuiion

ﬁumﬂﬁmmiﬁﬁmimnﬁu 14,200 2% 17,200 3% (3,000) -17% 14,200 2% 17,200 3% (3,000) -17%
Auasuluismim 31,687 5% 31401 5% 186 1% 30,000 5% 30,000 5% - -
Auaauluisingos - - - - - - 16,000 3% 1000 0% 15,000 1500%
ﬁuamumzanﬁu 92,555 14% 80,805 14% 11,750 15% 92,555 15% 80,805 156% 11,750 15%
dulsulpemsuazginsal 19324 3% 21,158 4% (1,834) -9% 18,663 3% 20,975 4% (2,322) -11%
Funindhisidhau 38274 6% 45332 8% (7,068) -16% 30,259 5% 40511 7% (10.252) -25%
Funsndni duldsemsdatiayF 6,629 1% 6,191 1% 438 1% 6596 1% 6,164 1% 432 1%
?{uw%’wﬂﬂwguﬁﬂuﬁu 1,683 1% 5045 1% (3.362) -67% 1537 0% 4968 1% (3431) -69%
soudunswelukyui3su 204,252 32% 207,132 36% (2.880) -1% 209,800 34% 201,623 36% 8177 4%
soudunsSwe 641,068 100% 578,216 100% 62,842 11% 607,197 100% 553,813 100% 53.384 10%

o A 9 A Py av 1 Ao o ¢ o v A X o % A A
UM 31 TUNAN 2560 MINUMIRUTINVOILIENUAZUIENGo ol FUNTNITINUNAY 641.1 @M IANTUIINAY 62.8 STULIMNHTIB LN
X o A A wa v A 4 o - o - o o~ 4
yuhaviesas 11 lasdsznal wemisuill 2559 aurgraniiannMIisvuyesRuaanasRurnsNMs HINdIRuhnaauMIRuay
Uszana 75.5 awum ilesunuilaeu

VUNISIDUSOU VUNSIDURWI:ADNNS
2560 2559 Wudu (acav) Wudu (acav)

9IUdU . 97udu . 9IUdU . 97udu . 97udu . 97udu

KU2® : WuuUIN

U ° U ° U U ° 1u ° 1u °

KUau
wilaumgiiou
diimsduazimiion 103443 60% 112,676 64% (9.233) -8% 87,331 57% 101,346 63% (14,015) -14%
Ussinaimviidumuidoudu 95000 15% 23165 14% 1835 8% 25000 16% 23,165 14% 1835 8%
midulddee 4258 2% 1899 1% = 2359 124% 3,100 2% - - 3100 100%
manduselomidinneg 14,758 9% 14742 9% (16) 0% 14,758 10% 14,742 9% 16 0%
wilaumiieusy 18356 7% 13130 7% 226 2% 12107 8% 12317 8%  (210) 2%
soukaukyuIiSsu 160,815 93% 165,612 96% (4,797) -3% 142206 93% 151570 94% (9.274) -6%
witanlaivigi3ou
é'ﬁa\]maﬂigiﬂ"’ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ3ﬂ'neﬂﬂﬂ

witha 11472 7% 9495 5% 1,977 21% 11,161 7% 9364 6% 1,797 19%
souktaulikyuiseu 11472 7% 9495 5% 1,977 21% 11,161 7% 9364 6% 1,797 19%
SOUKGAU 172,287 99% 175,107 101% (2,.820) -2% 153457 100% 160934 100% (7.477) -5%

A Ui 31 Funan 2560 USHMuazUITMgouivHAUTININAY 172.3 311 MM RUTINYeISINIazLSTvdes lnganad 2.8 A
1 viseanasdnilludesas 2 Taedszna Weillsuiudndun aunguaniienamsanawesseaidmilmsd Wmilou uazaldieds
Fean 112.7 dmumlial 2559 ananily 103.4 dmumlil 2560
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s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

VUNSIDUSOU VUNNSIDUIRWADNNS

2559

- - 3
IWUTU (aaav) IWUUU (acav)

KU2® : Wuun

9"\:DU % 61:13u o 9'1:DU % 61:13u o 61:13u o 61:13u %
ou ou ou ou ou ou
dmvesdderniu
nuaangiiou 82,600 82,600 82,600 82,600
yueendmmhenazuntszudl 82,051 18% 79,523 20% 2528 3% 82,051 18% 79,523 20% 2528 3%
drmifnyaduaiyy 139,271 30% 91,096 23% 48,175 53% 139,271 31% 91,096 23% 48,175  53%
dannfuunanhelagldiu
Wuinaud - - B798 1% (5.,798) -100% - - 5798 2% (5,798) -100%
mls (nany) dzan
Indsudn - rseemu
AQVIY 8260 2% 8260 2% - - 8260 2% 8260 2% - -
galilatnass 239,189 50% 218432 54% 20,757  10% 224,158 49% 208202 53% 15,956 8%
FndMveeaoruveiEm 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 65,662  16% 453,740 100% 392,879 100% 60,861  16%
SoU&dUYavLRTiaRU 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 65,662  16% 453,740 100% 392,879 100% 60,861  16%

a1 Tufl 31 Sumnan 2560 vsEMAdmveserumuaumsRusin whiy 468.8 i induhiy 65.7 Snumviseinaudniihiiesas 16

Taeszinas iedisufiulindun ennamgran 2 Ussmslaud mshesnzRuamiuisnnnssums guimsuaswinau meldlasims
4 g I 4 v ode v o X

ESOP suihilgameveamendanldsuensias 1Wl5ans exercise muReulviimmualilulasimsdindn wasmaiisnvuvenarssneums

nanhinuds

3. n1s3IAS1KaasIdounIvNSIBUREIAnY

3.1 Aowawsalunisrindnls

dandmmlsvudu (%) dandmmlsgns(%)
0,
48.96% 5249% " 4s06%  48.48%
. 4239% o m
0,
2226% 1360 1791%  1818%  17.55%
178e% 7 -
L L L L L] L L L L L]
2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560

Tuil 2560 dandwmlstudunnumlsnanuiiaaivensin il 2560 sandmmlsgninnwmlsnequiiadiivensinuag
Aw 1 1Ay A A w oo ' oV & a1 | v A Av Ao ' ° a
waziiEndos agniosas 48.48 Weonlisusuidandmmlsty  uSimdesmiviesay 17.55 vaiznussmiidandiumlsgnilull
fusanan) 2559 hfufesay 48.96 aziinldn dandwumlstn 2559 whiudesas 18.18 Tasanaufisudnties Aailuievas 3
dulidl 2560 anaudntes Tavanasznadesas 1 Weeui  lesdszina eswaaldielumsnenazuimsluil 2560 gy
dandmmlsvudul) 2559 marandnifanndunuiAinnnmMsli

vimsfiugnaniiniu
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USUn G3iIua aoulad 9110 (UK1BU) 1a:uSungay

VUIAQLYIUNISIDU
tu 3un 31 Sud1AU 2560

s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

KU2® : un

aunswg
dunswdkyuidsu
Rudanazgnemaiieuiduds 111,014,908 100,493,192 85,012,823 92,995,573
ﬁuamu%’aﬂin 8 107,892,841 39935207 107,892,841 39,935,207
Qﬂwﬁmsﬁmazgnwﬁéu 189,881,880 191,974,401 179,515,149 182,433,493
ﬁum%’wémguﬁau%ﬁ‘u 28,016,966 38,681,884 24976385 36,826,350
souFunswdkyuisu 436,806,695 371,084,684 397,397,198 352,190,623
Funswdlukyudeu
Aurhnswansiiimssdysziu 10 14,200,100 17,200,100 14,200,100 17,200,100
Ruasuluysimim 11 31,586,622 31,401,179 30,000,000 30,000,000 °
Ruasulunssndes 12 - - 15,999,860 999,930 E
ﬁuamuszazané‘u 13 92,555,488 80,805,288 92,555,488 80,805,288 Z
dquﬁuﬂgqmmmazqﬂﬂsaﬁ 14 19,323,904 21,157,936 18,652,804 20,975,310 "
gunswdlilidnan 15 38,273,562 45,331,904 30,258,282 40,510,890 E
gunindasfuldsemsdatias 23 6,629,387 6,190,591 6,696,227 6,164,331 -
auﬁwé”lﬁmuﬁauéu 1,682,763 5,044,896 1,537,191 4,966,896 ;
soudunswélukyusau 204,251,826 207,131,894 209,799,952 201,622,745 =
souFunswei 641,068,421 578,216,578 607,197,150 553,813,368
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USUn G3iua aoaulad 9110 (UKBU) la:uSungay
vulIFQLFI:NSIDU (ciD)

fu 3ui 31 Sud"AU 2560
KU2® : uNn

kliduna:aougavriioku

KklduKyuiSeu
Fmiimsduazidmiiou 16 103442716 112.676220 87,330,890 101,346,026
Ussnaimavilaussosdu 17 25,000,000 23,165,168 25,000,000 23,165,168
miduladieg 4,257,318 1,899,367 3,100,227 -
- mansyszlesiaaig 14,758,847 14,741,639 14,758,847 14,741,639
wilaumiieusy 13,356,300 13,129,385 12,106,177 12,317,486
" E soukdidukyuseu 160,815,181 165,611,779 142,296,141 151,570,319
kaulukyussu
z dseanatszleniszazanveaniinnm 18 11,472,021 9,495,368 11,161,221 9,364,069
= SDUKﬁﬁuTUKquﬁau 11,472,021 9,495,368 11,161,221 9,364,069
E souktiau 172,287,202 175,107,147 153,457,362 160,934,388
w
g .
" douyavriioru
© NuGeuY 19
g Nanziden
o Yuanaley 826,000,000 ¥u yad1viuaz 0.10 um 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000

NueBNIMheLazIzIANyaAIud)
Yuanaley 820,505,500 ¥u yad1vuaz 0.10 um
(31 Sunan 2559: fuailay 795,229,750 YU

yaanfuag 0.10 vm) 82,050,650 79,522,976 82,060,550 79,522,975
dnAuyaamiuaiey 19 139,271,186 91,095,699 139,271,186 91,095,699
dnuAuunnmshelasldiunduinoe - 5,798,292 - 5,798,292
Mlsavau

IAAIIUAD - TVIMUAWINY 20 8,260,000 8,260,000 8,260,000 8,260,000
gallladnass 239,189,483 218432465 224,158,052 208,202,014
soudouyaviiioRu 468,771,219 403,109,431 453,739,788 392,878,980
soukauna:adouvoviioRu 641,068,421 578216,5678 607,197,150 553,813,368
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USUn 3iud aoulad 9110 (UKBU) la:uSungay
vurilspanuibaiaso
dksuldugadun 31 sudAy 2560

KUJ® : uNn

mlsuanu:
swld
nglgnamsliuinms 21 414,225,599 378,150,640 354,346,482 328,678,181
mﬂﬁ?ﬂu 22,291,477 21,149,469 22,257,973 21,815,349
sousngld 436,617,076 399,300,109 376,604,455 350,493,530
Anlgone 22
éfunum{lﬁ’ﬁms 213,427,701 193,005,673 174,732,017 163,384,009
alshelumsudms 133,858,611 124,832,671 119,477,021 117,667,413
souANlgonY 347,286,312 317,838,344 294,209,038 281,051,422
lsrioudounuvrinlsonibuavnuluusensou S

Algoenvnisiduna:AlgonenGioula 89,230,764 81,461,765 82,395,417 69,442,108 E
dmmlimlsmaRuamulnEimgm 11 185,443 135,188 - - Z
lsraurngsnenomsidulia:Anfgsnemadula 89,416,207 81,596,953 82,395,417 69,442,108 =
AuNUMIN 3Ry - (102) - (102) =
flsnaurnldsremGidula 89,416,207 81,596,851 82,395,417 69,442,006 5
mlgeasisula 23 (12,802,155) (9,008,010)  (10,586,128) (6,437,116) ;
flsdksul 76,614,052 72,588,841 71,809,289 63,004,890 g
fi‘l.[SU‘lC'IT!UIGOIH.s;DE‘)IU: .
nemsfiagligniuiinludmveamlsvienanulumenas
Hamls(anu)nnmslssnams ]

munanasiamanilseiune 18 (238,689) 552,305 (233,960) 552,305
in: HanIenuvessduld 23 47,738 (110,461) 46,792 (110,461)
nenaiglbigniuiinludmesiils

vienanulumends - gnsnnmaduld (190,951) 441,844 (187,168) 441,844
rilsuranuiaia§odusnksul (190,951) 441,844 (187,168) 441,844
miszanuibaiaSosoudksul 76,423,101 73,030,685 71,622,121 63,446,734
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uSuUn GBiua oaulad $11a (UKIBU) Na:USENEDY
vurlszranuibaiass (cia)
dsulauaadun 31 suoAy 2560

KUo® : un
filsciaRu 24
lsdoruduiiugiu
Alsduilifuveadeuvaaisn 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08
IMmnuiuaiydidedinnin (i) 797,302,029 794,699,339 797,302,029 794,699,339
- mlsdoruliuan
Mlsdwilifuveaderuvaaisn 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08
m. ﬁwuauﬁuawﬁmﬁamﬁ'adqqﬁmﬁﬂ (VW) 802,001,232 795,714,418 802,001,232 795,714,418
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USUn 3iud aoulad 9110 (UKBU) la:uSungay
vulgavnisivasunlavasugaviiioku
dksuldugadun 31 sudAy 2560

KU2® : uNn
PUNISIDUSOU
douvovriioRuyovUSEN
d@ouinunu filsa:au soudduvav
nuiSauku douiiu INNS9Y dadssiad - Waioku
foania: yaAKku Tasls drsavanung
gis:nad awry Ruibuineuri KUY
g0QAVIKAD
u 3ui 1 uns1AL 2559 79,399,325 88,867,613 4,276,327 8,260,000 193,041,375 373,844,540
mlsamsull - - - - 72,588,841  72,588.841
lsnanuifiaiatadudmsi - - - - 441,844 441,844
mlsnanuidiaiasesmdmivl - - - - 73,030,685 73,030,685
Humifyfiesnsznhednamsld =
ansmaluddguansdnd 19 123,650 2,228,186 (187,962) - - 2,163,874 E
mselaglduduinoe 19 - - 1,709,927 - - 1,709,927 Z
Quilumade 28 - - - - (47,639,695) (47,639,595) :
g2QAVIKAD -
m
tu 3un 31 Sud1AU 2559 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 218,432,465 403,109,431 2
E
= o
g90AVIKID =
u 3ui 1 uns1AU 2560 79,622,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 218,432,465 403,109,431
mlsawnsull - - - - 76,614,062 76,614,052
, EE
mlsnanuidiaiaseaudmiul - - - - (190,951) (190,951)
mlsnanuidiaiaseymdmivll - - - - 76,423,101 76,423,101 n
Humifyfiesnsznhedinamsld
ansmaluddguansdnd 19 2,527,575 48,175,487 (6,470,499) - - 44232563
mstelaglduduinoe 19 - - 672,207 - - 672,207
Auilunaine 28 - - - - (55,666,083) (55,666,083)
g2QAVIKAD
fu 3ui 31 SucAU 2560 82,050,660 139,271,186 - 8,260,000 239,189,483 468,771,219
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USUn 031ua aaulad 3100 (UK1BU) 1a:USUngay
vunaavmsidagundavasugaviiioRu (cia)
dksuldugadun 31 sudAu 2560

KUJ¥ : un
VUNISIDURWADNS
duiiunu lsa:a ,
nuISauku douinu 9INNSINY daassnao - salﬁol{l’a‘)
foaniia: yaARu Tagls dsovanung golula RnaRu
g1s:1ad awry Ruibuineuri KUY daass
Y20AVIKAD
u Uil 1 UnsIAU 2559 79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 192,394,875 373,198,040
mlsdwmivl) - - - - 63,004,890 63,004,890
" Alsnanuidiaiesadudmsil - - - - 441,844 441,844
. mlsnanuidiaraiasimndmiull - - - - 63,446,734 63,446,734
Yuanigfeanszrinadnnmsls
ansawludagyudndnd 19 123,650 2,228,186 (187,962) - - 2,163,874
; msnelasldduiuinad 19 - - 1,709,927 - - 1,709,927
':: Quilumadne 28 - - - - (47,639,695) (47,639,595)
E Y20AVIKAD
E fu 3uf 31 Sus1AU 2559 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 208,202,014 392,878,980
S -
o 890AVIKAD
; U 3ufl 1 UNSIAU 2560 79,622,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 208,202,014 392,878,980
e mlsdwmivl) - - - - 71,809,289 71,809,289
Alsnanuidiaieadudmsil - - - - (187,168) (187,168)
mlsnanuidiaraiasimndmiull - - - - 71,622,121 71,622,121
Fumiyfieenszvhednamsld
ansawludagyudndnd 19 2,527,575 48,175,487 (6,470,499) - - 44232563
msnelasldduiuinad 19 - - 672,207 - - 672,207
Ruilunadie 28 - - - - (55,666,083) (55,666,083)
Y20AVIKAD
fu 3uf 31 Sus1AU 2560 82,050,550 139,271,186 - 8,260,000 224,158,052 453,739,788
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s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

USUn 3iud aoulad 9110 (UKBU) la:uSungay
vuns:igioudaa
dksulEugasun 31 SusnAu 2560
KUJ¥ : UN

2560 2559 2560 2559

ASs:IAIvUaQINNDNSSUANTULIU
MmisAeums 89,416,207 81,596,851 82,395,417 69,442,006
Nemsunsznuseamlsasumiiutuaasy (@18)

NNANTINAUTUNY

ﬁﬂiiﬂﬂmilﬂéEJuLLﬂaﬁﬁJuamﬁuﬁd‘lqu (128,904) (534,289) (128,904) (534,289)
Andeunmuazmdas e 25,426,496 24,445,553 23,871,018 23,940,400
dmmlimlsmaduamulnEimgm (185,443) (135,188) - -
ﬂ'ﬂ%ﬂ'wﬁ'Lﬁﬂmﬂmiﬁhsﬂﬂﬂsl%ﬁ’mﬂumm@ﬁ 672,207 1,709,927 672,207 1,709,927
tsealasamsnadsylemintinanm 1,737,964 1,437,689 1,663,192 1,306,290
%Wﬂnu(ﬁﬂi)mﬂﬁﬂiiLLaﬂLﬂéﬂuﬁgﬂ‘lﬁlﬁﬂ‘ﬁuﬁd 168,952 (195,248) - 17,292 s
Uszanaimsanliunnnuadn 1,834,832 12,962,266 1,834,832 12,962,266 E
Aitloviiasdbazge 10,772,079 - 10,772,079 : .
nemunnmaanyasvoamiiiuldgain o e 3,049,784 - 3,049,784 - o
mlsnnmsimhegunsol (69,007) (962,821) (73,004)  (1,180,915) =
mlsnamsnmhellsunsuaeninines - (60) - (890,060) 5
seldiauiluna (19,600,000)  (18,681,250)  (19,600,000)  (18,681,250) ;
aldheaenidy - 102 - 102 =
aonIiB3y (1,531,450) (372,976)  (1,497,946) (360,661)
ﬁ’ﬂiiﬂﬂﬁi}ﬂiiﬂ@?Lﬁuﬁ’luﬁﬁ)umﬁlﬂéﬂuuﬂﬁﬂu .
FunSnduaznidumibinau 111,563,717 101,270,456 102,858,675 87,731,108
auw%'wéﬁwLﬁmmaﬂm(gﬁwﬁu): ]
Qavimaduazgaviiow (8,300,511)  250931,066  (7,853,735) 31,509,101
Aunsndvyuidoudu 10,664,918  (11,779,314) 12229591  (9,933277)
ﬁuw%’weﬂﬁwguﬁﬂuéu (4,655) (3,246,473) 63,475  (3,168,473)
wﬁauﬁuﬁmmgﬁuﬁu(aﬂm)s
Bwiimsduazimiion (11,095,255) 13,586,263  (15,596,164) 10,559,622
ﬂixmmmswﬁauixﬂxéy’u - (2,365,5653) - (2,365,553)
Mmansuselomicedne 17,208  (10,258,361) 17,208  (10,258,361)
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YOAAIANTENINUTENY uazAamsNIAeITeant ar Jui 31 FunaN 2560 uaz 2559 HNeaziduanal

KUY : WUUIN

2560 2559 2560 2559

gnkinisAnna:ankiau - AionsAiRBITELAU (KUBIKQ 9)

1itndey - - 5.659 1,938

WAoo (Hidovuuas/MIDNITnMITINAY) 6,714 7,017 4,964 8,860
sougnkinisAna:gnklau - AonsAiRBaTavAU 6,714 7,017 10,623 10,798
ISKGMSANEISKTIU - AonsAINgToLAU (KUNBIKQ 16)

V3Emlng) 629 4,307 629 4,307

usEiliRedetu @iddedunazmienssumaiini) 6,891 4,213 3,917 3,973
SOUISIKTNSANIIAISKTBU - ADNSAIREIToVAU 7,520 8,620 4,546 8,280

A10dUINUNSSUNISIIa:WUSKIS

Tusgninlaugaiuil 31 funan 2560 uaz 2559 V3EMY wasysEmdesiamlihenarsslomintdnaunliuanssumanaziusms

Aasio il
KUd® : 8uun
2560 2559 2560 2559
waus:Tostis:o:du 20.3 20.1 20.3 20.1
nalszlomindioanainan 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.3
wadsglominelaslsiuihunad 0.3 0.7 0.3 0.7
Sou 20.9 21.2 20.9 21.1

7. dudana:signisinguinivuaa

KU2® : WUUIN

2560 2559 2560 2559
Ruda 133 142 103 112
Ruehnsnag 110,882 100,351 84,910 92,884
SOuU 111,015 100,493 85,013 92,996

Ui 31 sunan 2560 JurhasAIveusEng uasuSindesiionnaenileseninedosas 0.10 69 1.10 del (2559: Sowas 0.10
= 1A
29 1.10 sind)
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8. IBuavnuddAsd
8.1 @ Jui 31 suman 2560 uay 2559 RuaamuinAINUEneUMENeMIAe UL

KUdY : Wuun
Suamuiasnlumdnnindiiied (mneimg 8.2) - 39,935
Fruanidu 14,893 -
Ruehadszniuaatiumsidu 93,000 -
SouIBUALNUEIASID 107,893 39,935

v d, o s an L o dae £ o . . . " o 4
a Jui 31 suman 2560 U3ENe Aduawulumuaniusiiidaneenidedesas 4.6 dell uazazasummualdasumeluideuquaiiug
2561 nazRuaamulududnszanlszian 6 1oy waz 12 1feu HKildanaenieiesas 0.9 1 1.4 sel

8.2 o Tull 31 fuman 2559 V3Hna Hiduawuiasnlumannindivediszneudmenemidisielui

KU2® : WUUIN
Ruamumamunemuiaasansmil 40,000 39,935
¥in: Maunamsilasuulayad (65)
souiSuavnusonsiukannsweoA 39,935
Nemsdsuawesiuamumamlumdanindiemdmiulaugaiui 31 sunan 2560 uas 2559 aqldnai
KUD® : Wuun
2560 2559
g90AVIKAD U Sun 1 UNSIAU 39,935 60,045
Fou - 40,000
Pvheszning - namu
Rudasunamsavihe (40,064) (60,644)
Mmlsmnamsdmhe 64 644
Sou (40,000) (60,000)
wn: mlsaym)namaiasunagad 65 (110)
g20AVIKAD fu SUA 31 SudAY - 39,935
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9. gnklimsMmiia:ankisu

KUJ® : WUUIN
2560 2559 2560 2559

ankiimsfn - fiomsfilRgodavniu
mqwi‘zmﬁnﬂfumﬂﬁ'uﬁﬁqﬁmum?wsz
galiitamvuatisy 3,271 3,894 3,532 3,894
ANT1TE

Ty 3 1heu 1,764 1,616 1,764 1,616
ima‘.ﬂwﬁmsé’w - Avmsiineiveaiu 5,035 5,510 5,296 5,510
ankiimsfn - fiomsilingddovnu
mqwi‘zmﬁnﬂfumﬂﬁ'uﬁﬁqﬁmum?wsz
galiitamvuatisy 21,772 37,756 17,305 32,837
ANT1TE =

Ty 3 1heu 4,669 3,325 4,373 2,569 g

3 -6 liou 643 - 643 - Z

6 - 12 1eu 826 1,052 826 - :
ima‘.ﬂwﬁmsé’w - AvmsnldiAeadeeiu 27,910 42,133 23,147 35,406 =
in: @iuﬁawﬁmﬁ'ﬂﬁ]zqm (772) - (772) - 5
ima‘.ﬂwﬁmsé’w - AvmsnldiAeei - ans 27,138 42,133 22,375 35,406 =
ImgnviiMsd - qn 32,173 47,643 27,671 40,916 o
ankidu
qnwﬁﬁu - AamsfiATesiu - - 3,495 321
Qﬂwﬁﬁ'u - AvmsnldiAerdesiu 1,293 700 1,293 700 o
elddesy - Aamsiieitesiu 1,525 1,489 1,678 4,949 m
neldées - AvmsnlbiRedeaty 149475 131,240 147,029 130,197
al¥hetedranh - Amsmiferfesiu 154 18 154 18
alFhoeaamih - AamsithiRodeaiu 15,262 10,884 8,195 5,332
i’JNQﬂWﬁéu 167,709 144,331 161,844 141,517
win: @hxﬁawﬁmé’l’ﬂaxqm (10,000) - (10,000) -
UQANTIBY - N5 157,709 144331 151844 141517

FINGANIMIAAZANIDY - N3 189,882 191,974 179,515 182,433
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10. 1BUWINSUNAISATNS:AUS:U
A Ui 31 FUNAN 2560 U3 lesh Rurhadsetsnanstuiuyszana 14.2 Smum (2559: 17.2 aum) lanal3dusinesanuuma
P o A A a o A o oA 3 o A Aaw oA 2 o X A o A 4 g
meamsgaundudnifuliydnnmtagmisdeasenunsnasesnilinuvesssng emsmussaumszeauduazusmasaiily
MNNATINIVOITEN

11. 1duavnufuusensou

11.1 s19a:189QU2VUSBNSIY

KU2® : WUUIN

LUNISIBUSOU VUNSIBURWIADNS
dourbuavnu yaFhawUBmMpISaouldide  yarnauUBm3SsIAINU
2560 (Sowa:) 2559 (Soa:) 2560 2559 2560 2559

usun 100Ad Witerms  ne 20 20 31,687 31,401 30,000 30,000
dnaasdivud 9na ainanu

11.2 d@unvvrlsvranuiiaiadona:vuduwasu

Tusgnnad) 13Em Suddmuiamlsmnnmsamulusninluumsdusuuazivi Ruiunaiunnusimimdainanluumstuems

a o X
NN PNU

KU2® : WUUIN

LUMISIDUIWI:ADNNS
puduwanusun Sulus:k310U

VUNSIBUSOU
doundvrinlsoniduavnuluusinsoufus:k31oU

uSu¥NnsoU

2560 2559 2560 2559
USUn 190Ad Ginaaauiuud 911Q 185 135 - -
11.3 Jayanvn1sIBuYaLUSENSIVADaNs:d 1Ay

a7UNeMIgIUENINIIRY
KUY : WUUIN
2560 2559

Funindnapnou 41,204 40,334
Funindlainyuiion 116,864 116,993
ndunNg (134) (321)
dunswg - ans 157,934 157,006
dadmiRuaau 20% 20%
Fadoumuaouldidevaviioms Tudunswd - gns 31,587 31,401
MIANTIIANITEHINAUY - -
yarauUryBuavabuldideuaviiomsiuusensou 31,587 31,401
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Tasmseanuamifyifulvisnnu 1,000,000 Fu yasitaniiag 10 1w mendmsiiumudngn vsinm Swasdoriludadiu
Sovaz 99.99 vesuannzidenlniin fleusa fnea Hifa Innsindeslaamziboumaimuindniunssnandsdiiieun
8 Aoy 2560

4iMOd

(e]
-
=2
-
m
(9}
o
>
-
o
2




s1gvi1uUs:91U 2560

13. 1BUavNUS:B:g1dBU

KUY : WUUIN
LUNISIDUSIU/OUNMSIDUIWI:ADNNS
nu1s:1ad dadouibuavnu 38s7Anu

anunu: anuou: = e o
iduduwanuson Sulus:k310U

Y2VSSAD A WEUWUS

2560 2559 2560 2559 2560 2559 2560 2559
Usun doyaisda  HUSMIdeya  Devumuan
IKOB1a 91na ms‘lﬁ’z‘im%a 250,000 250,000 12.25 12.256 27,864 27,864 19,600 18,681
usdn 3msnagale  eanuuuiaNY  fevumaa
d1ia mUsnnduszy
Web-Based
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UsUn Wgs 7309 Fintech  fevfumaamn
o w1129 9111 9,440 - 10.00 - 11,750 - - -
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Tnamsesnviuandayiinnulaisnnn 35,960 ¥u yamnasliuaz 10 vm edlsiou vsEma lildasuiinlufuailadiamu
a o o ! [ Y o) ] =) L4 a o a v <) v = a o = g a
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14. d@dudsuusvomisiia:gunsni

KUJ¥® : WUUIN
VUNISIDUSIY
douusuusv aunsni ABUWDIODS AUnSwegs:K310
21A1S : ai"idnmu na:gunsad S aadv
s U
1 1n3aN 2559 20,376 10,312 98,548 14,077 2,626 145,939
%@L'ﬁ'u - 403 5,668 4,284 631 10,986
e - (6) (553) (3,720) (92) (4,371)
Towidn(een) - 289 2,534 - (2,823) -
31 TUNAN 2559 20,376 10,998 106,197 14,641 342 152,654
%@L'ﬁ'u 231 771 5,636 - 3,078 9,716
e - (497) (14,755) - - (15,252)
Towiin(een) - 3,420 - - (3,420) -
31 TUNAN 2560 20,607 14,692 97,078 14,641 - 147,018 8
Audousiana:au e
1 Un31aN 2559 18,458 8,297 86,537 11,078 - 124,370 Z
Aideunadmull 961 818 7.409 2,117 - 11,305 -
Aideunmamiudmismhe - (7) (553) (3,719) - (4,279) E
31 funAN 2559 19,419 9,108 93,393 9,476 - 131,396 2
Andennadmsuil 676 1,238 7,950 1,634 - 11,498 ;
Adeunmdmsudmiisimhe - (450) (14,750) - - (15,200) =
31 TUNAN 2560 20,095 9,896 86,593 11,110 - 127,694
yaA1gnSauuys _—
31 TUNAN 2559 957 1,890 12,804 5,165 342 21,158
31 funau 2560 512 4,796 10,485 3,631 - 19,324 u
Andousmdksul
2559 (F1u 7.4 dwum ywegludupuing dufimdenueglualdheluming) 11,305
2560 (F1u 8.0 A Muegluduuing dufimdenueglualshelumaing) 11,498
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VUNSIDURWI:NDNNS

douusuusv aunsni ABUWDIODS JUNSwes:K310
21A1s : ai"uin\nu na:aunsad e aadv

sInu

1 1n3aN 2559 20,303 10,238 97,052 14,077 2,626 144,296

Foiiiu : 341 5,581 4,284 631 10,837

e - (133) (1,994) (8,720) (92) (5,939)

Towith(ean) - 289 2,534 - (2,823) -

31 TUNAN 2559 20,303 10,735 103,173 14,641 342 149,194
= Foiiiu 231 695 4,948 . 3,078 8,952

. e - (496) (14,747) - - (15,243)

Towih(ean) - 3,420 - - (3,420) -

31 TUNAN 2560 20,534 14,354 93,374 14,641 - 142,903
= AdousiAazau
E 1 1n31aN 2559 18,385 8,223 85,041 11,078 - 122,727
§ Aidonnmdmsuil 961 807 7,360 2,117 - 11,245
= Adeunmamiudnismhe - (111) (1,923) (8,719) - (5,753)
: 31 funAN 2559 19,346 8,919 90,478 9,476 - 128,219
2 Andonnadmiud 676 1,207 7,711 1,634 - 11,228
; Adeunmdmuduismhe - (450) (14,747) - - (15,197)
2 31 TUNAN 2560 20,022 9,676 83,442 11,110 - 124,250

yaA1gnSauUys

31 TUNAN 2559 957 1,816 12,695 5,165 342 20,975

31 funAN 2560 512 4,678 9,932 3,631 - 18,663

Andausmdksul

2559 (1u 7.4 dmum ywegluduuing duflimdenueglualdhelumins) 11,245

2560 (F1u 7.7 & Muegluduuing dufimdenueglualsheluming) 11,228

o A o Ao Av 1 oA ¢ o P vy 1w qw ' ' o Ay o A
A Ui 31 Sunan 2560 V3NN waziiEndesigunsaiiununihidaandennmmaaudiuddaldnued yammuigyineuinandon
A dLaNYRIaUNINGFINa1d NOHINRHYTTINA 163.12 S (1IRWNLY0LTEN: 162.99 amun) (2559: 146.91 MU WwmsKu
wgAaMs: 146.91 dmum)
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15. dunswdlidau
yammuysveadunindlifidiau o Jull 31 Funan 2560 uaz 2559 uaaaldaail

KUd® : Wuun

Usinsu UsinsuAaUWIIODS Wsinsu UsiinsuAauWoIQaS

ABUWIINODS StKITOWUUN =y ABUWIIODS S:KIWUU

31 fuNAN 2560

PRV 121,152 4,508 125,660 115,725 97 115,822
¥in: Maanmhydsan (87,386) - (87,386) (85,564) - (85,564)
yamnuy® - gnd 33,766 4,508 38,274 30,161 97 30,258
31 $unaN 2559

AU 109,304 9,486 118,790 103,946 9,486 113,432
Towid/(een) 9,389 (9,389) - 9,389 (9,389) -
¥in: Maanmhydsan (73,458) - (73.458) (72,921) - (72,921)
yasmutys - qnd 45235 97 45,332 40414 97 40,511

v

msnsgnugeayammulysvesdunindlifidiaudmiul 2560 uaz 2559 uaaaldaail

KUD® : WuUN
2560 2559 2560 2559
yammnuTy® - qnieull 45,332 52,486 40,511 52,447
Follsunsuaoniiaaes 2,459 3,775 2,390 3,658
Folsunsuaoninimeissnaann 4411 2,212 - 2,212
Tmhellsunsuaeniinmesizninna - yamgnsmuias - - - (5,110)
maanvhedmsul (13,928) (13,141) (12,643) (12,696)
yasmutys - gnivaed 38,274 45,332 30,258 40,511
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16. BIKUMSANIAIIKUDU

KUJ® : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
Fmiimsd - AamsiiReadesiu 496 125 298 125
Bwilnnsdn - AensitlaliRendeadu 4,016 4,160 1,808 3,416
FunulAsINIAede - AamsniRTeaiu 3,293 3,975 293 3,975
dumulazimsdeiie - RamsitliiAedesiu 16,499 17,023 13,432 13,012
aldodee - Aamsiinerdeiu 539 575 487 335
aldthedete - AemsitliiReadesdiu 4,650 4,089 3,993 3,937
= By - famsfiAeadesiu 2,183 2,019 1,598 2,019
. Wil - ﬁanwsﬁlﬁgﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁu 4,393 1,641 3,786 1,406
neldsuarnnh - Aamsninendeaiu 1,009 1,826 1,940 1,826
neldsudamih - Aamsithiferdeatu 66.365 77.243 59,766 71,295
= smdwiimsduazimiiou 103443 112,676 87,331 101,346
=
=
E 17. Ussnumskiaus:e:du
=2
: KU2® : WUUIN
: DUNSIDUSIU/DUNSIDURIWINDNNS
% Us:u1eunisAUSUDINLIUENE
= U 1 unan 2559 12,568
Windluszna 12,962
ananANENoTIANTIT (2,365)
o N 31 Funan 2559 23,165
isalussning) 1,835
o Jufl 31 Suman 2560 25,000
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18. disovwaus:lgstis:g:g1duavwinviu

o

MuRuasesnalszlemiszozonvoaminnusaiutusaeninnuiiessnnnnuudadldeail

KUD® : Wuun

2560 2559 2560 2559

dhsovwaus:lusts:o:a10u80WinVIUAUT 9,495 9,002 9,364 9,002
ditsuiludldenanu ;

funuusmsluilegiu 1,506 1,090 1,335 961

fumuaeniile 232 347 298 345
ditsuiludlsnanpudaiaiosy -

(Ml naunnmstszinamsmuvanadiandnsissiuny

dwiiAannmsnasunasdeaunddnnlsznnsmans 239 (1,946) 234 (1,946)

dnfiRenamswasuasdeaunimamsiiu - 946 - 946

dail annmsliulynnlssaumsal - 448 - 448
nadselominanelusening - (392) - (392)
dhsovnwaus:lusts:e:a1usvwinoiulanst 11,472 9,495 11,161 9,364

mliheinfunalszloniszazenvemminnuiuilunemsdeliiludmvesmlsnsenayu

KUD® : Wuun

2560 2559 2560 2559
Funumsliusms 387 559 387 559
anlsnelumsusms 1,351 878 1,176 747
im@iﬂ%’ﬁh817‘%’@”11161‘15%7%601911/;1; 1,738 1,437 1,563 1,306

a Tui 31 Sunaw 2560 USENTuazysEndesmaazliimshethsenalselesiszezanvesniinnumely 1 Yhanth (2559: 0.4
AU WUMIR[URMNLAINT: 1UIU 0.4 a1ULMN)

v d 4t . - . . oo o
Ui 31 funau 2560 szeznatmasahminlumsiehseralsylomissozonveamtinnuvesuiiniuazusindesdsvina
12 9 (@umsRummngianms: 12 1) (2559: 12 1 sumsdummziams: 12 1)
anndguinadaglumslsanamsaamdnadinmansilsziude apfladan

Ku2® : Soga:ciol

2560 2559 2560 2559
daAnan 2.44 2.44 2.44 2.44

é’mwmsﬁﬁuﬁmﬁau 3.5-6.0 3.5-6.0 3.5-6.0 3.5-6.0
danmsnasuuladlugnnuninn @uiugiery) 0-25.0 0-25.0 0-25.0 0-25.0
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o

nansznuveamsiasunlasanndgunddgdeyamifigiuvesmssyaviunalsslomiszozenveatinnu o Tuil 31 sunan 2560
uaz 2559 aylladad

KUD® : Wuun

fu 3uii 31 Su>"AU 2560

UNISIDUSOU VUMSIDUIWI:ADNNS
KUsuWudu(@aav) KUsuWudu(aaav)
WUdu 1% acav 1% wudu 1% acav 1%
Fananan (1,089) 1,251 (1,061) 1,217
IRTIMIIURUIRON 1,180 (1,337) 1,150 (1,301)
KU28 : WUUIN

fu 3ui 31 SUd>"AU 2559

VUNISIDUSOU VUMSIDUIWI:ADNNS
KuauWLZu(anav) KuFuWLZU(anav)
Wudu 1% aaav 1% Wudu 1% aaav 1%
Fananan (992) 1,146 (969) 1,117
oANMITURULADU 1,115 (987) 1,088 (964)

19. nuiSouRuna:ludAryiidaans
o4 4 o w4 m on o o o o gy P . -
weTul 27 fnaw 2557 Mlszguaniydteiu Indeyianiadssluddyudasdniunnssumsuagmiewinauyeasing laglida
yaa (ESOP Scheme) s1uaulsifiu 38,500,000 mhe visedaiihufosas 5 vemuiiszudr amsinassluasallifiglaldsudasssly
ddguaasdniiiniosas 5 vedludaguanidnidainan lasiidannislsansdeluddgyuandnd 1 mhe ddniseruaniald 1 u
Tusenldans 1.75 vde 1 fuandey naznlszgnaniyddevuldeyi@nmsiunueanziiisuvedsng 8ndwu 3,850,000 1M 910
nuaanziendusiau 78,750,000 v (Fuaily 787,500,000 viu yamviuaz 0.1 vm) Hhiprenziboulmism 82,600,000 111
(Fuensigydan 826,000,000 11 yaawfuas 0.1 vm) ieseasumslidnimuluddguanadninzesnunnssumsuag/mMiewinau
mulasamsiauamendnningliunnssumsuag/vieniinay (ESOP Scheme)
oTui 9 oy 2557 U5 Idiamueensifioudindniunsensamdsdndy Wunaldmuenzibeuinvuiii 82,600,000 11
al Jull 19 wauman 2557 1N Iddadssuazeenluddguansdninssoruaiavessng 91y 38,500,000 e laglida
yamunnssumsnazmieninnuvenssng ergvedludaguansdndlitiv 4 1 dudaudfuniiadss Tuddguaadnd 1 mie 15
andsevuaiyld 1 %u lunawfuas 1.75 vmdeu lasszeznamsléaniannsasuldaniaiausnld luiun 31 wauwmean 2558
uazyn q Twhmsgamneveaudeungumantazngadmen uaziuliansassgamneluiun 30 wgaimeu 2560
Aldsumsiaassudazneainsalidnsldmunsazideadsil
o Liifndesaz 30 veswmluddguaadninmuanglasuiaassudasne lasasnsaldansldvamn 12 Weu Munnfunidadass
udldiAu 24 1ieu
13 2 v o ° o a ad 2 oM vo o ' va Ay o A o o o
o fnudniesas 30 vesinnuluddguaadninmuanfldsuinassudazne laaansaldanslavamn 24 heu tunniuninass
ugtlaiiu 36 1hou
oy . o o fa¥ Ay o . e My o .
o Tnudnievaz 40 veswludaguamdninmuengléfiiadssudazne lasaunsaldanslanmends 36 weu liauasummua
ogvedludAgudandnd
. o o ad a ve q B maame o o ve = &3 4
ludhaguansdnsiimaenamslsans luudazasszdldlsanimummuasseznavesmsléansasaiu o dunsaazauion sl
mvuamsliangasasiely nasaoguedduddyudanidns
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s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

' o va A A o va Ay v a = v 2 v a a ad A o
agwlsimu nmmsldansuaziidesanmslsansisdueninmlasuuadldmuleulvyesmsiSuans lunsdifinssumvsentinau
YOTEN MmeenviseruNAmmiveiudmmnmsiiuassumsowinam vsEm smnsmhluddgudasdnsainaniagss
THuAnssumsuagwinnusnedudeh/lq

. aoad v o od e . Yy . o = .
yamgasysulaslszinamesdnizeruudazdniioanuia 0.18 - 0.29 v dnalaslfuuuhasamsmyuanmansmuuuuiiase
v o w ° P o o Ao 2w va A
999 Black-Scholes-Merton dayarindnuuiiass laua nawiu o Julimmuanan iy 1.56 vm waz 1.70 v »enl$ans
WAY 1.75 1 anuAurIuiaanisesas 30.61 - 43.33 anumaniidannmsneiuilunaiesas 5.79 ogdyan 1 - 4 1 uag
o 4” 4’ v 1A
oanaenillasnaniidesiesas 2.14 - 2.80 el

v ¥
o o o

m3udsunlawesigyiiuaiagnesnuasmszudridmsulaugaiun 31 Sunan 2560 uaz 2559 ANvazideanil

a

o

e msuUsuUsvaou R
97uduRu 9UDUIBU a:)umuTq% Fn_ nuoINN1STE [Sell) alinoo-n.luau
(WuRu) (Wuun) OMMSITANS fosteRuibunaur  (Wuun) Aunsinsan
(Wuunn) 2 waelsg
(Wuunn)
1 unsiAU 2559 793,993 79,399 87,864 1,004 88,868
mslFansawluddguandnd
Fovjuaify ESOP a%il 3 1237 124 2,040 188 2928 6 fquIsu 2559
31 Su>1A 2559 795,230 79,523 89,904 1,192 91,096
maldansawludagyudansdnd
Fovjuaily ESOP a%ifl 5 684 68 1,129 115 1244 8 fiquisu 2560
maldansawludayudansdnd
Fovjuaily ESOP a%ifl 6 24,592 2,459 40,576 6,355 46931 7 Fuman 2560
31 Sud1AU 2560 820,506 82,050 131,609 7,662 139,271

Tuszgnhallaugaiui 31 funau 2560 V381 Tufindldhedmsulassms ESOP ifluswau 0.67 & (2559: 1.7 um) &

]

waaslualdhenefuminnumdeniuiug “duunnmshelaslifuiihunaet” ludnveddeoduimesnnufoaiu

1%
2 A v o o

madsundadluinnumbeveduddaguansaninsseriuaiiyvessing ineazidoadail

{ Y
KUD8 : WUKUDY

numluddguanians a Sudul 30,770 32,007
W luddyuansansildanssenhad (25,276) (1,237)

‘luéwﬁmuuamﬁw%ﬁmﬂmq (5,494) -
swnuluddyuansans o Tudud - 30,770

20. dsovMmuNnKUY
meldumiggfveunan 116 unnszneiygausEmumsuine w.e. 2535 U3En ﬁmé’fﬂﬁssﬁﬂsqw%ﬂsziﬂdauwﬁﬂ"i iWhmudses
hitfesniiesaz 5 vearlsgnitsesiivindsseaneanuazansnin (i) sundmudisesieisnnilidesnhiesas 10 vomuaa
nziou dsesmungrneananliainsathluiieSuilunald sfﬂui”lm;ﬁ'uu%ﬁm TiaasscdhsesmungrneBasudiuud
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21. sgldonnsikusns
NgldnnmMIUIMIveTIvg nazuitmdosmamudnyazmsivusansldne Ui

KUD® : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
naldnnmsliimmulasimsliuimsdeyainasgino
Tagszuunaniiineieaulal 181,300 178,576 184,485 184,270
31avlﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁmsﬁzwmﬂﬂﬁmiﬁvlﬁ%umﬁa'qLfﬁumiamu 72,191 62,593 72.191 62,593
swldnamsliismsdu 160,735 136,982 97,670 81,815
Twnglanamsliusms 414,226 378,151 354,346 398,678
22. Afdoeauanucu:
NemimlFheulimudnyaglszasumenema ldnendagaaelil
KUD® : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
funIMTIaMIsEULIUTeYa 121,060 89,720 86,369 58,378
Funuanilasens 33,271 22,009 33,271 22,009
Ruifeuuaznalszlomiduveaminam 96,219 94,443 86,893 89,697
MApLuNIATINMs LAz 13,050 13,239 13,050 13,239
ﬂ'u?%amwm 11,498 11,305 11,228 11,215
Mg 13,928 13,141 12,643 12,696
AuemNdyguBaHuNu 8,623 4,707 7,747 4,707
MmlFhedmumsnma 7,530 4,277 4,079 4,015
anlwldh 4,587 4,607 4,587 4,607
23. m@iould
aldiemi Aulddmiulaugaiun 31 funan 2560 uag 2559 aglldaai
KUD® : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
nBIBulddoauu:
miRulafidyaaadmivl 13,193 8,956 10,971 6.428
maouldsanisdalnys:
miduldsemsfaigdnamiiianauandetinm
HATMINAUTNIMINALANFNFIAT (391) 52 (385) 9

Aldsreniduldnnaavagiudouvovriilskiaznanu 12,802 9,008 10,586 6,437
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Swumiliuldiinedestudmnlsznevudazdimvestlsnayuiiaaiaandmiuilaugatun 31 funan 2560 naz 2559 agllddail

q

KUD® : Wuun

2560 2559 2560 2559
miRuldsemsdatydnuwamls@anu)mamslsznams
murananamanilsziune (48) 110 (47) 110
nemsnsgnugeassriailsmatiydiumlsthems ul il
KUD¥ : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
mlsmaygneuns Guldiifyaaa 89,416 81,597 82,395 69,442
ganmiduldidyaaa 20% 20% 20% 20%
Ml gneum dulanfyaaagudnnai 17,883 16,319 16,479 13,888
NANTENUNMNME M5
MyaaLaTIMIANY (MINgIve 25) (5,171) (6,465) (5,171) (6,465)
mslfsglaminnuananuazamni - (59) - -
neldnlasueniums (3,920) (3,736) (3,920) (3,736)
aldeililidedunehomeni 4,001 3,259 3,986 3,396
Mmlaeniiansitnla i (723) (543) (673) (673)
u 9 732 933 (115) 27
U (5,081) (7,311) (5,893) (7,451)
anlsmemi ﬁuvlﬁﬁuﬂmag”luﬁaumaﬁﬂw?ammu 12,802 9,008 10,586 6,437

dausgnovvesdunindmifuldsemsdaigdlszneumenemsasaellil

KU2® : Wuun

vulEQLFIUNISIDU

LUNISIDUSOU LUNMISIDUIWIADNNS

FunswdnGivuldsanisaautys

ﬂ'uﬁ'amiaﬂuumaq Ruaanu 4,003 4,003 4,003 4,003
Aioviiasduazgey 154 - 154 -
Andonnmazay - aewimesseringg 96 288 96 288
thysanalsglosiszazonvesninnu 2,376 1,900 2,343 1,873

W 6,629 6,191 6,596 6,164
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24. mhlscioku

v ¥
o A o

Mlsdorfutuiugusinalasmsmlsdwiuinduesdiofuvenisn (bivumlsmenioiabu) Sresnnuimavdnimiin
vesuailyitoonaglusswial

Mlsdoruliuandnnalasmsmlsdwiuiniduresdfoueaniing (hinuilsmayuiiiaatady) Henanuvesnnuiinieda
ﬁmﬁnmmﬁumﬁmﬁaaﬂasﬂuizwinﬂﬁ’uimauﬁqm?;ﬂdaqﬁmﬁﬂﬁumﬁumﬁmﬁu‘%ﬁmmaﬁmaamﬁ'aLLﬂmﬁumﬁzgLﬁﬂumwﬂ%’uaﬂﬁy’aéu
Tiudueanily Tasaundnldfimsulaaiuduaniy o Juduiliie o Tuseniuaiyiioun
lsdoruduiuguazilsdornlfuan uaaamssnnalddil

VUNISIDUSOU
$1uouRuUa Wy ddI0EY
fdVUNKUN

mlsdrsut lsciaku

2560 2559 2560 2559
(Wuun) (Wuun) (WuRu) (WuRu) (un) (un)

rinlscioRuduWugU
mlsdilifuvesdderuvesysing 76,614 72,589 797,302 794,699 0.10 0.09
wans:nuyavKuawiiguinsuaa
luddouansdnsivzseruaniaiioonlvun

ATTUATUASWINNUYBILSENA (ESOP)

(2560: 14if) (2559: 30,770,250 i) - - 4,699 1,015
mlscdaRuusuaa
mlsiifuvesddeuaityaumaninmsldans

%aﬁumﬁzgmniuﬁwﬁ%guam%‘m%ﬂ 76,614 72,589 802,001 795,714 0.10 0.09

VUNSIDURIW:NDNNS
$usuRuUa WA
fovUIKUN

finlsdksul finlscioku

2560 2559 2560
(Wuun) (Wuun) (WuRu) (WuRu) (un) (un)

rinlsdoRuduWugu
Alsdwiifuoaderuvaisng 71,809 63,005 797,302 794,699 0.09 0.08
wans:nuyavKuaWnyIiguinusuaa
Tuddouansdniiazseruailaiioonlviun

ATINMILATNUNNUVBILSEN (ESOP)

(2560: 13i3) (2559: 30,770,250 i) - - 4,699 1,015

mlsciokuusuaa

oV & g vy o A a va o

mlstifluveaddevuaniy aundninsleans
.

Fovuaniamnluddgyudansdnia 71,809 63,005 802,001 795,714 0.09 0.08

a
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25. msdviasunisavnu

s1gv1uUs:91U 2560

1380 nazisimdesuianialdsuansiiasmadumionsmansndudiumsamumunssnsiygfdudiumsanmu w.e. 2520 lag

mseuliivesanznssHMIdudINMsamumeldteuluss o inmuali v38n1 uaziFEmdeslasuaniszlomnimesumibernsifianss

dAgarollil

s1ga:deq

Tnsdaaiuiavn

usen Glonoa GSaoa s1ia

(uSungoy)

2423(7)/2556 60-0193-1-00-2-0
a9uf 9 ganAN 2556 14 QUAMUS 2560

A a a ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
edudsumsamuluams Faniuas g3
ansszlomicdgnlasy
2.1 ldsueniumisuldnfyanadmsumlsgninldannms 81 51

1szppufmnlasumsdaasy EuuaunEuingldnnms (dernaogluiun

daznevfaman) vennnidiannsahnanauasansAay 15 SuUNAN 2565)

sgiianaldsueniumi duldnfyaaanineenninmlsgnd

A a X o A v v P o

nAaTuMendszeznaiasuendumeluna 5 1 Tagaziin

namlsgnivesilainilaiionanelild
2.2 asvsaulidenhSuilunanafomsnlasumsdaaiusalasy htetil] haEil]

P Aa Y yaa ° A A Aa VY
sniumBRuldlifyaaalinusnasiiodemiGuldnasa
AV v o Aa VM yaa )

szoznaildsueniumi Auldtidyaaau
2.3 lasusaiuansvuhdawiuiesesdnsihitinlglumsnan AAATZEZIIAN AavATZEZIM

MUTNNUNAALNITHANIRN TN BYNA nldsumsdadin nlasumsdadiu
JunsulEansmatinsdaasy 16 $unau 2557 Falailaldans

(Guinfinatiaduls

mudganatunIn)

Neldvenieng uazuiEndestuunmufamsnldsumsdadiumsamuuazlildsumsdadiumsamudminaugaiun 31 funax

2560 uaz 2559 aunsaaqladadeliil

KUD® : Wuun
2560 2559 2560 2559
dmwmiwvléfﬁvlﬁ%’umidqLa‘i‘umsmnu 72,191 62,593 72,191 62,593
desneldilildFumadadiumsamu 342,035 315,558 282,155 266,085
swnyldgannmsusms 414,226 378,161 354,346 328,678
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26. JayanvonsiduTMUNAWEIULIU
JayadInaum dunuihiaueiideandesfunsnumeluveiing figRsnmdaaulaguaadumssuiuanldfunazaeumuat
asianerielslumsdadulilumsiaasminennslifuduamuaslizfiunamedifiunisesdiun
Vs wastiimesdufiugsimdnludunudifuniinsmufissdunudede mlismstasiannssusdoyadnmmmems
Ruuazliusmsdeyasia 9 lasssuuaeniinmesesulatinazeenlal uagsiliugsivlnwagimansiienfetszmalne usem Uszidiv
wanmiiRnuvesdamlnsinsannamlsviienaqunamasiiunmidiayamlaslfinardifofilslumsiadlndenapan
msduiunilusumaiu G nelduashlmnmssifunumaiuaasluslnaguiiioeds tasdumindimuaiuansogly

wmsidu Sadedummsnumudmanuauiivaiazivagimansud

~ =

dayanediuanmsielkng
Tul) 2560 uaz 2559 V3ENY uazuEMgeslilignmnelngniiyacmhiuvieinnniifesas 10 veanaldvnvesiams

= 27. novnuaSOVIAYVEW

U3t naswifnauniinn dhafuiadinemudisendsdniunumasneiyginemudsondssdn wa. 2530 Tasu3ima uag
winmesheamuiinesuiiineifenludaniosas 3 vesuifen newudsen Léﬂﬁwﬁu‘%mﬂﬂﬂu‘%ﬁ’wé’ﬂw%’wei%’mmiﬂamumu
v 1 wazesheliudwinoudleninmuiiueennamumsziierhdenemuvessin lusewha 2560 1550 wasimees

z SufRudumudsnaniflualdedom 1.9 dnum @umstuamzioms: 1.8 Suum) (2559: 2.0 S wmsRummezims:
o v
= 1.9 )
<
o
O — .
= 28. 1Ivuduwase
=2
L . - 9
o _ 1Ivuduwasneg 1vudunwaseg
ivuduwa > L.
(-3 (@aauunn) (U'lnqalgu)
w
; a o o =" { U A v { o A
o Ruilumailszand dwsi) 2558 nlszgnanidtevuieiun
a. =
30 NUAN 2559 47.64 0.06
smRduilunanielull 2559 47.64 0.06
Ruthunadszant) dmsull 2559 MlsgyuansigdoeuiieTun
29 finau 2560 55.67 0.07
samSuilunandelull 2560 55.67 0.07

29. mswnWullakiauRoNDIRaZU
a Tuil 31 Sumen 2560 wag 2559 L3N ua:u‘%ﬁmsJ'asJﬁmixQﬂﬁuLmzwﬁﬁuﬁamauﬁﬂ%uélumﬂwﬁmaﬂmﬁaﬁnﬂﬁﬁ]ﬂstfli‘lu
mnomglsznenwmsududail
29.1 MSNWUAWEYTYIUSNIS
vt Tdhdapdumhenunsmsunils ielldanslumsafiumsmulasmsliimsteyainasgsfalasssuneniianes

{ o A Ao vy o o ' A4 4
ooulail naziiioIun 23 mwiey 2555 U3EN lddengdyaniumhenunsmsuvianileeanlidn 51 (w.d. 2559 - 2563) 1ile
TWldanslumsaniiumsmulassnmsliimsdeyatnangivlasszuusrenimeioeulaidimalidyandindnldugaidousunan
2563 ynaldannuluiniindeanasanusmiems s msineunideyagsnainin lnsiuiindeanasisndniiong 151 (w.a.

= P ' ' ~ @ o 1 v A v a4 o A & b o o ay o
2564 - 2578) Frazdosnemsrsnionindadiniesazatnvemeldaviennuiuiummudyanlundazlnasaengvesdayan
sagiuiindeanaiie Wimsmiiumsmulasmsillegadeiioa
Tuszynatl 2558 15t Aueudd (Uszimalne) S1ia suthwiindesldvhdyanmansivuiinlusalssmamdmiiaie ¥ duans
Tumsliusmsungnd Tasvzdestiomassuiionmunszyludyan dyandandniinateduldduna 5 1
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uenNnil USENY nazustmdesldmdgannneifuduuaimsdug fuuisnarsuna

A TUN 31 SUNAN 2560 wag 2559 NUINIRUN

o

f
foateluemanmudyanuimsdinan dmvuadiamsedad

KU2® : duun

2560 2559 2560 2559
Neszamely
melu 11 63.18 75.76 45.75 46.32
18457 111.37 165.00 77.09 78.97
AN 5 1 191.75 191.75 191.75 191.75

!

29.2 Ms:NWUEYYISIEDIwHIENU
o A 9 Ao = o o A o A s ' " A o v
al Ui 31 Suman 2560 U3EN dmszyaviumndyyuieiannszuuaeniimestazneefenuauing 9.26 dmum
(2559: 0.08 @1ULMN)
29.3 MS:NWUMENYYIANENS
U3t Idvh dyanandnsauussmininedesiuuvanils sazusnlusalssmanvianiie lunmsveeyanamihllsunsuaeniamesin i

av 44 9 o A qo Ao : ' ' 1Y) P { v a v A o
vsinninedesiuuaniinld Insussnmnasmzhemsssuiionlusanievasaiivesseaneldiinannmslimismsszuuianan
munszyludyan Fgandsnanlildmuieszeznadugavesdyan

29.4 kUvdoAUs:AusUIAS

o va % .4 o La e Y Y 44 A o
13Hm fimlsdeamisziugesnlassinashinmisimg mased dusnu 36.25 a1um (2559: 36.32 &) Funediieiv
magyniunUGiaualszmamuadgsnsvesuisna ineaszaumsjifaumudyan

]

30. @duduvovyanngdisssy
a Ui 31 Funan 2559 UsENLazUSENgoaRdunsndniayamdisyamgisssiolaneyamgAIIHIENLEAIMNMADTUYDA
yamgAnIan (2560: 13dl) Aail
KUdy : auun

VUNSIDUSIUIIA:LUNISIDUIWI:ADNNS

S:QU 2

Aunswdhdayarndoayanngdisssy

~ N S =) X
Ruamulundanindiied - neauidlaasiasvil 39.9

31. |n§=a\)ﬁan'|\>msn3u
31.1 UTEIU’I%Iﬂ‘ISUgK‘ISFD‘IUIﬁﬂ\)

insesiememsiuiichdayvesu3iig uasu’%ﬁwEJ'aﬂmm’?iﬁmuagflummimmiﬁ'mﬁaﬁuﬁ 107 “m3udmangmsuazmsiaiig
fFoyadmiuiaTesiionamsiiu” Usznouds Sudanaznemaifisunhiiuan gnwiimed Suamuiiasnuazuasu 13
nastiindosiianuidseiinsdesiuiniesdiomimsfudindn asiulomemasmsanuidedail

A WIFgoAUNSIRAUIED

U3 wazusindesianudssiunsliauideiifeailestuganiimsduazgaviiou thevsmsmuauanuidesiilasmsdmun
WiluToweuazismslumsmuauauidedivnnzan Suhndimg tasusimdesithimahazlduamdemeiifumszddann
mslauide vonnnil maliauideven i naguiimderhifimsnszgndiiiomnuiing uazisimosiipuesgndivmnnas
nazflotinmunnne uazgnimelvajdnvgihuaaifumsiu S3amRasmbenuvessy Snnuiiuggaiiuiing uaziiindes
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Company’s name

Certificate No.

Address

Type of Business

Company Registered Number
Tel

Fax

Homepage

Registered capital

Paid-up capital

Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

Subsidiary name
Address

Type of Business
Tel

Fax

Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

Business Online Public Company Limited

2423(7)/2556 received investment support on software development

TYPE: ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE and DIGITAL CONTENT (Type 5.8 Software)
900/8-10 SVOA Tower, Rama III Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
Business Online Public Company Limited is the leader in providing business information
for business decision making. Our services cover finding new customers, monitoring
information of business partners and identifying them. In addition, we also provide analytics
service and credit risk management by adopting information from data warehouse and
developed them into software and application services. Furthermore, BOL provides
comprehensive solutions such as business consulting both domestic and ASEAN including
the design and development of information system, knowledge management system and
commercial debt collection for the business growth of corporate sustainability.
0107546000407

+66 2657 3999

+66 2657 3900-1

https://www.bol.co.th

82,600,000 Baht

82,050,650 Baht

0.10 Baht

820,505,500 Ordinary shares

D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

900/8-10 SVOA Tower Rama III Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
International credit reporting & Database activities

+66 2657 3939

+66 2657 3901

1,000,000 Baht "
1,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

100,000 Ordinary shares
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Subsidiary’s Name
BOI Certificate No.

Address

Type of Business

Tel

Fax

Registered Capital
Paid-Up Capital
Par Value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

Associated Company’s Name
Address

Type of Business

Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

BOL Digital Co.,Ltd.

60-0193-1-00-2-0 received investment support for Type 5.7.2 Enterprise Software and
Digital Content Development

900/10 FI. 14, Rama 11l Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

BOL Digital provides a platform that facilitates business decision-making with financial
insights and news, while also serving as a channel for business matching, business loan
application, and sales and marketing

+66 2657 3949

+66 2657 3901

15,000,000 Baht

15,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

1,600,000 Ordinary shares

ABIKS Development Co.,Ltd.

131 Ratburana Rd., Ratburana, Bangkok 10140

Incorporated and domiciled in Thailand to principally engage in real estate development
business including investment in land, office building for rental and to render property
management services to shareholders and other customers.

150,000,000 Baht

150,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

15,000,000 Ordinary shares

Companies which BOL holds stake at less 10%

Company’s Name
Address

Type of Business
Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

Company’s Name
Address

Type of Business
Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

122

Ecartstudio Co.,Ltd.

129 Rama IX Rd., Huai Khwang, Huai Khwang, Bangkok 10310
Software consultancy activities.

12,942,230 Baht

12,942,230 Baht

10 Baht

1,294,223 Ordinary shares

National Credit Bureau Co.,Ltd.

1 Glass House Bldg. LG10 FL. Soi Sukhumvit 25 Sukhumvit Rd.
Khlongtoei Nua, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110

Credit Information Service

250,000,000 Baht

250,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

25,000,000 Ordinary shares
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Company’s Name
Address

Type of Business
Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Par value

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares

Investor Relations

Other Relevant Information

Share Registrar

Tel

Fax

Auditor

Tel

Fax

Peer Power Co.,Ltd.

1-7 Zuellig House Bldg. 5 Fl. Room 1B Silom Rd. Silom, Bang Rak, Bangkok 10500
Other management consultancy activities, not elsewhere classified.

14,000,000 Baht

14,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

1,400,000 Ordinary shares

ir@bol.co.th

Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon
Director & Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom

Chief Financial Officer

Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd.

93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Ratchadapisek Rd., Din-Daeng, Din-Daeng, Bangkok 10400
+66 2009 9999

+66 2009 9476

Mrs. Sarinda Hirunprasurtwutti

C.P.A. (Thailand) Registration No. 4799

EY Office Limited.

193/136-137, Lake Ratchada Office Complex, 33Fl.,
Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Al
+66 2264 0777

+66 2264 0789-90 "
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

BOL is striving to be the leading provider of business information and analytics tools to enable our customers in a fast and effective
decision making process. The company continuously develops and updates its existing business registry and financial database while
searching for new information sources. Leading innovations from around the world are harnessed to offer new dimensions in analysing
and interpreting business risks and opportunities. The security of our database and network is at heart of business, ensuring a smooth

running of customer experience. Moreover, the company has initiated our services venture in aboard.

Mission

e To deliver complete and accurate business information to decision makers
e To deliver value added products and service to customers

e To bring a corporate name and services to be top of mind for customers
e To be an innovative organization in the area of Big Data Analytic

The company’s main target customers can be divided into 3 main categories as follows:
e Financial Institutions
e Private Businesses and Industries

e Public Organizations

A majority of our customers integrated our services in various stages of their operation, from searching new target customers, supporting
their corporate decisions in evaluating and managing risks associated with business transactions, and preventing the delinquency payment.
Moreover, BOL’s services equipped customers with analytic tools for a better formulation of business strategy to broaden their market
opportunities and enhance revenue performance. In addition, we have brought in a data visualisation technology to analyse big data
by using modern technology in transforming complex information into charts and graphs. This genuinely allows business executives
to make more effective decisions.

Furthermore, the company continuously establish new business partnership with a leading company in order to excel our services and
satisfy the growing needs of our clients. For instance, BOL has collaborated with a leading global debt recovery agency to expand on
its comprehensive debt recovery service. In addition, the company also looks to bring new user experience on mobile platforms while

enhancing usability so that our customers can access our services from anywhere, at anytime, and on any device.
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NATURE OF BUSINESS OF BOL AND SUBSIDIARIES

Business Online Company Limited was founded on 26 April 1995 with registered capital of 10 million baht. On 1 December 2003,
the company converted its status to a public company and was renamed as Business Online Public Company Limited with registered
capital of 75 million baht and listed on the “Market for Alternative Investment (mai)” on 21 April 2004. The company increased its
registered capital to 78.75 million baht on 23 September 2008 and second time, increased its registered capital to 82.6 million baht
on 9 April 2014.

Our business activities are to provide information that has been analysed and validated, as well as related news, to improve customers’
decision making process. The information is compiled from many sources such as the Department of Business Development, Ministry
of Commerce, under the agreement which allows BOL access to basic information, including company status, Board of Directors, and
financial performance of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand. The company also gathers other information such as
related news from various industries through leading newspapers and other respectable business news sources. In addition, the company
stores and analyses trade payment information from existing customers while the information received is thoroughly checked, evaluated,
analyzed and stored in our online system that can be accessed through the company’s website: https://www.bol.co.th

The company’s cooperation with Dun & Bradstreet International (D&B) has increased BOL’s capabilities; not only have we gained
knowledge in data management and analysis from a world’s leading company but this has enabled the company to extend our service to
international markets via D&B’s network. From this, we had launched a service that offers information on overseas companies for our
local customers as a decision tool which is beneficial in strengthening the country’s credit risk management and promoting transparency
of business transactions. On 22 March 2006, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (Company
Registration Number: 0105549038501) with a registered capital of 1 million baht.

With information of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand and more than 240 million registered companies in 214
countries around the globe and expertise in developing Database Management Systems, Risk Management, in conjunction with infor-
mation technology know-how that make the company to become one of the leading companies in providing fully-integrated information
services ranging from basic information such as basic information and company operation results which include: news services, infor-
mation analysis and validation. These can be used as effective tools that are effective and accurate while reducing risks associated with

investments and building more confidence and business opportunities

The company has been selected as the data processing center for credit information submitted by financial institutions which are members
of National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. (NCB) since its establishment.

In 2004, BOL introduced a comprehensive Financial Analysis System to the market. This system enhanced the efficiency in analyzing

financial information and assisted managers to confidently devise strategies.

BOL began providing in-depth data analysis to improve its capability in business risks and opportunity analysis. Since 2005, the company
has developed a new generation of product that specifically caters for financial institutions which is called Decision Support System
(“DSS”). DSS enables the integration of BOL’s and customers’ databases to help customers better organize their databases to capture
market opportunities and improve their risk management.

At the end of 2007, BOL launched a new product called “CORPUS”. Corpus is a new concept of information service that integrates
information on companies’ profile, shareholder information, director details and financial statements. Users could easily access the in-
formation of over 1,000,000 companies to analyze threats and opportunities of any given company. CORPUS was designed to answer

the needs for information which may vary from industry to industry or from one job function to another.
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In 2009, the company has finished developing a risk forecasting tools that indicates an organization’s probability in running into financial
crisis and displays the result in a form of a score or Financial Stress Score (FS Score) that achieves international standards. The tool is a
result of collaboration between BOL and the analyst team of D&B in the United States. It is expected that the tool will help customers
to understand the financial standings of their business partners while diversifying their risks though better risk management strategies.

In 2014, a new product launched under the name of ‘ENLITE’, the system specifically caters for the decision support process of banking
and financial institutions both domestically and within the ASEAN region. Highlight features include data integration with Thailand’s
business registration database which can be analyzed, evaluated with reports in forms of data visualization while premium features
include Risk Score/Risk Class that predict future probability of a financial crisis; News, that gather information from leading sources
domestically and internationally; Auditor Flag that contains financial commentary from the auditors; Location Based Intelligence, which
displays information in a map form and Account Relationship Management, which gives a picture of how each company, shareholders

and directors are related.

Furthermore, the company has jointly developed a system that electronically receives financial statements under the name ‘DBD e-Filing’
with the Department of Business Development (DBD) and other partners with the intention to support DBD in improving its service
while providing convenience and a new channel to receive financial statements from registered companies. DBD e-Filing’s increases

the integrity of financial information while it is expected that the service would be available for 2014 financial year filings.

In 2017, the company established BOL Digital Company Limited (registration number 0105560000956) with a registered capital of 15
million Baht; to focus on the research and development of innovations that will result in new solutions. During this period, an electronic
business matching platform (MatchLink) has been developed to facilitate the connection between buyers, suppliers and sources of funding;
the data from which can be used to support business decision making, reduce operational process and increase opportunities. In addition,
the company invested in and jointly invested with Peer Power Company Limited, a fintech startup that serves as an intermediary for
online personal loan that directly connects potential borrowers to investors so that they get a lower interest rate from banks or financial

institutions while investors enjoy better benefits that are more constant and returns that are higher than other financial products.

This investment serves as a new era of the company’s information services that utilise big data to analyse consumers’ behaviour and

improve existing services to satisfy consumers’ needs.

Type of Services
BOL’s services are divided into 3 main groups as follow:

1. Information Services

e Basic Information
e Decision Support Information
e Analytic Information

2. Risk Management Services

e Risk Management Solution

e Risk Management Consultancy
3. Other Services

e Special Project

e DebtLine
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Information Services

Information service is BOL’s main business. In order to compete, the company must adapt to changes that occurs both internally and

externally. As a result, information for decision making has become even more crucial to organizational management and that is why

BOL continues to develop a variety of information service for customers who may have different degree of needs for information. In

addition, we put great emphasis on adding value to information and discover new perspectives in interpreting information so that our

customers can better manage their risks and opportunities. Our information service is delivered in the following categories:

1.1

1.2

1.3

N
N

2.2

w
.

3.2

Basic Information Service

This covers both domestic and international company information through online and offline channels. The service is provided to
private businesses and organizations, as well as governmental agencies by gathering business information from various sources thus
giving different levels of users comprehensive and in-depth information which is offered in many forms such as:
e Web-based application that has the following functions:

- Access to updated, multi-dimensional information gathered from various sources

- In-depth financial analysis that helps users to easily understand complex numbers

- Alert changes to target companies that may have effects on the users’” organizations

- Finding new customers according to user-defined criteria which helps with devising organisational strategies

- Advanced search that enhances marketing effectiveness
e Reports
e (Customised database — users can choose data items from our database in compiling reports tailored to their specifications

Decision Support Information

This is provided as a Decision Support System that suits large organizations such as financial institutions where overview of business
information is essential to their operations. This also includes applications, systems and information that are regularly updated.
Analytic Information

This is provided in forms of scores and ratings by compiling business and financial information of over 260,000 companies in our
database. This is then analysed by using statistical methods before a score is given. Users then use this score to predict the probability
of a company facing a financial crisis which leads to bankruptcy, receivership, foreclosure or rehabilitation so that they understand

their customer’s business, diversify their risks, and effectively employing suitable risk management strategies for their portfolio.

Risk Management Services

Risk Management Solutions

Through cooperation with a leading international company, we are able to provide risk management tools to financial institutions
such as financial analysis system, business rule engine.

Risk Management Consultancy

We also serve as risk management consultants by bringing our experience and expertise on data analysis to serve our customers

through consulting sessions and seminars.

Other Services

Special Project

Special project is one that the company provides by using our expertise in data management and auditing, and IT infrastructure
development that satisfy our customers’ unique requirements.

DebtLine

The company provides debt collection service to enhance financial and liquidity management to customers. This helps them to

reduce bad debts while maintaining good relationships with their trading partners.
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Milestones of BOL

1995
1996

1998
2003
2004
2006
2008
2008

2008
2009

Established Business Online Co., Ltd. (BOL).

Signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce
to provide online information of registered companies in Thailand.

Entered into a joint venture with Dun and Bradstreet (D&B), a world leading information provider.

The company converted its status to a public company.

Listed on The “Market for Alternative Investment (mai)” The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Established D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 1 million Baht.

“Bai Pho Business Award” by Sasin 2008 Outstanding in “Value Creation” and “Customer Focus”

“200 Best Under A Billion” Award from Forbes Asia Magazine (September 2008 issue) conducted a survey on listed
companies in Asia Pacific region consisting of 24,155 companies. The purpose of this award was to give “200 Best
Under A Billion” Award to listed companies which had revenues of less than a billion US Dollars and had outstanding
performances.

Inverted 20% of 150 million Baht registered capital with other partner to establish ABIKS Development Co.,Ltd.

BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in accordance with standards of ISO/IEC
27001:2005 from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVQI). This is the best standard in the Information
Security Management System. This is one of the achievements which demonstrate our commitment to professionally
serve our customers with highest quality and efficiency.

D&B Worldwide Network Awards 2011 “Excellence in Information Quality” Award from D&B International.
Established iBOL Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 25 million Baht. (Increased the
registered capital to 25 million Baht)

BOL and DBD has reached an agreement to extend the Agreement for a period of 5 years (from 2016 - 2020). In
addition, both parties has signed a memorandum of understanding on the cooperation of business information service
having a term of 15 years (from 2021 - 2035)

Be considered registered traders. The group hired a consultant, information technology and communications. Airports of
Thailand Public Company Limited (Thailand) (AOT) was approved on 16 August 2012.

The net cash flow from operating performance, by 9 listed companies in the “mai stars” The dividend for five years
(2007 - 2011) which corporate-governance scores rated “Good”(3 STAR) or more benchmark.

Built network infrastructure that connects the database of Department of Legal Execution, Ministry of Justice and National
Credit Bureau. The contract came into effect from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2021

With the collaboration with government, the new released project “Smart Province” is the executive information system
(EIS) that connects the information of all sectors to visualize satellite imagery in different dimensions on the map to set
the strategic planning of provinces or territory for the optimization outcome.

Invested in a 15% stake of Ecartstudio Company Limited

Begin cooperation with RMS Company Limited (Hong Kong) as trade debt collection representative in Thailand and 150
countries worldwide

Receive BOI under category 5.8 Enterprise Software and Digital Content (certificate number 2423(7)/2556)

BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in the new version reviewed by ISO/IEC
27001:2005 to ISO/IEC27001:2013 of certification from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVQI). This
is the best standard in the Information Security Management System.

BOL received an award for “Innovative Organization: Service” at Total Innovation Management Awards 2017 by
National Innovation Agency and the Stock Exchange of Thailand

Established a subsidiary “BOL Digital Company Limited” with a registered capital of 15 million Baht

Invested in 10% stake in Peer Power Company Limited
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RISK FACTORS

Risk factors (Key risks) are considered as factors which may have adverse effects on the company’s operation and performance. The

factors not being mentioned are considered to be insignificant or beyond the company’s anticipation.
1. Risks Related to the security of BOL's Database

Since the company is in the business of providing information, database are therefore the most crucial assets of the company. Any loss
of information or illegal break-in (hacking) to steal or destroy the database or any network problem will have detrimental impact on

the company’s operations and services.
Risk Mitigation

The company has therefore implemented a set of policies and procedures to protect database and to ensure network security. The
company also performs backing up all files at the production site and back-up facility on a daily basis. Both facilities are equipped
with high levels of security. The company appoints a list of personnel who have access the database according to their authorisation.
The company also implements a number of physical security systems such as access card to allow only authorised personnel to access

to the specific area, the installation of close-circuit television, and fingerprint scans to record personnel who access to the data center.

Moreover BOL’s network system, hardware and software are maintained and updated to ensure that they function properly at all times.
Data Centre staff are dedicated to monitor the status of the system. The company implemented firewall, an international standard network
security system to prevent system intrusion and the company has never experienced a security breach with its database.

In the year 2008, BOL implemented a system procedure to comply with ISO/IEC27001:2005 (Information Security Management
System). We have been certified with this international standard by Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in June 2009 and
such standards are reviewed annually and in the year 2015, the company adopted in the new version reviewed by ISO/IEC 27001:2005
to ISO/IEC27001:2013 of certification.

2. Risks on for Information Sources
Nowadays, the major sources of information supported the company’s services is supplied Department of Business Development, Ministry
of Commerce; based on information received from the organisation, BOL develops, analyses, and adds value so as to provide relevant

information services to customers. However, there are some risks associated to these information sources, such as quality of information

and the continuity of the support from the organisation.

Risk Mitigation

The company is working closely with the organisation by checking and correcting data errors which improve the quality of their information.
BOL also searches for other respectable sources i.e. by gathering data from interviews, researches and questionnaires, etc. BOL also
develops these information by turning them into a more in-depth analysis.

3. Competition risk

In the current information age, an information service available on the internet is expanding in an unprecedented speed. There is always
a possibility for new entrants to the market.
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Risk Mitigation

The company always emphasises on value perceived by customers. With 20 years experience in a business that provides business in-
formation, the company continuously researches and develops its database. In the meantime, the company also concentrates on human
resource development by having staff exposed to new technology trend from joining local and international events. The incremental
knowledge is used to enhance the company’s strategies to create value to the service that best fit to user’s requirements. Moreover, we
have received support from our business alliances who mostly are global leaders in the business information industry through constant

collaborations in order to improve our company’s business in the future.

4. Risks from Major Shareholders Pursuing Their Own Interests

BOL’s major shareholders are Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., with a combined 51.02 percent of BOL total
paid-up capital (including ARG, in which Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Group are major shareholders). The major shareholders are able
to control resolutions of shareholders’ meetings regarding issues which require at least 50 % of the total number of shareholders who

attend the meeting and have the right to vote.

Risk Mitigation

The company has appointed independent directors which make up 40% of the Board of Directors to promote transparency. Furthermore,

the company has also allowed common stock holders to suggest the names of directors and set the agenda in the annual general meeting.

5. Dependency on Long-Serving Management and Senior Employees

Most of management and senior employees have been with the company for long period. Their skill and experiences are very specialised
and critical to the company success. If the company is unable to retain them and has no proper succession plan, it may create negative

impact on business and financial performance.

Risk Mitigation

The company regards employee retention as its priority. One of the significant factors for company’s sustainable success is maintaining
skilled and experienced personnel in management, sales, marketing and production. Furthermore, BOL consistently trains its human
resources to assure that they could provide effective product development and selling. ESOP for senior employees’ scheme is used to

encourage them to work with the company in long-term and binding their interest to company’s performance.

Risk Management

Risk management is an important tool to ensure that the external and internal risks affecting the company’s goals will be addressed
and mitigated for the effective and efficient operations. The risk management, in addition to being comprehensive and Company-wide,
also focuses on control activities and monitors to ensure that the risk management is appropriate and can be adopted throughout the
organisation with oversight by the accountable management team. The information and communication of the risks is also available to
everyone in the organisation to enhance the responsiveness in handling the risks effectively. The risk management policy is developed

based on the Good Corporate Governance practice.
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The types of risks with direct impact to business operation can be classified into 4 categories as follows:

1. Operational Risk

Is a risk resulting from operations, including IT equipment and operation staffs, which may affect the operation of the firm. To address
the risk, the company has set up a clear procedure and operating manual, including supervision of each business units that might

consistently cause damage to the company, to ensure that the operations are properly executed.

2. IT Risk

Is a risk that could be present to any organisation today. Within IT Risk, the key risks are Information Access Risk, Business Conti-
nuity Risk, Infrastructure Risk, and Availability Risk. Information Access Risk is the risk which employees have unauthorized access
or access beyond the responsible areas in the system. Business Continuity Risk is the risk which the disruption in technology affects
the firms’ operations and business continuity. Technology infrastructure Risk is the risk which may occur when the purchase of IT
equipment does not fit the nature of the firm’s business and IT application. Availability Risk is the risk which occur when employees
or management could not access the information under his/her responsibility. To address the risks above, the company has setup the
system and structure to manage the IT system to prevent unauthorized access to customers’ information, created backup data, developed

business continuity plan around IT, and managed IT resources as appropriate to the business.

3. Industry Risk

Is unique risk which is present only in the firm’s business sector because of the particular business information derived from government.
The risk may occur from unforeseeable events, such as the uncertainty of or change in regulation concerning rule on the receipt of
information and the lack of support from government office. These uncertainties and changes may lead to risk events affecting the
firm’s success. To address the risk, the company has been working closely with related government agencies, planning for alternative
sources of information, and building necessary alliances. The company also strives to offer the information with analysis and applied

services in addition to delivering generic information.

4. Financial Risk

Is the risk resulting from financial unpreparedness, default of debts, reimbursement mistakes, liquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange,
and the risk factors affecting the operations and financial position of the company. To address the risk, the company has considered the
funding arrangement to ensure adequate and timely funding and has analysed the firm’s debtors’ financial situation to mitigate the risks
that could affect the firm’s investment. The company also conducted a feasibility study of the applicable of foreign exchange rate risks
control system. The Risk Management above must be conducted continuously and systematically with further developments to integrate
the practice into the company’s culture through the engagement of everyone in the organisation. This must be communicated to everyone

in the organisation and reviewed regularly to ensure the Risk Management is current and appropriate in today’s business context.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Top Ten major shareholders as of 29 December 2017 include:

No. Shareholder No. of shares % of shareholding
1 Advanced Research Group Co.,Ltd. 167,508,000 20.42
2 Keppel Communications Pte LTD. 164,224,000 20.01
3 Mr. Wissunu Sukulphichetrat 82,050,500 10.00
4 Dun & Bradstreet International, LTD. 71,250,000 8.68
5 Mr. Min Intanate 56,330,000 6.87
6 Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 32,845,000 4.00
7 Pan Pacific Consultant Co.,Ltd. 30,484,000 3.72
= 8 Mrs. Parinya Khancharoensuk 22,300,000 2.72
- 9 Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. 16,671,400 2.03
10 UBS AG LONDON BRANCH 15,428,800 1.88
11 Other Shareholders 161,413,800 19.67
Total 820,505,500 100.00

Dividend Policy

The company’s dividend policy is to pay dividend not less than 50 percent of consolidated net profit after tax. However, the payout

ratio may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations. The dividend payment shall not exceed the retained earnings in the
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company’s financial statements.

Business Structure

Business

Online PCL.
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2017
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No. Board of Directors Positions

1 Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board e
2 Mr. Min Intanate Director -
3 Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director

4 Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Director

5 Dr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director

6 Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Director

7 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director

8 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director

9 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director

10 Asst. Prof. Dr. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director

Company Secretary
Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon

The Authorised Directors

The authorized directors are Mr.Noravat Suwarn, Mr.Min Intanate, Ms.Chamaiporn Apikulvanich, and Mr.Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont.

Any two signatures of the four directors with the company’s seal shall bind the company.
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Director Meeting and Non-Executive Committee Meeting Attendance for the year 2017

Board of Director Meeting

Non-Executive Committee Meeting

Director name Total Meeting Director Meeting Total Meeting  Non-Executive Committee

(times) Attendance (times) (times) Meeting Attendance (times)
1 Mr. Noravat Suwarn 4 4 1 1
2 Mr. Min Intanate® 4 4 - -
3 Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont 4 4 1 1
4 Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich* 4 4 - -
5 Dr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng 4 4 1 1
6 Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon* 4 3 -
7  Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 4 4 1 1
8 Ms. Manida Zinmerman 4 2 1 1
9 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 4 2 1 -
10 Asst. Prof. Dr. Karndee Leopairote 4 2 1 1

* Executive Committee

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand, the objectives of the

company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of shareholders’ meetings, all with the aim to protect

the interests of the company. A summary of the duties are as follows:

1.
2.

134

The Board of Directors shall hold an annual general shareholders’ meeting within four months after the last day of each fiscal year.
The Company had arranged Board of Director meetings at least 1 time per 3 months and also arranged non-executive director meeting at
least 1 time per a year. Therefore, in 2017, the company had arranged non-executive director 1 time on 12th May 2017.

The Board of Directors shall prepare the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income as at the last date of the
fiscal year for reporting to the shareholders in Annual General Meeting for their consideration and approval.

As deem appropriate, the Board of Directors may designate any director(s) or any person as their proxy to act on behalf of the Board on
specific issues for a period of time under the Board supervision. The Board may change, amend or cancel the proxy whenever it deems
appropriate.

The Board of Directors may assign their proxy to Executive Committee to perform certain activities. However, the proxy shall limit the
authorized person(s) not to make decision on any transaction that may have any conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiaries,
except for the transactions which are already or under guidelines approved by the Board.

The Board has approved Level of Authorization for delegation of authority at various levels, with clear approval framework and process.
Some key areas are:

e For financial investment, loan / fund from financial institution over THB 20 million must be submitted to the Board for approval.

e For Joint Venture institution over THB 35 million must be submitted to the Board for approval.**

e For purchasing and procurement of goods and service including fixed asset for operating according to the approved budget (recognition
of expenses): expenditure over THB 20 million must be submitted to the Board for approval.

e For man power of the year must be submitted to the Board for approval.

The Board of Directors shall determine the company’s target, policy, business plan and budget and supervise the management of the Executive
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Committee to ensure that they are in line with the company’s policy, with an exception for the following matters which require the
approval of shareholders: a capital increase, capital reduction, debenture issuance, disposal or transfer of the business or a significant
part of there to other parties, the purchase or transfer of other businesses, and an amendment of Memorandum of Association or
Articles of Association.
The Board of Directors shall ensure the company complies with regulations of the SEC and SET, i.e. connected transactions, the
disposal or acquisition of assets, etc.

6. The Board of Directors shall determine the management structure, appoint of the Executive Committee, Chief Executive Officer,
and members of other Committees.
The Board of Directors shall monitor the company’s performance in comparison to the business plan and budget.
Director(s) shall not engage in any business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company or become a partner
in an ordinary partnership or become a director of a private company or any other company operating a business which is similar
or in competition with the business of the company, unless he or she notifies the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting prior
to the resolution of his or her appointment.

9. A director shall notify the company without delay if there is a conflict of interest, whether directly or indirectly interest in any
contract which is made by the company; or holds shares or debentures of the company or an affiliated company, and shall indicate
any increase or decrease in the number of the director’s total number of shares.

** Approved by the Board of Directors on February 14, 2018.

Executive Committee

No. Executive Committee Positions
1 Mr. Min Intanate Executive Chairman

2 Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Chief Executive Officer

3 Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Chief Operating Officer

4 Ms. Kanyapan ~ Buranarom Chief Financial Officer

5 Ms. Intira Inturattana Chief Data Officer

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

The duties of the Executive Committee are to manage the company according to strategies and policies set by the Board including the
determination of policy, business plan, budget, management structure and overall management of the company. The Executive Committee
is to report the plan to the Board for its consideration and/or approval and also monitor the company’s performance in accordance with

the policies. The Executive Committee’s duties are summarized as following:

1. Prepare and propose annual budget to the Board of Directors. In urgent case, the Executive Committee shall consider and approve
any changes of annual budget and shall report to the Board in the next Board meeting.

2. Approve the expenditures under the authority of the company (Level of Authorization) that have been approved by the Board of Directors.
Approve major investment as contained in the annual budget that are assigned or approved by the Board of Directors.

Provide advice to management in respect of financial, marketing, human resource management, and others.

The Executive Committee has the authority to make decisions relating to any normal business transaction of the company, which do
not include approval of transactions which may cause a conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiary (if any) according to the
SET’s regulations. The Executive Committee is required to obtain approval from the Board or Shareholders for connected transactions
in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association or relevant laws, except for normal business transactions already covered by
existing guidelines approved by the Board.
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited approved the appointment of an Audit Committee on 24 October
2003. The Audit Committee consists of Directors with qualifications specified by Securities and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee

currently consists of four (4) Independent Directors, at least one of whom shall possess qualifications in accounting and finance.

No. Audit Committee Position Other positions

1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas * Chairman of Audit Committee Independent Director, Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Audit Committee Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Audit Committee Independent Director
| Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Audit Committee Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

* Audit Committee with qualifications in finance and accounting

The Audit Committee’s secretary

Ms. Tida Limthongvirat Senior Internal Audit Manager

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. To review the company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

2. To review the company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and efficient, to determine
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an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the chief of internal audit

unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit;

3. To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, and the laws relating to
the company’s business;

4. To consider, select, lay off nominate an independent person to be the company’s auditor, and to propose such person’s remuneration,
as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year;

5. To review the connected transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they are in compliance
with the Securities and Exchange Act, and are reasonable and for the highest benefit of the company;

6. To prepare, and to disclose in the company’s annual report, an Audit Committee’s report this must be signed by the Audit Committee’s

Chairman and contain of at least the following information:

e An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report,

e An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system,

e An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, or the laws relating to the
company’s business,

e An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

e An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

e The number of the Audit Committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee member,

e An opinion or overview comment received by the Audit Committee from its performance of duties in accordance with the charter,

and

136




ANNUAL REPORT 2017

e Other transactions which, according to the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders and general investors,

subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

7. To perform any other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit Committee. In the case that the

Audit Committee’s duties are changed, the company shall report on a resolution to change their duties, and shall prepare a list and

scope of work of the Audit Committee according to such change in the form as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

(SET). Such list and scope of work must be submitted to the SET within 3 (three) business days from the date on which the change

is made in accordance with the procedures under the SET’s regulations relating to reporting via an electronic media.

Audit Committee Meeting Attendance for the year 2017

No. Audit Committe Total Meeting (times)
1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 4
9 Ms. Manida Zinmerman 4
3 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 4
4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote 4

Meeting Attendance (times)

4
2
2
2

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Under the resolution of the Board of Directors of BOL on 13 November 2014, the company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee

is set up by appointing the qualified directors consists of 4 directors as follow;

No. Nomination and Remuneration Committee Position

1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

3 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Member of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee
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Other positions

Independent Director

Chairman of Audit Committee
Independent Director n
Audit Committee

Independent Director

Audit Committee

Independent Director

Audit Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s secretary

Ms. Tida Limthongyvirat Senior Internal Audit Manager

Duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The committee is to nominate and consider remuneration as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The committee’s duty and responsibilities are:
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1. Nomination

1.1 Setting guidelines and policies in nominating Board of Directors and other sub-committee members by considering what would be
the appropriate number, structure and composition of members, and outlining necessary directors’ qualifications, and proposing these
ideas for approval by the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders’ Meeting as appropriate.

1.2 Searching, selecting and proposing appropriate persons to assume the position of the Board of Directors whose terms have expired
and/or became vacant, including newly appointed director.

1.3 Executing other tasks related to nominations as assigned by the Board of Directors.

2. Remuneration

2.1 Preparing guidelines and policies in determining the Board of Directors and other sub-committees’ remuneration, and proposing it
to the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders’ Meeting for approval as appropriate.

2.2 Determining necessary and appropriate monetary and non-monetary remuneration, for individual members of the Board of Directors
by taking into consideration each director’s duties and responsibilities and performance. The report will be submitted to the Board
of Directors for consent and to the Shareholders” Meeting for approval.

2.3 Being responsible for any other tasks related to the remuneration as assigned by the Board of Directors.

3. Criterion and process for nomination and appointment

The company will be highly recognised of nomination and appointment of director. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will
consider the qualification of new directors as comply with the related regulations as required by The Public Limited Company Act,
Securities and Exchange Act B.E 2535 and the regulation of the company. They will be judged on the basis of Board Diversity, gender,
level of education, specialized expertise, skill, experience, and visionary leader which is beneficial to the company including have the
moral and ethics. This criterion is a policy on Board Diversity and also uses Board Skill Matrix to define and find the qualification that
Board of Director may be lacking, also find the appropriate qualification with Board of Director’s structure and company’s business
strategy. For nomination the existing director will additional consider the past performance as Director, giving useful suggestions and

comments that are beneficial to the company’s operation with transparency and ensuring to shareholders.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Attendance for the year 2017

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Total Meeting (times) NRC Meeting Attendance (times)
1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 1 1
2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman 1 1
3 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 1 1
4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote 1 -

The definition of Independent Director

The company has defined the “Independent Director” in accordance with the requirement set by the SEC and SET, as follows:
An Independent Director is a director who independently provides opinions to the Board of Directors, as follows:

1. Holds shares but not exceed 1 percent of the company paid-up capital.

2. Does not take part in the management of the company, or its subsidiaries.

3. Is independent from the management and shareholders who have the authority in the company.

4

Is not a related person or close relative of any management member or majority shareholder of the company or the authority person.
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5. Does not have any significant business relation with the company which may refrain from providing or expressing his/her independent
opinions.
6. Is not an employee, staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary from the company during the 2 year period before

becoming an independent director.

Remuneration for Directors and Management

Director’'s Remuneration

Monetary Remuneration (Baht)

Name Fosition Year 2017 Year 2016

Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board 4,571,884.00  4.,381,080.00

Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director 340,000.00 345,000.00

Dr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng  Director 100,000.00 100,000.00

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee 987,000.00 992,000.00
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee 575,000.00 575,000.00
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee 575,000.00 585,000.00
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Asst.Prof. Dr. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee 570,000.00 580,000.00
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Total 7,718,884.00  7,558,080.00

Criteria and procedures for director’'s remuneration

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had considered the duties of Board of Directors and the responsibilities including type,
how to pay and the amount of remuneration in compliance of the responsibilities, the intention of Board of Directors, type and size of
business, commercial market and the competitors. The remuneration must be in the appropriate to retain the quality directors within the

Company. Type of the remuneration is monthly retainer, meeting allowance, and other benefits.

However, the criteria of remuneration of top management had been considered by Executive Chairman and the company’s performance

including compliance with the responsibilities of top management.

Remark: The meeting allowance of year 2017.
e The Board of Director meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance.
e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance.

e None of other benefits.
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Executive Committee’s Remuneration

The overall remuneration for Executive Committee and the Directors who involve with management will be received in forms of

salaries and bonus.

Year 2017
Total 5 persons total amount

15.01 Million Baht

Other Remuneration

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Year 2016
Total 5 persons total amount

14.53 Million Baht

The company contributes to the provident fund for the management.

Year 2017
Total 5 persons total amount

0.52 Million Baht

Year 2016
Total 5 persons total amount

0.50 Million Baht

In the year 2017 Directors, Executives and Employees exercised ESOP warrant (In May and November 2017) as detail below:-

May

No. of person

No. of Shares

No. of person

No. of Shares

Directors, Executives 2 130,000 11 12,875,000
Employees 5 554,000 13 11,716,750
Total 7 684,000 24 24,591,750

The detail of ESOP warrants:-

Numbers of Warrants under ESOP warrants

Number of Ordinary Shares in reserve for the ESOP warrants
Date of issuance and offering

Exercise ratio

Exercise price

Term

Number of expired warrants

Total the capital increase for the year 2017

Paid-up Registered Capital for the year 2017

Registered Capital

Remaining Register Capital

140

38,500,000 units
38,500,000 shares

19 May 2014

1 warrant: 1 ordinary share
1.75 Baht per share

4 years from the warrant issuing date
5,494,500 units
2,527,575.00 Baht
82,050,5650.00 Baht
82,600,000.00 Baht
549,450.00 Baht
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

The company sees the importance of good governance and has put appropriate monitoring process in place while instilling the value

of business ethics in dealing with our customers, partners, competitors, members of the public and our staffs.

We believe that good corporate governance policy, which consists of competent management, qualified and accountable directors,
mechanism of checks and balances for transparency and auditable operations, respect for the rights of all shareholders, and equitable
treatment for all stakeholders are the key factors in maximizing the economic value of the company and increasing the sustainable

long-term return on investment to our shareholders.

The Board of Directors aims to manage the company by using the corporate governance policies in order to operate the company with

efficiency while achieving the company’s objectives. The corporate governance policies can be divided into 5 categories as follow:

I. Rights of Shareholders

Il. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

lll. The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders
IV. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

V. Responsibilities of Board of Directors
I. Rights of Shareholders

1. Shareholders including institutional investors are the owners of the company. They control the company through the appointment of
the Board of Directors to serve their interests in making significant decisions for the company. Therefore the company should
encourage shareholders to exercise their rights.

2. Fundamental rights of shareholders including institutional investors:

e Trade or transfer shares, receive share certificates, and have the rights to access, obtain relevant and adequate information,
operational results, and management policies in the timely manner and on a regular basis.

e Have the rights to receive dividends.

e Participate and vote in the shareholder meetings to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint the external auditors, including
all of remunerations and make decisions on any transactions that affect the company such as dividends payment, making
amendments to the memorandum of association, capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.

e Shareholders including institutional investors should be fully informed of the criteria and procedures governing shareholders
meetings that include sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided in each agenda. This should be provided in
advance of the meeting. Shareholders should be able to query directors both in the meeting and by sending their questions in
beforehand. They should also be allowed to propose an agenda and vote by proxy.

o The Board of Directors must recognize shareholders rights and avoid any actions that violate those rights.

e The company had invited legal advisor to be the inspector for counting process

3. The company sent out the notification of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to all shareholders and all regulatory
institutions. It contains the date, time, venue and details of the agenda with precise and sufficient facts and reasons as well as clear
and adequate comments provided by the Board of Directors and relevant Committees. Also enclosed were the registration process
and list of documents required to present to officers prior to attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, both in person
and by proxy. Furthermore, the company also provided duty stamp service. In this respect, the company set non-complicated
conditions for proxy appointment. In this regard, the company neither added any agenda nor changed any significant information

without prior notice to the shareholders.
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4. Chairman of the Board shall attend the meeting to answer shareholders’ queries or appoint other directors or managers to elaborate
on the answers in greater detail.

5. Subsequent to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the summary of meeting and voting results of each agenda was proposed
to the Chairman of the Board and all members of the Audit Committee for review of the correctness and completeness. The company
expressed gratitude to all shareholders for exercising their rights and entrusting the company’s directors with their proxies. The
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on an accurate and complete basis was submitted on https://www.BOL.co.th within
14 days of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date.

6. The company has a dividend policy to all shareholders as shareholder’s rights and the equal treatment.

Shareholder Voting Rights for the Selection of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be appointed by shareholders in Annual General Meeting according to the following procedures:

1. Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.

EE 2. Each shareholder shall cast his/her vote for one or more candidates for Board membership but shall not divide his/her voting rights
amongst more than one candidate.

3. The persons receiving the highest number of votes in respective order shall be appointed as Directors. In the event that a number
of persons receive an equal number of votes for the last directorship, resulting in the number of Directors being more than is required

at such time, the Chairman of the meeting shall have the deciding vote.
Il. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
1. The company encourages shareholders to exercise their legal rights, such as rights to receive their share of profits in the form

dividends, rights to freely transfer the company’s stock, rights to access the company’s news and information, rights to attend and

vote in the shareholders” meetings under the policy relating to the equitable and fair treatment to shareholders.
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2. Shareholders shall receive necessary information from the company that is sufficient, fair and timely, and the company shall not

display bias towards any one group of shareholders by providing them with information that have not been made public.

In the shareholders” meetings, the shareholders shall be treated with fairness.

The notification of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders was issued both in Thai and English, dispatched together with the
annual report in 14 days prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date and published on the company’s website more
than 30 days prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date. The company respects the right of all shareholders equally
and responsible for taking care of shareholder’s interest by complying with laws and regulations.

5. The company encourages all shareholders and institutional shareholders who cannot vote in person to vote by proxy. The company
has provided proxy forms to be used as appropriate for shareholders. In order to facilitate the proxy, the company has provided
an independent director to act on behalf for shareholders.

The company arranged to provide 3 types of Proxy Form, similar to those set by the Department of Business Development, Ministry
of Commerce, for shareholders. In addition, the company explained in detail how a shareholder can assign his/her rights as a
shareholder to a proxy in writing, as an attachment to the letter of meeting invitation.

6. The company uses voting cards for all agenda items in the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In addition, for accurate and
timely report, the company uses technology of barcode system and electronic PDAs for registration and vote-counting.

7. The company has mechanisms to prevent insider trading in order to protect fraud and the leak of information.
The company shall comply with the law on securities and exchanges, regulations, announcements and notifications issued by the SEC

as well as requirements on the disclosure of related party transactions, acquisition or disposition of important assets of the company or

its subsidiaries. The company shall consider the conflict of interest issue with care, fair and transparent. The disclosure of information
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is with completeness. Moreover, the company has taken measures to prevent wrongful use of inside information (Insider Trading) of

individuals involved, such as Directors, executives and employees as well as their spouses and immature children. The company also

imposes penalties on disclosing of company’s information or using the information for personal benefit according to Anti Insider Trading

Policy. Also Board of Directors informs the directors and top managements to notify Company Secretary (Appointed by Board of

Directors) at least one day before trading the securities.

4.1

The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders

The Board of Directors must be aware of the rights of stakeholders as stipulated by law, and should support cooperation between
the company and stakeholders in the creation of prosperity, employment and activities with a sustainable financial status. The Board
of Directors shall be sure that the rights of stakeholders are being protected and practiced.

The Board of Directors must take into account the benefits received and given by stakeholders in generating competitiveness and
profits for the company.

Caring deeply about the community and the environment, the company encourages employees and customers to be concerned about
environment protection through a “rethink, reduce, recycle” lifestyle. The company continuously operates projects and activities with
strategies to conserve energy, reduce waste, save the wildlife and the environment and increase participation in the local communities.
The company recognizes the rights of all parties, and issue policies concerning the stakeholders right to reassure the shareholders,
employees, customers, business partners, creditors, competitors, including public and society they are suitably benefited from the
company’s operations and must encourage the collaboration of these parties to ensure a stable future of the company this is fair for

all the parties concerned.

Shareholders
The company determines to be a good representative of shareholders in carrying out the business in order to maximize shareholder

satisfaction with regards to sustainable long term growth while disclosing transparent and reliable information.

4.2 Employees

All members of staff are valuable assets and a critical factor for success, so the company must place emphasis on developing and
promoting a good culture and working atmosphere, teamwork, courtesy, and respect for individuality. The employment, promotion
and transfer of all staff members shall be conducted in a fair manner based on ethical standards whilst maximizing human resource
utilization along with to support staff for knowledge development, potential, career development. The company is responsible for
implementing and maintaining a safe working environment to protect the lives and property of all of our employees, no disaster or

stop working statistics. The company must also strictly adhere to employment law.

4.3 Customers

Customer satisfaction and consumer confidence are very important to the company. The company aims to provide high quality
goods and services at reasonable prices, and maintain good relationships with our customers. The company has thus determined the
following guidelines:
® Products and Services
The company shall provide high quality products and services, while continuously improving their standards. Meanwhile, we
aim to disclose all of the information that is related to the products with integrity.

e Confidentiality of Customers’ Information

Directors, management, and staff members at all levels shall not disclose any information on customers without prior permission
from those customers or authorized personnel of any company in the Group. The only exception to this is information requested
by law enforcement officers in accordance with the law. In addition, the company recognizes the importance of keeping

customers’ information confidential, systematic, safety and prevents wrongful use of information.
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* Suggestions
The company provided the business unit continuously seek customer feedback through various channels including customer

satisfactions surveys, analysis of comments and market surveys.

4.4 Business Partners and Creditors

The company’s dealings with any business partner shall be conducted in a manner that upholds the reputation of the company and all
relevant laws. The company does not support partners with unethical business practices, illegal actions, corruption, intellectual
property or human rights violations. All company personnel must be aware of the common interests of the company’s business
partners and treat them equitably. The company determines clear policy and guidelines for business partners selection with fairness.

The company shall also consider its business partners to be the key factor in jointly creating a value chain for customers.

Treatment of Creditors, the company is committed to conducting business with the principles and discipline to establish a trust
for the creditors. The company adheres the contract or the terms of the agreed requirements. In case of non-compliance with the

conditions agreed to. The company will notify the creditors in order to jointly find solutions.

4.5 Competitors

The company has a policy of free and fair competition and will not try to monopolize the industry. The company will not force
its business partners to distribute only the company’s products. The company shall not acquire information on its competitors by

any illegal or unethical methods.

4.6 Responsibility to Society and the Environment

144

The company is aware that it is a Thai company and has a responsibility to Thailand and Thai society. The company is committed
to making a contribution to society by supporting activities of public interest and cooperating with the communities in which those

activities are located under the company’s CSR policy.

The company supports whistle blower service and also has process to handle any misconducts including ensure fairness and protect
employees who are reporter. They can request information, complain or report any misconducts relating to financial reports, internal
control system, human rights or business ethics by sending an e-mail to independent directors or Chairman of Audit Committee

through e-mail: bolwhistleblowing(@bol.co.th posted on the company’s website.

The company has anti-corruption policy and do not pay bribes to the business interests of the company including risk assessment,
procedures on the supervision and control to prevent and monitor and evaluate the risk of anti-corruption. The company assigns
Human Resources Department to support the procedures of anti-corruption policy including train all level of employees have awareness

of the anti-corruption.

. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

The company encourages disclosure of information with correctness, completeness, transparency and financial information/reports,
operational results, and other related information in a timely manner, in order for investors and all relevant parties to use these
information when making decisions to trade via distribution channels and media of SET (Stock Exchange of Thailand) and Security
and Exchange Commission which may include websites of companies, annual report, annual information report (56-1), and e-mail:
ir@bol.co.th, investor relations function to publicize the information to shareholders and investors that provide security trading

services while providing information in Thai and English.
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2. The company provides a summary of the Corporate Governance Policy approved by its Board of Directors through various channels
such as the annual report and website.

3. The company provides a statement of the Board’s responsibilities concerning the company’s financial report. This statement is
presented alongside the auditor’s report in the company’s the Financial Statements (56-1) and annual report (56-2). The company
submitted the financial statements within the submission deadline and no corrections were required for these financial statements
by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

4. The company disclosed the list of the Board of Independent Directors, Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
and Audit Committees, Remuneration, the Number of Total Meeting Attendant, the Number of Director Meeting Attendance in
previous year, Directors’ History in the Annual Registration Statement (Form 56-1) and the Annual Report (Form 56-2).

5. The company provides the Investor Relations Department with the key mandate of managing investor relations-related duties and
activities, in particular, the disclosure of both financial and non-financial information under the governing disclosure and transparency
policy. This information includes comparative financial performance and status, current operations, ability to compete in the industry
and future plans and policies.

6. The company disclosed the information of Directors and Executives’ shareholding and interest transaction in the Board of Directors’
Meeting quarterly to report the company’s stock trading transaction of Directors and Executives.

The company disclosed the information of shareholder structure and Directors and Executives’ shareholding.
8. The company has hired an auditor who is independent and qualified to be recognized as an auditor. By auditors such as auditors

have been approved by the SEC. and revealed the other audit fee that paid to the auditor.

V. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Structure of the Board

1.1 The company’s Board of Directors comprises of 10 directors who specialize in various aspects of business. The Board of Directors’

structure is as follows:

e Three Executive Directors who represent 30 % of the Board.

e Seven non-Executive Directors who represent 70% There are four independent directors which represent 40% of the Board (over
one-third) who meet the qualifications under the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Securities and Exchange Commission’ regulations.

1.2 The Board of Directors has a policy which states that Chairman and Managing Director must not be the same person in order to
separate their responsibilities between policy setting, supervision and management of operation and in order to check and balance
each other.

1.3 The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider the qualifications of candidates through transparent and
pre-selection procedures and propose to the Board. The candidates selected by the Board will be included in the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders agenda for shareholders’ approval. All directors’ information including experience, qualifications, history
and shareholding in the company will disclosed in the annual report, which is disclosed on the company’s website.

1.4 Directors can take a position as director of listed companies for maximum of five. In addition, the role shall not impede the duties
of director and have no conflict of interest.

1.5 At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of the directors shall retire. If one-third is not a round number, the
number closet thereto shall be the applicable number. The directors to vacate office within the first and second year following
company registration shall draw lots. In subsequent years, the directors serving the longest shall resign. The directors who vacate
office are eligible for re-election by shareholders.

1.6 The Board of Directors shall consider qualifications for Independent Director basing on qualifications and prohibitions according
to the Public Limited Companies Act, Securities and Stock Exchange Laws, Notifications of SEC and/or related rules and

regulations. (According to page 138)
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1.7 The Board of Directors has assigned Corporate Secretary to be in charge of the following responsibilities;

Stipulate the Board of Directors shall comply with the Code of Best Practices for directors of listed company under the guidelines
of the SET. The Board must understand and be aware of their roles and responsibilities as well as carry out their assignment
in accordance with law, objectives, regulations of the company

Advise the rules and regulations related to the directors’ duties and responsibilities

Prepare and file Board and shareholders’ documents which are the directors’ registration records, notices of Board and
shareholders” meetings, minutes of Board and shareholders’ meetings, and the company’s annual report quarterly financial reports
Held the Shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting in accordance with law, regulations of the company and
the Code of Best Practices

Record the Shareholders” meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting and disclose the essence of the meeting resolutions
Provide and store directors’ registration, the annual report, the notice of Shareholders’ meeting, the notice of the Board of
Directors” meeting, the Shareholders” meeting report and the Board of Directors” meeting report

Disclose the information of the conflict of interest issue with care, fair and transparent with completeness. The Directors and
Executives including their related person have to report their possible related transaction according to the form of reporting
File reports on the conflict of interest of directors and management

Disclose information includes agenda and important details for shareholders, investors and public with the laws and regulations
Communicate to shareholders for right of all shareholders equally and responsible for taking care of shareholders’ interest.
Shareholder has rights to make decision on important policies and has rights to access information accurately and adequately
Administer other activities as directed

Monitor and evaluate performance of the management and operation teams, report progress of the management and operation
to the Board of Directors on regular basis

Coordinate between the Board of Directors and Executives.

2. Sub - Committee

The company arranged to set up a sub-committee, which is the Audit Committee to assist the Board in monitoring the work of each

director.

2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a part of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Audit Committee who has been appointed by Board of Director

and shareholders consists of 3 person, one of whom must possess qualifications in accounting and finance (as of 31 December 2017,

the company consists of four persons). Their qualifications comply with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand with regards

to independence. There must be a chief of Internal Audit Department who will also act as a secretary to the Audit Committee. The

Audit Committee has the following duties and authorities.

Qualifications of Audit Committee members

e Any Audit Committee member and his or her related person shall hold not over 1 percent of the paid-up capital of the company,

companies within the group, partner companies and related companies.

e Audit committee shall be directly and indirectly independent from the company’s financial operations and management. This

extends to companies within the same group and its subsidiaries. The committee shall not hold such interests for the period of 1 year

prior to their appointment with the exception that the Board of Directors has decided that such interests do not affect the committee’s

independent views.
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e Audit Committee members shall not be appointed to act as representatives to take care of interests of major shareholders or others
related to the major shareholders.

e Audit committee members shall not be involved in the company administration, and shall not be employees, staff or consultants
who receive a regular monthly salary from the company, companies in a group, partner companies, related companies or the company’s
major shareholders.

e Audit committee members shall not be involved with, or the close relatives of, the company’s executives or major shareholders.

e Audit Committee members must be able to provide comments or assessment of the work delegated by the company’s Board of

Directors, without being under control of the executives or major shareholders of the company, including their relatives.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee (According to page 136)

Duration of Office

Members of the Audit Committee shall remain in office for two years, including additional appointments and withdrawals from the
Audit Committee. Members of the Audit Committee whose term in office has expired may be re-appointed. Resignation from the Audit
Committee, member(s) of the audit committee shall submit his (her) letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board of Directors
at least 30 days in advance. The Board of Directors shall approve resignations and send copies of resignation letters to the Stock

Exchange of Thailand.

It a directorship of the Audit Committee becomes vacant for any reason other than by rotation, the Directors shall appoint a person
with all the necessary qualifications to replace the resigned person. The appointed person shall remain in office only for the remaining

term of office of the person whom they are replacing, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand shall be notified accordingly.

Audit committee meetings

e The Audit Committee shall hold meetings once every each quarter to deliberate the quarterly budget and other issues in accordance
with Audit framework. The Chairman of the Audit Committee may call for meetings in special instances to deliberate issues that
are necessary or urgent as deemed appropriate.

e In calling a meeting of the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, or the secretary of the Audit Committee through
the order of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, shall send a letter to the members of the Audit Committee no less than seven
days prior to the date of the meeting. An exception may be made in urgent circumstances, the meeting may be announced by other
means or scheduled for an earlier suitable period.

e The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall report the minutes of the meeting to the Board of Directors on the following day.

o The secretary of the Audit Committee shall not have the right to vote.
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2.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter

The NRC is to be appointed by the Board of Directors company’s committee or management has to comprise of not less than three persons,

being the Company’s directors and executives by at least half of the total number of NRC’s members must be independent directors.

Term of Office and Retirement

e The NRC’s member has the office term of two (2) years. The NRC’s members who complete the term of office may be reappointed.

e In case of vacancy of the NRC’s members due to the reason other than the expiration of the term, the Board of Directors shall
appoint a director who is good qualified to fill in the vacancy to serve the remaining term of the position

e If any member of NRC’s members wishes to resign before the end of the term, the company shall be notified in advance, not less

than 30 days, in order for the Board of Directors to consider replacing the position

2.3 Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (According to page 136)

3. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

3.1 The Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand, the objectives of the
company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of shareholders’ meetings, all with the aim to
protect the interests of the company. A summary of the duties are as follows: (According to page 134)

3.2 Formulate a Good Corporate Governance in writing as it is a vital mechanism that can be led the company to effective and transparent
management by reviewing at least once a year.

3.3 Define the Code of Conduct and/or Corporate Business Ethics and support to practice in order to ensure that all employees are
aware of the rules including code of conduct and perform the duty properly. The company prescribes all new employees to train
during the orientation and revise for the current employees as well in order to raise awareness and moral and also evaluation process
for improvement. In addition, the company prepares the operating rules, discipline and regulations tests including Human Resource
policy by periodically testing if any rules are changed or revised. This results will be evaluated the level of awareness and knowledge
to improve the communication with the employee are thoroughly understood in Good Corporate Governance.

3.4 Arrange the Board of directors’ meeting to consider review and approve the company’s vision mission and strategic plan in every
year. Furthermore, The Board of Director has and monitored and supervised the company’s strategy into practice to comply with
the annual budget plan.

3.5 Ensure effectiveness Internal Controls, Internal Audit & Compliance procedures are in place.

3.6 Establish a formal risk management policy and procedure and reviews it annually in order to assess any negative impact of internal

and external risks to the company for the survival of business.

4. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The annual general meeting of shareholders will be organized and take place within 4 months after the end of company’s fiscal or
accounting year. There are also Board meetings every 3 months whose yearly schedule is announced in advance and special meetings can
be organized as necessary, The minimum of quorum directors as of resolution need to have no fewer than two in three of all member.
In addition, non-executive directors to meet among themselves and freely discuss and concerns without participation of the management.
To schedule a meeting of the Board of the Directors, Chairman of the Board of the Directors and Executive Chairman will consider
and approve agenda. The company secretary of the Board will then deliver letter of meeting invitation, agenda and related documents

to the directors at least 7 days in advance, to allow directors time to study the information before meeting.

The Chairman of the Board of the Directors acts as Chairman of Board of Directors meeting and shareholder’s meeting, and the role

of chairman is to allocation the appropriate time on each agenda for directors to discuss and express their opinion freely, especially on
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critical issues to achieve a fairly balanced benefit for shareholders and stakeholders. The Chairman will ensure that the management
presents relevant information to support the discussions. Also acts as leader of directors and be responsible to monitor Executive
Committee and sub-committee in order to achieve the objectives as planned. Moreover, the Chairman will be the casting votes in case

of two sides of directors are equal votes.

The company secretary will take note and prepare Minute of Meeting within 14 days. He or she will keep record of the minute of
meeting on file together with other reference documents as well as supporting the Board of the Directors to perform their duties in
compliance with laws, regulations and resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings. The company secretary will also coordinate with other

parties concerned.

5. Evaluation of Performance of the Board of Directors

5.1 The Board conducts Board Assessment by annually both in overall group and individual and the result will be considered by the
Board. Company Secretary will prepare self-assessment form which has the criteria as follows: Structure and characteristics of the
Board, Roles and responsibilities of the Board, Board Meeting, The Board’s performance of duties, Relationship with management,
Self-development of directors and executive development. All the result of assessment will inform the Board meeting to acknowledge
including the suggestions in order to develop effectiveness of director’s working and/or related sectors to achieve the maximum
benefit of good corporate governance. The Board has emphasis on well preparation of human resources development especially,
top management positions; Chief Executive Officer.

5.2 The directorship of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in other listed companies shall not hold up the CEO’s responsibilities as
the company’s CEO. However, in holding a director position in other listed companies, the CEO can contribute his/her experience

to other companies while at the same time applies the knowledge learned to the company.

6. Remuneration

6.1 The company has a policy to remunerate Directors and management team at an appropriated level which is sufficient to attract the
Directors and management team with the company.

6.2 The company has a policy to remunerate increasing to Directors who are assigned to be the Audit Committee at an appropriated level.

6.3 The remuneration of management team must comply with the principles and policies set by the Board of Directors, which is also
based on obligations, responsibilities and performance of each management as well as the operating results of the company.

6.4 The remuneration is at comparative rates when compare to other companies’ remuneration within the same industry. Factors to be
considered include experiences, duties, roles and responsibilities of the Directors. Moreover, the remuneration of the Directors must

be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

7. Development of the Board and Executives

7.1 The company encourages and facilitates training for the New Directors by providing the Board’s handbook. Training and site visit
to the Company and Subsidiaries are introduced. Directors are entitled to acknowledge and sign the Business Code of Conduct
before commencing his/her function.

7.2 The company also encourages taking outside training courses and sitting for certification exam in order to develop specific skills

in their profession continuously. This would improve competitiveness of the company.

8. Succession Plan
The Board of Directors has planned the succession plan of top management positions of company. The Investors, Organization including
employees can be trust that the company’s business will be continued timely, if the important positions are vacant. The Human Resources

Department will be authorized to consider the criterion of succession plan and revise this plan annually.
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Supervision the Operation of subsidiary and affiliated companies

The Board of Directors of the company has always put a strong emphasis on the good corporate governance as it a vital mechanism
that can be lead the subsidiary and affiliated companies to effective and transparent management in taking of company’s investment.
The Board of Directors will be appointed as members to the Board of Directors or Executives, in proportion to the number of shares
held by the company. As a representative of the company, the director(s) will receive policy mandates from the company for the control

or supervision of the subsidiary and affiliated companies.

In the case of an affiliated company, the company conducts business in compliance with “The Principle of Good Corporate Governance”
such as accurate, complete and transparent information disclosure of affiliated company’s financial information and related parties
transactions, purchasing of assets or other important transactions, employ the suitable accounting policy that suits the business and in

u accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standard, and keep accounting documents as required by laws and regulations.

Employee of the Company and Subsidiary

z
E Management 4
g Sales & Marketing 17
= Customer Service
= Product & Business Development
3 Data & Information Operation 15
&« Software Development & Data Management 23
E Network and Security Management
2 News Online
Data Center 10
Internal Audit 3
Special Project & Data Quality Management 14

Business Analyst

Accounting, Finance and Credit Control

Human Resource

Administrative 12
Total 136

Total employees of BOL Year 2017 Year 2016

Total employees as of 31 December (persons) 136 143

Employee of the Company and Subsidiary BOL Subsidiary (D&B TH)  Subsidiary (BOL Digital)

Total employees as of 31 December (persons) 136 24 11 171
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Compensation for Employees

L Year 2017 Year 2016
Salaries and Bonuses (Baht) 101,641,925.70 91,443,828.41
Provident Fund (Baht) 2,593,498.25 2,320,517.00
Welfare

e Physical Check Up

e Group life insurance (consist of life insurance, accident insurance and health insurance)

e Social Security

e Provident Fund

e Marriage Allowance

e Funeral Allowance

e Visit Maternity Allowance, Visiting Patient Allowance

e Performance Bonus

Human Resource Development Policy

The company places great emphasis on training and development of employees. The objectives are to develop specialised and technical
knowledge, skills and experience of employees. These knowledge are the cornerstone of human development, allowing them perform
assignments effectively and prepare the employees towards their career goals. This process will, in turn, strengthen operations of the
company. New employees are provided with orientation programs that cover information about the company. It also provide sales skill
training including customer service techniques and techniques for creating better experience for customers and product knowledge and
demonstrations including knowledge on product innovation from the company’s business partners. In addition, the company stresses the

importance of follow up on development and evaluate employees’ performance in light of the established goals and objectives, in order
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to set compensation, including salary, bonus and equity and non-equity incentive compensation and creating the employees’ loyalty in Em

long-term. The company recognises the importance of improving on employees’ performance and enhances their efficiency by providing

the training programs to develop specific skills in their professional continuously. Regarding this, the company has set up policy on

management decentralisation and giving the importance on the company’s unit/staff coordination effectively.

Legal Disputes Over the Past Three Years

None.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors and Executive Committee have continuously emphasised on the importance of the internal control system in
order to have an adequate internal control system suitable for the company’s business operation to achieve the highest management

efficiency as well as taking care of property, reducing mistakes and waste that might occur to the company, managing finance and
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risk, managing and keeping security of data and information technology system, and supervising the performance and compliance with

rules and regulations of authorities agencies to ensure that company’s operations would be able to achieve the objectives and create the

highest additional value in the long-term. The evaluation of internal control system could be summarized as follows:

1. Control Environment

1.1 The company clearly set its business operation goals which were reviewed by the Board of Directors. The goals are assessed and
used as employees’ jobs guidelines.

1.2 The company clearly and functionally designed its organisational structure and chains of command together with assignment,
authority and responsibilities in writing. All employees are to possess the perception concerning roles, authority, duty, and responsibility.

1.3 The company has set up an anti-corruption policy and whistle blowing mechanism to ensure that directors, executives and staff
can perform their duties with transparency, proper, just, and check and balance under good governance.

1.4 The company emphasised the importance of honesty and ethics in doing business by setting policies and regulations in writing.
The Code of Ethics are classified as follow.
1.4.1 Business Ethics
1.4.2 Code of Conduct for Executives
1.4.3 Code of Conduct for Employees
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2. Risk Evaluation

The management identified risks from internal and external factors which might have negative impact on the achievement of organisational

objectives. The company analysed and managed risks to ensure that its operations are in line with the set goals.

3. Control Activities

The company has effective, suitable, and adequate control activities as follows: setting policies and regulations on working in writing;
reviewing financial reports and non-financial performance reports by the management and the Audit Committee so that both teams can
monitor each other; imposing scope of authority and the level of authorized and delegation financial in writing; preparing supporting
documents that aids the delegation of duties to relevant divisions and persons to ensure that the risk management system, internal
control system, and business supervision process of the company were sufficiently and efficiently provided in accordance with the

company’s objectives.

4. Information Technology and Communication

The company continuously develops its information technology system and data system and sufficiently made various important data to be
used in making decisions. The minutes and opinion of the meetings of the committee were summarized, classified and filed accordingly.
Account entry was made in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles to fit the company’s business characteristics.
Moreover, the company had the information technology system to facilitate its works, financial and operation result reports, compliance
with the policy and regulations used in controlling and carrying out the organisation’s activities to ensure that the information technology

and communication, both inside and outside the organisation, enabled the organisation to achieve its objectives and goals.

5. Monitoring and Assessment

The company’s performance monitoring and assessment system has been, consistently, followed by the Board of Directors. The annual
actual operation results are in line with the set target and meet the company’s goals. The Board of Directors has delegated the Audit
Committee to review the company’s internal control system to ensure sufficient and appropriate internal control for efficient business
operation, and to report to the Board of Directors and shareholders. The company’s Audit Committee independently conducts inspection,
reviews financial statements, reviews risks and legal compliance, expresses opinions without conflicts of interest, reviews and supervises

the internal audit, and considers and proposes the annual auditor of the company.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that, presently, the company has sufficient internal control system and in line with the requirements
for internal control assessment of SET. The company has sufficient internal control system for business transactions with major shareholders

of the company, directors, executives or related persons, and misuses of company’s assets.
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MONITORING OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Directors has recognised the importance of preventing the company’s internal information against use for personal
benefits, and therefore made a policy to keep confidential information that have not been made available to the public. Such confidential

information shall only be disclosed to the parties concerned.

The company has advised executives of their duties to report on the company’s stocks held by them as well as their spouses and their
minor children, and to report changes to the Securities and Exchange Commission in section 59 and the penalty in section 275
according to the Act on Securities and Securities Exchange B.E. 2535. Moreover, the company prohibits directors, executives including
their spouses and their minor children from purchasing, selling, transferring, or taking transfer of, the company’s stock using internal
information not yet disclosed to the public, and from trading of stocks particularly during 1 month and to notify Company Secretary
(appointed by Board of Directors) at least one day before trading the securities before disclosure of financial statements to the public,
In the cases where directors, executives’ including their spouses and minor children purchase, sell, transfer, or taking transfer of the
company’s stocks do not fall under the above categories, all such transactions shall be reported to the Securities Exchange Commission
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand within three (3) working days of their occurrence. There are reports for the company’s stocks held

by directors and executives at the quarterly Board of Directors Meeting.

As for employees, the company includes this subject as a matter of ethics to be observed by employees. Employees must not use their

positions, duties and the company’s confidential information to seek benefits for themselves and related parties.

If any of the above persons are found to use the company’s internal information for their own benefits, the company shall deem that
such persons have committed a serious disciplinary offense and will be subjected to penalisation pursuant to the company’s Articles
of Association.

Appointment of External Auditors and Consideration of Audit Fees

The Audit Committee considers the qualifications and performance of external auditors for recommendation to the Board of Directors
for their annual appointment, and the proposed audit fees The auditor has been appointed which is approved by SEC for further
consideration and approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

In the year 2017, the remuneration for external auditors included:

1. Audit Fees

In 2017, the company has paid the auditing fee of 1.00 million Baht (not including professional service fee and other actual expense)
to EY Office (Thailand).

EY office (Thailand) and its appointed auditors has no relationship or any interest in the company, subsidiaries, executives and related

persons, which may have an impact on performing the task independently.
2. Non-Audit Fees

The company paid for professional service and other service fees totaling 0.20 million baht for the audit of the company’s annual

report and operating results in order to exercise corporate tax exemption as specified by the Board of Investment for the year 2017.
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LIST OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING PERSONS IN
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Company'’s Vision

To be the leader and internationally recognized provider of critical information, know-how, knowledge and services
through sophisticated applications and media, to empower individuals and organizations in making informed

decisions, devising proper business and development strategies and being competitive.
Mission

The objective of the company is to be the leader in provider of information, analytics and monitoring the data
to serve as tools in business decision making. The company has continuously developed and updated the existing
database and also developed the projects in searching the new information sources including developed online
computer system continuously. The company will add value to the information provided by expanding the analysis
and validate process in order to offer the maximum benefits to make timely decisions. The analysis will focus
on the overall reducing of overall risk and enhance more opportunities. Moreover, the company also has the
project to develop the database management system and the data business model in order to expand the market

to the overseas.

To create added value of the information as information provider company whose mission is to provide information
for customers to make timely, standardized and accurate decisions and enhance more opportunities through the

following aspects:
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e To provide the quality, complete and creditable data.

e Maintain high standard of the information security management.

Corporate Social Responsibility policy (CSR)

The company is aware how the organization to be sustainable growth it must have corporate social responsibility
policy. Therefore, the company has adopted CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) policy as the details:

Employees are confident of their job security and fair career progression.

Operating projects and activities with strategies to conserve energy and reduce waste.

Emoting customer satisfaction by delivering quality products and services at fair prices.

Not supporting any illegal use of products that violates property rights.

Exercising environmental stewardship of accepted standards and helping to improve the quality of life for

community and society.

The company has continuously communicated the CSR policy and the sustainability development to employees
through the internal communication channels. There are the orientation new employees, newsletter, information
board, e-mail, intranet web, and the meeting in order to raise awareness and understanding of the employees’
roles for social and public responsibility.




Stakeholders

How We Relate to Stakeholders
Stakeholders Expectation

1. Employees e Better quality of life

e To communicate information to

all employees

e Promoting capability building
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Response

e To develop the employees
e Compliance to labor legislation
and human rights

e Quality of working environment

Implement

Internal communication such
newsletter, information board,
intranet

Training inside and outside courses.

professionally o Fair benefits e To do activities in several occasion
e To do social service activities and
community development
e Provident Fund
2. Customers e Provide the quality products and e Develop service to meet each e Privacy policy
services customer’s need e Channel for customers’ complaints

e Meet the customers’ need

e Satisfaction of customers

e Security of information

e Immediate response to complaint

3. Partners, o Anti-Corruption

Competitors

e Operating business under the

strictly legal framework

Deal with partners who conduct
business with transparency
Procurement policy

Not accept all of bribe

Strictly comply to contractual

conditions with partners

4. Shareholders e Add value for shareholders

e Good operating performance,

continual growth

e Awareness of business trends

and investments

e Disclosure and transparency
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Annual General Meeting

Pay dividend
Disclosure information completely
on the company’s website and all

of release documents u

5. Community e Building a sustainable society by e Create and participate in social

growing the philosophy of social

responsibility

related activities to benefit the
communities and wider society

e Operate business sustainably and
add value to society

e Support education and community

development

Channels for customers’ complaints
Provide cooperation and support
for policies and activities which
benefit communities and society
overall

Cooperate with government sectors
Cooperate with social organization

to develop education
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Corporate Social Responsibility Reporting (CSR)

Business Online Public Company Limited specializes in developing database management system and risk management with the knowledge
of information technology. The company is leader of providing total service of business information; basic information service and the
company’s performance including news service, analyzing and verifying the data for being the reliable tool in business decision. The
objectives and commitment are providing the quality, reliable, creditable data through computer system and advanced technologies. The
company also has the efficiency method of security data. Therefore, the company got continuously the creditability and trust from the
customers that are the corporate group, organizations, leading banks and financial institutions. The aside from the conducting business
to drive the economy, the company has committed in Corporate Governance policy, truly adhering in ethical principle and awareness
in corporate social responsibility so the company engages in all sector of stakeholders both internal and external, and also support the

social benefits for Thai society to reach sustainability development.

From the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) framework, the company defines direction of CSR activities which is summarized as

followed:

1. Customer Responsibility

To verifying the quality information and service.

Due to core business of the company is providing information business through the major channels; computer system and internet.
Therefore, it needs to control and verify the quality and service regularly by various tools and analyzing technology to ensure the
customers’ satisfaction.

Strategic framework:

1. New Data Management program to assist in improving data integrity and support business functions.

2. Strictly monitoring and maintain security process of information.

Action to verify the quality of information and service

Develop more user-friendly interfaces on website.

Classify data to provide products and services via easy-to-use.

Improve and verify data to be updated, corrected and completed regularly.

Deliver innovative products and services that simplify customers’ experience continuously.

Provide training for products knowledge and demonstrations including knowledge on product innovation.

S oL W D

Maintain the high standard of information security management including develop computer system and security network. In the
past year, the company was audited on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) reviewed by ISO/IEC 27001:2013
(surveillance) and the company has confidentiality agreement that accordance to ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard. In 2017, the Firm
has expanded the scope of software development by increasing compliance with the current standard from 102 to 114 topics.

Customer care and protection

To protect the data of customers and do not use their data for personal interest, are top priority of business process. The company
strictly adhere the regulations, ethics, rules and legal regulations and aware of the respect to individual rights in order to maintain the
customers’ trust.

Strategic framework:

1. Keeping customers’ information confidential.

2. Standard security of information.
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Action to Customer care and protection

1. Continuously improve the quality of its goods and services, in order to maximize the benefit and satisfaction of its customers.

2. Policy to protect the privacy of customers.

3. Training the employees to be awareness in customer’s privacy rights and impose punishment to the offender or break the rules.

4. The privacy of the customer information is kept by the Board of Director, Executive and all of employees’ level if it is not allowed
by customers.

5. Secure data systematically and do not illegal.

Furthermore, the company was awarded the project “Bai Pho Business Awards by Sasin” in year 2008 that was the honor of Thai
entrepreneur to praiseworthy the successful and distinguished business. Also being the role model to develop SME business on “Value
Creation” and “Customer Focus” dimensions. These can guarantee that the company emphasizes and develops continuously the importance

of listening and understanding the customers’ need.

2. Fair Business Operating

Not violating intellectual-property

The company operates business under fair rules, honesty, not contrary the rules and not violating intellectual-property including avoiding
partners who abuse the human rights or violate intellectual-property.

Strategic framework:

1. Must not present works from others for any company’s benefits.

2. Must not copy, reproduce, distribute or pass ideas from others for any use.

3. Strictly adhere to code of conduct and intellectual-property law.

Action to do not violating intellectual-property

The company realizes the importance of intellectual property rights and will not encourage any violation of patents, copyrights, information
technology and any other aspect of intellectual assets. If the work is subject to intellectual property rights, the company shall review
terms and conditions and strictly abide by them. The company will prepare agreements with partners that are standardized, taking into
consideration fair terms and conditions for both parties. The company will set up a system to monitor and ensure the compliance of all
terms and conditions and to prevent unfair treatment or corruption throughout process. In addition, as part of the efforts to minimize
corruptions, the company holds an anti-corruption training course to educate employees regarding company’s policy and guidelines
towards anti-corruption actions and to encourage all employees to fight against corruptions in all forms. It prescribes, matters of which

employees should be aware and to which they are to adhere as well as setting out penalties in case of violations.

3. To operate business with good governance

The company operates business with honesty, transparency and able to investigate. We have codes of conduct and corporate ethics to
be the guideline for directors and employees to follow.

Strategic framework:

1. To operate business under the law strictly.

2. To prescribe the employees to comply with codes of conduct and corporate ethics

Action to operate business with good governance

1. To select good partners those do business with transparency.

2. Not receive bribes and illegal interest. Do not exploit the partners
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3. New employees have to be trained about Code of Conduct since orientation day; also the current employees are revised. The employees
have to do the test of “Code of Conduct” and the result will be assessed of awareness and knowledge in order to communicate

with employees to comply.

4. Anti-Corruption

Anti-Corruption in all manners

The company and subsidiary are committed to encourage the Board of Director, management and all employees do business transparently,
are aware of ethics in compliance with good corporate governance.

Strategic Framework:

1. Define the Code of Conduct

2. Define Anti-Corruption policy

Action to anti-corruption

Define the Code of Conduct and Anti-Corruption and do not pay bribe policies including Whistleblower Policy which support
whistleblowing or complaint and also has process to handle any misconducts including ensure fairness and protect employees who are
reporter. The company assigns Human Resources Department to support the procedures of anti-corruption policy including train the all

level of employees have awareness of fight against corruption.

5. Community Social Development

To support the quality life of community

The company realizes that the responsibility towards local community, society and the environment is integral to sustainable development.

Strategic framework:

1. Promoting to take advantage of leisure time of youth.

2. Building a job and helping to improve the quality of life.

Action to support the quality life of community

1. Employ the university students within the community as data entry staff “Part-time” to earn money during studying and leisure time
to benefit.

2. By employing “Part-time”, it supported for occupational and income development in several communities that it is the implementing

for community income sustainability and continuity.

6. Environment Management

Environmental conservation

The company is committed to taking into account environment responsibilities for sustainable growth in the future by adding value to

the use of resources, aiming at achieving maximum benefits throughout the entire production process.

Strategic framework:

1. Paperless usage.

2. Developing and supporting the society and environment, in harmony with the company’s sustainable growth objectives through
various campaigns and activities.

3. Encourage and train all employees about environment.
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Action to environment management

1. Encourage the use of two pages paper.

2. Campaign to separate waste properly.

3. Campaign paperless operations and work flow automation.

4. Campaign to donation the used staples to recycle as the equipment for disabled and older person such as crutches and Ken walkers.
5

Use copier products that are friendly to environment including awareness to community and environmental responsibility.

7. Treat workers fairly and respect the Human rights

To develop and support the employees

The company believes that the employees are very important resources to drive and lead the company to achieve goal. Therefore, the

company had recognized to equality and human rights and also opens the opportunities to work for career path without discrimination.

Strategic framework:
1. Provide with proper and fair treatment to employees.
Compliance with labor legislation strictly.

2

3. Respect the employees’ rights to express their opinion.

4. Provide enhanced training and career mapping, clarifying roles and responsibilities.
5

Protect and promote the safety and health of employees.

Action to develop and support the employees

1. The company has compensation and welfare policy based on fairness and motivation including competitive with the same type of
business or related industry. In addition, the company has the management of remuneration system by researching the remuneration
in the related industry regularly. For the other wages such as the overtime wage and working on holiday, the company will pay
compensation based on labor legislation.
The provident fund for executives and employees.
Employees at all levels received more training for their roles, are counseled about their career path and engaged more effectively

with each other.

In-house and public training courses for year 2016-2017

In-House Courses Public Courses

Year Average Hours Average Hours
Amount of Courses Attended Employees Amount of Courses Attended Employees
per Employee per Employee

2016 3 159 8 25 56 10
2017 2 23 8.09 49 61 16.50
4. Hired disable employees on work basis and give the opportunity to suitable person.
5. Support the benefit or voluntary activities by chance
6. Channel to communicate for acknowledge the employees opinion such as e-mail address bolwhistleblowing@bol.co.th
7. Arrange seminar and workshop activity “Developing of communication skill and efficiently coordinates” in order to raise the

awareness of working as teamwork and being good relationship between management and employees of different departments as well.
8. Provide the annual health check.
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9. Manage the environment to be sanitation workplace such as eliminate termites, scrub floors, washing carpets, changing drinking
water filter regularly, checking the quality of drinking water in every month and also installing the de-aerator inside the rooms

which are a lot of copying machines to filter dust, pollution and the smell that causes by the copying machines.

Other Corporate Social Responsibility

In addition in-process CSR activities, the company recognizes the importance of education and knowledge because the education is the
key foundation to develop nation’s workforce in the future which is the reason why the company focus on education to the workforce
to realize the importance of credible information, working while being capable to solve problems under supervision. Therefore, the
company also supports student’s activities. Those are participation in education of actual work for local, collaboration with educational
institutions with internship program in data entry along with providing our business information to educational institutions so that their

student and faculty have the opportunity and benefits in using for research, teaching and thesis writing.

The company has participated in social and public activities, and support money, necessary materials to other organizations such as:

‘Card for You’ initiative by Better Thailand Foundation

The company has been supporting this event for 15 years continuously as part of supporting the education and developing the quality
of life among children to prepare become to “Knowledge Based Society” based on vision of the foundation through art which is
accessible to all social classes. To provide platform for children with physical disabilities and disadvantages has showed their creativity

by doing workshop.

For the year 2017, the employees participated in volunteer in an activity with children to give the opportunity to show their creativity
by drawing under theme “The Impossible Dream”. Their pictures convey the meaning of dreams, the commitment to the dream and
the winners are printed as New Year’s cards. These can encourage the children to recognize value and affect to develop themselves in

various fields as well. Moreover, we had set the amusement activities to make them happiness, smile and having fun.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The company has reported connected transactions with related parties in the Note to Financial Statements as of 31 December 2017,

item 6. The company has entered into connected transactions taking into account the following guidelines:
Necessity and Rationale of Connected Transactions

Connected transactions are necessary and reasonable to create the best benefits to the company and are considered to be transacted
under ordinary course of business, mostly information services and / or copyright services including trading computer equipment. The

transactions, moreover, are priced according to Fair and at arms’ length principle.
Necessity and Justification of Transactions with Connected Persons or Business Entities.

The Audit Committee reviewed the transactions with connected persons and/or business entities and it is of the opinion that the transactions
are essential and justified and beneficial to the firm at optimum level. The transactions are, therefore, considered as being conducted

under normal business practice and priced at market rates or just price without any favor or arm’s length transaction.
Procedure to Approve Connected Transactions

Each connected transaction has to undergo procedure for approval in compliance with rules and regulations stipulated in the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and other related rules, announcements and guidelines made by The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)
and The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) of connected transactions entered into by listed companies. A director who relates
to a connected transaction has to be refrained from casting vote on such matter. Moreover, these connected transactions are reviewed
by the audit committee in order to ensure them made in accordance with marketable conditions. There are no any differences price

comparing with the 3rd party transactions as per section 89/12(1) that is amended by the Securities and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E. 2551.
Connected Transaction Tendency

Connected transactions that have been made or are to be made in the future shall be according to ordinary course of business with
to transferring of benefits between the company and related parties. The company has appointed the Audit Committee to audit
and consider the disclosure of connected transactions, which may potentially create conflict of interest to comply with Securities and
Exchange Act and other related rules, announcements and guidelines made by relevant authorities concerning connected transactions
entered into by listed companies, as well as in accordance with standard set by the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of

Thailand (Federation of Accounting Professions)
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING RESULTS

The comparison of starement of financial position as of 31 December 2015 to 2017
Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 111,015 17% 100,493 17% 85,824 16% 85,013 14% 92996 17% 85,152 16%
Current investment - fixed deposit

with bank with maturity over

| 3 month 107,893 17% 39,935 1% - - 107,893 18% 39,935 7% - -
Trade accounts and notes
e receivable 189,882 30% 191,974 33% 80,848 156% 179,615 30% 182434 33% 74,264 14%
Other current assets 28,016 4% 38,682 7% 160,564 30% 24,976 4% 36,826 7% 163,214 31%
g Total Current Assets 436,806 68% 371,084 64% 327226 61% 397,397 65% 352,191 64% 322,630 60%
<
g Non-Current Assets
E Pledged deposits at financial
" institutions 14,200 2% 17,200 3% 17200 3% 14200 2% 17200 3% 17,200 3%
: Investment account for under
; the equity method 31,687 5% 31,401 5% 112,071 21% 30,000 5% 30,000 5% 111,805 21%
2 Invenstment in Subsidiary
company - - - - - - 16,000 3% 1,000 0% - -
Other long-term investment 92,565 14% 80,805 14% - - 92556 15% 80,806 15% - -
Building improvement and
equipment - net 19,324 3% 21,158 4% 21,569 4% 18,653 3% 20,975 4% 21,569 4%
Intangible asset - net 38,274 6% 45332 8% 52486 10% 30,268 5% 40,511 7% 52,447 10%
Deferred Tax 6,629 1% 6,191 1% 6,353 1% 6,596 1% 6,164 1% 6,284 1%
Other non-current assets 1,683 1% 5,045 1% 1,798 0% 1,637 0% 4,967 1% 1,798 0%
Total Non-Current Assets 204,252 32% 207,132 36% 211477 39% 209,800 34% 201,622 36% 211,103 40%
Total Assets 641,068 100% 578,216 100% 538,703 100% 607,197 100% 553,813 100% 533,733 100%
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Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

%

% %

Liabilities and Shareholders’

Equity
Current Liabilities

Trade accounts and notes payable 103,443 60% 112,676 64% 44,787 27% 87,331 57% 101,346 63% 40,925 25%

Penalty delay 25,000 156% 23,166 14% - - 25,000 16% 23,166 14% - -
Corporate income tax payable 4,258 2% 1,899 1% 382 0% 3,100 2% - - 382 0%
Beneficiary fee payable (MOC) 14,758 9% 14,742 9% - - 14,758 10% 14,742 9% - -
Non-Current portion 13,356 7% 13,130 7% 110,688 67% 12,107 8% 12,317 8% 110,226 69%
Total Current Liabilities 160,815 93% 165,612 95% 155,857 95% 142,296 93% 151,570 94% 151,533 94%

Current portion

Reserve for employee benefit 11,472 7% 9495 5% 9,002 5% 11,161 7% 9,364 6% 9,002 6%
Total Non-Current liabilties 11,472 7% 9,495 5% 9,002 5% 11,161 7% 9,364 6% 9,002 6%
Total Liabilities 172,287 100% 175,107 100% 164,859 100% 153,457 100% 160,934 100% 160,535 100%

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital Registered 82,600 18% 82,600 20% 82,600 22% 82,600 18% 82,600 21% 82,600 22%
Issued and fully paid up 82,061 18% 79,623 20% 79,399 21% 82,061 18% 79.523 20% 79.399 21%
Share premium 139,271 30% 91,096 23% 88,868 24% 139,271 31% 91,096 23% 88,868 24%

Capital reserve for share-based
payment transactions - - 5,798 1% 4,276 1% - - 5,798 1% 4,276 1%
Retained earnings
- Appropriated - statutory 8260 2% 8,260 2% 8,260 2% 8,260 2% 8,260 2% 8,260 2%
reserve
- Unappropriated 239,189 50% 218432 54% 193,041 52% 224,158 49% 208,202 54% 192,395 52%
Total Shareholders’ Equity 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 373.844 100% 453,740 100% 392.879 100% 373.198 100%

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity 641,058 578,216 538,703 607,197 553,813 533,733
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Operating Results

1. Total consolidated revenues of the company and our subsidiaries
Unit : Million Baht

455.7 436.5

404.5 399.3 n

341.7 !

 § |  §  § .‘
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

A total consolidated revenues of statements of comprehensive income of the company and our subsidiaries in 2017 was 436.5 million baht
which increased by 37.2 million baht or 9% increase compared to 2016. Major reasons came from significant increase in revenues
from risk management service and which increased by 10% approximately increase of revenue from online business information and
business decision making system , compared to similar service income last year. Additionally, there was a significant increase in revenue

from overseas information provided by on the company’s subsidiaries from previous year.

1.1 Consolidated operating revenues comparison of the company and our subsidiaries
Unit : Million Baht

I Other Services
I Risk Management Services

Information Services
933 . 27.4
67.1 27.8 43.5

25.3
29.0
42.1 91.7 - 9.1
279.8 275.6 3250 s4e3
: 255.2 :
| ] L }
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

The company and our subsidiaries’s operating revenues in 2017 was 414.2 million baht which increased by 36.1 million baht or
10% increase compared to our operating revenues in 2016. Major reasons of increase came from both online and offline income from

information services including domestic and overseas.
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1.2 Consolidated operating revenues comparison (% Common Size)

o 9% 7% 7% I Other Services
17 21% 6% 7% 10% I Risk Management Services

11% Information Services

21%

799 85% 86% 83%

58%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

In terms of the comparison of %common size ratio from operating revenues of company and our subsidiaries in 2017, there was a
significant increase in revenue of risk management servise from 7% in 2016 to 10% in 2017. Meanwhile, there was a bit drop of
percentage of online income from 86% in 2016 to 83% in 2017 but its amount of revenue from online services 2017 was higher than

same revenue 2016 which increased by 6% from last year.

1.3 Cost of Services and Selling and administrative expenses

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated The Company Only

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase

2016 (Decrease)

Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Cost of services 213 61% 193 61% 20 10% 175 60% 163 58% 12 7%
Selling and administrative expenses 134 39% 125 39% 9 7% 119 40% 118 42% 1 1%
Total 347  100% 318  100% 29 17% 294  100% 281  100% 13 8%

According to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in 2017, it presents 213 million baht of service costs and 134
million baht of operating expenses of the company and its subsidiaries. Major increase came from increase in costs and expenses related

to special project, loss from foreign exchange rate and other expenses from investing in a new business of the company’s subsidiary.
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1.4 Consolidated net profit after corporate income tax expense comparison
Unit : Million Baht

90.0
79.1 76.6
726
61.2
| ]
| N |

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

In 2017, the consolidated net profit after tax of the company and its subsidiaries presents 76.6 million baht which increase by 4.0

million baht or 6% increase from last year as mentioned above.
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2. Analysis of Financial Position

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Increase Increase

Unit : Thousand Baht (Decrease) (Decrease)

% Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 111,015 17% 100,493 17% 10,522 11% 85,013 14% 92,996 17% (7,983) -9%
Current investment - fixed
deposit with bank with

maturity over 3 month 107,893 17% 39,935 7% 67,958 170% 107,893 18% 39,935 "% 67,958 170%
Trade and other receivables 189,882 30% 191,974 33% (2,092) -1% 179,515 30% 182433 33% (2,918) -2%
Other current assets 28,016 4% 38,682 7% (10,666) -28% 24,976 4% 36,826 7% (11,850) -32%
Total current assets 436,806 68% 371,084 64% 65,722 18% 397,397 66% 352,190 64% 45,207 13%
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 14,200 2% 17,200 3% (3,000) -17% 14,200 2% 17,200 3% (3,000) -17% o
Investment account for under g
the equity method 31,587 5% 31,401 5% 186 1% 30,000 5%  30.000 5% - - -
Invenstment in Subsidiary o
company - - - - - - 16,000 3% 1,000 0% 15,000 1500% :
Other long-term investment 92,665 14% 80,805 14% 11,750 15% 92,655 15% 80,805 15% 11,750 15% E
Building improvement and g
equipment 19,324 3% 21,168 4% (1,834) -9% 18,653 3% 20976 4% (2,322) -11% :
Intangible assets 38,274 6% 45332 8% (7,068) -16% 30,259 5% 40,511 7% (10,252) -25% =
Deferred tax assets 6,629 1% 6,191 1% 438 7% 6,596 1% 6,164 1% 432 7% g
Other non-current assets 1,683 1% 5,045 1% (3,362) -67% 1,637 0% 4,968 1% (3,431) -69%
Total non-current assets 204,262 32% 207,132 36% (2,880) -1% 209,800 34% 201,623 36% 8,177 4%
Total assets 641,068 100% 578,216 100% 62,842 11% 607,197 100% 553,813 100% 53,384 10% [

As of 31 December 2017, total assets of consolidated statement of financial position was 641.1 baht million which increased by
62.8 million baht or 11% increase compared to previous year. A major reason came from increase in cash and deposits at banks and

financial institution, which approximately increased by 75.5 million baht compared to previous year.
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Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Increase
(Decrease)

Increase

Unit : Thousand Baht 2017 2016
(Decrease)

| 2017 2016 |

% Amount %  Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 103,443 60% 112,676 64% (9.233) -8% 87,331 57% 101,346 63% (14,015) -14%
Penalty delay 25,000 15% 23,165 14% 1,835 8% 25,000 16% 23,165 14% 1,835 8%
Income tax payable 4,258 2% 1,899 1% 2,359 124% 3,100 2% - - 3,100 100%
Beneficiary fee payable (MOC) 14,758 9% 14,742 9% (16) 0% 14,758 10% 14,742 9% 16 0%
Other current liabilities 13,356 7% 13130 7% 226 2% 12,107 8% 12317 8% (210) 2%
Total current liabilities 160,815 93% 165,612 96% (4,797) -3% 142,296 93% 151,670 94% (9.274) -6%

Non-current liabilities

Reserve for long-term

employee benefits 11,472 7% 9,495 5% 1,977 21% 11,161 7% 9,364 6% 1,797  19%
Total non-current liabilities 11,472 7% 9,495 5% 1,977 21% 11,161 7% 9,364 6% 1,797  19%
Total liabilities 172,287 99% 175,107 101% (2,820) -2% 153,457 100% 160,934 100% (7,477) -5%

As of 31 December 2017, the company and our subsidiaries’ total liabilities were 172.3 million baht which approximately decreased
by 2.8 million baht or 2% decrease compared to previous year. This was mainly decrease in accounts payable, other payable, accrued

costs and accrued expenses from 112.7 million baht in 2016 to 103.4 million baht in 2017.

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Increase Increase

Unit : Thousand Baht (Decrease) (Decrease)

Amount % Amount %  Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital Registered 82,600 82,600 82,600 82,600
Issued and fully paid up 82,061 18% 79,523 20% 2,528 3% 82,0561 18% 79,523 20% 2,528 3%
Share premium 139,271 30% 91,096 23% 48,175 53% 139,271 31% 91,096 23% 48,175 53%
Capital reserve for share-based

payment transactions - - 5,798 1% (5,798) -100% - - 5,798 2% (5,798) -100%
Retained earnings

Appropriated -

statutory reserve 8,260 2% 8,260 2% - - 8,260 2% 8,260 2% - -
Unappropriated 239,189 50% 218432 54% 20,757 10% 224,158 49% 208,202 53% 15,956 8%

Equity attributable to owners 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 65,662 16% 453,740 100% 392,879 100% 60.861 16%
of the company
Total shareholders’ equity 468,771 100% 403,109 100% 65,662 16% 453,740 100% 392,879 100% 60,861 16%

As of 31 December 2017, a total of equity of consolidated statement of financial position was 468.8 million baht which increased by
65.7 million baht or approximate 16% increase compared to previous year. There were 2 major reasons due to receiving money from
last exercised amount by directors, executives and employees under ESOP Scheme together with the company’s outperformance to

escalate consolidated earnings of the company.
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3. Financial Ratio Analysis
3.1 Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin Ratio (%)

o}
48.96% 5249%  4s06%  48.48%
. 4239% o m
L] L] L] L] L |
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

In 2017, the company and our subsidiaries’ gross profit margin
ratio was 48.48% compared to 48.96% of gross profit margin
ratio in 2016. It presents a bit drop of gross profit margin ratio
in 2017 by 1% decrease compared to gross profit margin ratio in

2016 due to higher costs of services relating to customers’ services.

Return on Assets Ratio (ROA) (%)

20.05% 0
— 1481 % 11.36% 12.55% 11.95%
e
L L] L] L] L]
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

In 2017, the company and our subsidiaries’ return on assets ratio
(ROA) was 11.95% which approximately decreased by 5% compared
to return on assets ratio (ROA) in 2016. Due to the fact that there
was 11% increase in the company and our subsidiaries’ total assets

in 2017 compared to last year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Net Profit Margin Ratio (%)

0,
22.2(737{(7)7 1736%  17.91%  18.18%  17.55%
S — H
» L = " "
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

In 2017, the company and our subsidiaries’ net profit margin ratio

4iMOd

was 17.55% compared to 18.18% of net profit margin ratio in
2016, slightly increased by 3% resulting from increase in selling

and administrative expenses in 2017.

Return on Equity Ratio (ROE) (%)
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In 2017, the company presents decrease in return on equity (ROE)
ratio compared to ROE ratio in 2016, which decreased by 9%
approximately. Main reasons came from some significant increases
in shareholders’ equity at the end of year 2017 from 2016. This
resulted from last exercised warrants by directors and employee

under ESOP scheme and higher earning in 2017.
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3.2 Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio (Times)

2.72
2.10 2.10 2.24771" o ‘H
. 1.78 =
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z
2 reflects an excellent ability to pay short-term debts of the company
-
< and its subsidiaries.
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As of 31 December 2017, it presents an excellent current ratio
of the company and its subsidiaries was 2.72 times. This number

REPORT 2017

3.3 Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)

053 0558 0.44 0.43 0.37
—— ——— — 7777.
= = = = "
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

As of 31 December 2017, the company and our subsidiaries’ debt
to equity ratio (D/E) was 0.37 times, which decreased by 14%
compared to debt to equity (D/E) ratio in 2016. It showed that
the company’s financial status at the end of 2017 was stronger

than previous year.

During 5 years in the past, the range of dividend payout ratio was

about 49.76% - 82.98% while the company’s dividend payout ratio

in 2016 was 76.69% compared to the consolidated net profit after

tax for the year 2016. However, annual dividend payout ratio in

2017 is subject to the approval of the company’s Annual General

Meeting of shareholders 2018 that will be held in March 2018.
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3.4 Asset Management Ratio

Balance of trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2017
of consolidated financial statement of the company and our subsidiaries

As fo 31 December 2017, the consolidated statement of financial

3399 0.33% position presents 189.88 million baht of a total of trade and other

Past due Past due
< 3 months “ 3-6 months
receivables, which slightly decreased by 1% or 2.09 million baht
compared to a total of trade and other receivables as at 31 Decem-
ber 2016. However, it was about 4% of a total of trade and other
receivables at the end of year 2017 that trade account receivables
became delinquent. However,the company’s provision for doubtful

Not yet due debts was recorded as an allowance for conservative purpose.
e 96.28%

3.5 Factors which may affect the company’s future operations and financial position

In 2017, the Thai economy as a whole has improved and it is expected that in 2018, the economy will grow at a rate of 3.5% as a result
of public and private investments. There is a rapid growth in e-commerce industry in Thailand and ASEAN countries such as India and
China whose total population is over 3 billion while it is expected that both the number of merchants and consumers will grow in 2018.
In addition, new trends such as big data, behavioural and predictive analytics are becoming more important in understanding consumers’

needs which will increase the demand for data. Therefore this is an industry that has potential and will continue to grow in the future.

The establishment of ASEAN Economics Community or AEC has created many advantages and disadvantages that the company must
prepare for with regards to free trade. On opportunities, the company can expand services to corporate and financial institutions both
locally and internationally which will lead to future growth while overseas investments could also pose a risk. With AEC, companies
that provide similar services could operate in Thailand thus creating more competition. Meanwhile, the advancement in technology and
the more complex expectations in services from our customers has caused the company to adapt by making improvements to products
and service and changes to the organisation’s structure while managing the source of funding to maintain liquidity and for investments

in innovations and projects that are in line with the company’s future growth and sustainability plans.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ DUTIES ON FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE 2017

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited understands the responsibility of ensuring integrity, sufficient,
relevant and transparent disclosure of the company’s fiscal year 2017 financial statements. Such disclosure abides by the generally
accepted accounting principles, ensuring the integrity of the company’s operations/ appropriate accounting policies have been put in
place and adhered to on a consistent basis while due consideration has been placed on the process of preparing the company and the company’s
consolidated fiscal year 2017 financial statements including other information that has been included in this year’s annual report.

To enhance stakeholder trust, the Board appointed an Audit Committee comprising of Independent Directors with qualifications as
stipulated by the guidelines of Stock Exchange of Thailand. Ensuring that the company provides sufficient, transparent, correct and
appropriate financial disclosure along with information regarding related party transactions is a key function of the committee. Ensuring
appropriate, sufficient and effective risk management guidelines, appropriate internal control procedures along with robust internal audit
processes are also the functions of the committee. Legal compliance is at the forefront of the Board’s concerns therefore the committee

is also charged with ensuring that the company’s operations adheres to all relevant external and internal legal, guidelines and policies.

The Board of Directors believes that the company’s separate financial statement and consolidated financial statements for the company
and subsidiary for fiscal year 2017 ending 31 December 2017. which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, management and the
company’s financial auditor, EY Office Limited, to be correct, complete, appropriate, in compliance with generally accepted accounting
practices and employs appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis. The financial disclosure is deemed to be transparent, provides

an appropriate level of disclosure and is in compliance with all the relevant legal, guidelines and policies.

Ees /%//

Mr. Noravat Suwarn Mr. Jack Min Intanate

Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders

The Audit Committee of Business Online Public Company Limited comprises of 4 independent directors as follows:

1. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas*  Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Ms. Manida Zimmerman Independent Director and Audit Committee Member
3. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Audit Committee Member
4. Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director and Audit Committee Member

*

Director with experience in accounting, finance, and auditing

Each of the directors meets the qualification mandated therein the Audit Committee Charter in accordance with the Good Governance
Guideline from the SEC.

In 2017, the Audit Committee had quarterly meetings with Internal Auditors and Auditors, together with the management and the
accounting team in attendance as appropriate, to audit the financial statements and exchange recommendations to ensure the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Standard with sufficient information disclosure.
The Audit Committee found no practices conducted in conflict with the regulations and law related to the company. In 2017, there
were 4 Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee informed the Board of Directors of the result of the work conducted by

the Audit Committee during the respective Board of Director meeting. The key areas are as follows:
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1. Financial statements audit
The Audit Committee audited the quarterly, annual, and consolidated financial statements with the auditors, management, and
Internal Audit to present to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee also meet with the auditors without the management
team in attendance at least once a year.

2. Potential conflict of interest
The Audit Committee reviewed the list of potential conflict of interests between the company and its subsidiaries based on the
arm’s length transaction principle ensuring the benefits of stakeholders, the sufficiency of the disclosure in accordance with the
SEC’s rules and regulations.

3. Internal control and risk management
The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system as per guidelines from the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Committee also reviewed the audit result regarding the Company’s internal control
system, including the security of the information systems, conducted by the internal audit team and the external auditor. In
addition, the Committee followed up on the remedial actions taken by the management to improve key business processes and
make the internal controls and risk management more effective. Follow up of the necessary actions taken to mitigate significant
risks. The company has disclosed key risk in risk factors section of the annual report for 2017.

4. Law and regulations
The Audit Committee reviewed the business conducted in compliance with the law and regulations.

5. Good Governance
The Audit Committee audited the company to ensure good governance for transparency and confidence of shareholders.

6. Internal Audit
The Audit Committee reviewed the objective and scope of the work and approved the Internal Audit plan for 2018, reviewed
the Internal Audit Department’s Independence, direction, strategy and resource sufficiency. The Audit Committee also provided
recommendations and acknowledged the result of the audit and recommendations for 2017 from both the auditors and Internal

Audit. The Audit Committee presented Audit Committee report to the Board of Directors after each meeting and provided
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recommendations to the management team, which the management have implemented as appropriate according to the guideline
provided by the Audit Committee and SEC.
7. Anti - Corruption

The Committee emphasized the Board’s commitment and communicated this to the Company’s management and employees. Em
8. Appointment of the company’s auditor and remuneration

The consideration and appointment of the auditor and the remuneration was conducted based on the qualification and expertise u

of the auditors in accordance to the amount of work required for the fiscal year 2017. The Audit Committee proposed to

the Board of Directors to appoint EY Company Limited Limited’s auditors, whose names are under SEC approved list, to be

the company’s auditor as follows:

Ms. Siriwan  Nitdamrong C.P.A. Registration No. 5906 and/or

Ms. Kamontip Lertwitworatep C.P.A. Registration No. 4377 and/or

Mrs. Sarinda  Hirunprasurtwutti C.P.A. Registration No. 4799

The Audit Committee believed that, in 2017, the company reported financial statements and operations with sufficient internal control
and business conducted in compliance with the law and regulations mandated by the SEC. The internal control and risk management
are appropriate and effective. The company provided appropriate and sufficient disclosure of the interconnectivity and conducted of

business within reliable means and good governance.

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE’S
REPORT

Dear Shareholders

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was established according to the resolution of the company’s Board of Directors meeting

on 13 November 2014 comprising all the independent directors. They are:

1. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas  Independent Director and Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4. Ass.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director and Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In 2017 the Committee called one meeting. The meeting was well participated with due care by all the members of the Committee. The
Committee’s members pro actively participated, contributed and gave recommendation beneficial for improvement of the domination

and remuneration of directors of the company.

The committee called the meeting to consider the proposed agenda with due care, transparency and independence for the best interest
of the company and it’s shareholders, within the given powers and responsibility prescribed therein the committee’s charter, which is

in accordance with SET’s regulations and guidelines according to good governance. The major topics considered are:

1. Domination of director(s)
Scrutinization and selection of the qualification of person according to the legal requirements, regulations and possessing no prohibited
characteristics in accordance with the company’s by law. The domination of director procedure is conducted with accountability,
justification, due care, transparency, and agreeing with the company’s structure. The company had given a time period for
shareholders to propose a person for domination, but there were no shareholders rendered the proposal letter for domination. The
committee, therefore, reviewed and considered, and recommended the director whose term would come to expiration in 2017 to be
re-appointed as director for another term. The Shareholders’ 2017 Annual General Meeting approved as recommended.

2. Remuneration
The company’s directors remuneration is based on duties, responsibilities, and performances, type and size of the company. Other
factors taken into consideration are risks threatening the company’s business and the general economic situation. The remuneration
must be at an appropriate level and attractive enough to attract and retain the qualified directors. The remuneration is proposed to
the company’s board of directors for endorsement and further proposed to the shareholders’ 2017 annual general meeting for
approval. The approved remuneration table of members of both the company’s directors and sub-committee is published in the

company’s annual report.

As at December 31, 2017 there are 10 directors in the company’s Board of Directors, of which, 3 of the 10 directors are executives,
7 are non-executives, 4 are independent directors ( more than 1/3 of the board members). In 2017 the directors received remuneration
according to the directors remuneration table. It is of the opinion of the committee that the number of the directors of the company and
the corresponding remuneration are reasonable and commensurate with their respective responsibilities, and in line with the guidelines

endorsed by the committee.

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas

Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Business Online Public Company Limited

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Business

Online Public Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Business Online
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Business Online Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2017, their financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions as relevant to
my audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that

the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming

my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Revenue recognition for long-term contracts

The Company has disclosed its policies on revenue recognition for services provided under long-term contracts, cost estimates for
projects under long-term contracts and provision for project delay in Note 4 and Note 5 to the financial statements. I identified
revenue recognition and estimation of project cost and relevant expenses to be areas of significant risk in audit. This is because these
areas require management to exercise significant judgement to assess the percentage of completion, the probability of delay, and the

measurement of possible project delay.

I examined the revenue recognition and provision for project delay under long-term contracts by randomly selecting contracts that the
Company made with customers to test of the internal controls relating to the method that management used in estimating the percentage
of completion, budget cost and estimated expenses to be incurred from the project delay and the recording of related transactions. I
also read the contracts to consider the conditions relating to revenue recognition and inquired of management about the terms of and
risks associated with these contracts. In addition, I evaluated the approach that the Company applied in estimating the percentage of
completion, total costs throughout the project and provision for project delay by inquiry of the management and project manager on

the progress of the project and examined other relevant documents.
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Other long-term investment

As discussed in Notes 13 to the financial statements, The Company has carrying amounts based on cost method in other long-term investment
in Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. amounting to Baht 53 million, which is higher than the proportion of the Company’s holding in such company
of Baht 6 million. In addition, Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. has sustained continuous loss since 2014. The assessment of investment, especially
impairment of other long-term investment, requires the significant judgement in estimating the cash inflows that are expected to be

generated from such company in the future, and setting an appropriate discount rate and growth rate.

I have assessed the estimated the cash inflows and the financial models selected by management by gaining an understanding of the
management’s decision-making process and whether the decisions are consistent with the historical data and budget plans from Ecart
Studio Co., Ltd. In addition, I tested the significant assumptions applied by management in preparing estimates of the cash flows
expected to be realised from such investment in the future, through comparison those assumptions with information from both internal
and external sources and a review of the accuracy of past cash flow projections in comparison to actual operating results in order to
assess the reliability of the cash flow projections. I have also considered the appropriateness of discount rate selected by management,
tested the calculation of the realisable values of other long-term investment using the selected financial model and considered the impact

of changes in key assumptions on those realisable values, especially changes in the discount rate and long-term revenue growth rates.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information included in annual report of the

Group, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial state-

ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding indepen-
dence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that
a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Sacinde. H(‘,,.Tw :

Sarinda Hirunprasurtwutti
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4799

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 14 February 2018
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2017

Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 111,014,908 100,493,192 85,012,823 92,995,573

Short-term investments 8 107,892,841 39,935,207 107,892,841 39,935,207

Trade and other receivables 9 189,881,880 191,974,401 179,515,149 182,433,493

Other current assets 28,016,966 38,681,884 24,976,385 36,826,350

Total current assets 436,806,595 371,084,684 397,397,198 352,190,623

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits 10 14,200,100 17,200,100 14,200,100 17,200,100

Investment in associated company 11 31,586,622 31,401,179 30,000,000 30,000,000 3

Investment in subsidiaries 12 - - 15,999,860 999,930 E

Other long-term investments 13 92,555,488 80,805,288 92,555,488 80,805,288 Z

Building improvement and equipment 14 19,323,904 21,157,936 18,652,804 20,975,310 “

Intangible assets 15 38,273,562 45,331,904 30,258,282 40,510,890 E

Deferred tax assets 23 6,629,387 6,190,691 6,696,227 6,164,331 2

Other non-current assets 1,682,763 5,044,896 1,537,191 4,966,896 ;

Total non-current assets 204,251,826 207,131,894 209,799,952 201,622,745 g

Total assets 641,068,421 578,216,578 607,197,150 553,813,368

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. E
|
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2017

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 103,442,716 112,676,220 87,330,890 101,346,026
Short-term provision 17 25,000,000 23,165,168 25,000,000 23,165,168
Income tax payable 4,257,318 1,899,367 3,100,227 -

™ Information utilisation fee payable 14,758,847 14,741,639 14,758,847 14,741,639
Other current liabilities 13,356,300 13,129,385 12,106,177 12,317,486

e Total current liabilities 160,815,181 165,611,779 142,296,141 151,570,319

Non-current liabilities

g Provision for long-term employee benefits 18 11,472,021 9,495,368 11,161,221 9,364,069

E Total non-current liabilities 11,472,021 9,495,368 11,161,221 9,364,069

$ Total liabilities 172,287,202 175,107,147 153,457,362 160,934,388

w

z

" Shareholders’ equity

: Share capital 19

; Registered

2 826,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000

Issued and fully paid up
820,505,500 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each
(31 December 2016: 795,229,750 ordinary shares

of Baht 0.10 each) 82,050,550 79,622,975 82,050,550 79,522,975
Share premium 19 139,271,186 91,095,699 139,271,186 91,095,699
Capital reserve for share-based payment transactions - 5,798,292 - 5,798,292
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 20 8,260,000 8,260,000 8,260,000 8,260,000
Unappropriated 239,189,483 218,432,465 224,158,052 208,202,014
Total shareholders’ equity 468,771,219 403,109,431 453,739,788 392,878,980
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 641,058,421 578,216,578 607,197,150 553,813,368

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements
Not
ot 2017 2016 2017 2016

Profit or loss:

Revenues

Service income 21 414,225599 378,150,640 354,346,482 328,678,181

Other income 22,291,477 21,149,469 22,257,973 21,815,349

Total revenues 436,517,076  399.300,109 376,604,455  350.493,530

Expenses 22

Costs of services 213,427,701 193,005,673 174,732,017 163,384,009

Administrative expenses 133,858,611 124,832,671 119,477,021 117,667,413

Total expenses 347,286,312  317.838,344 294,209,038 281,051,422

Profit before share of profit from investment in 3
associate, finance cost and income tax expenses 89,230,764 81,461,765 82,395,417 69,442,108 E

Share of profit from investment in associate 11 185,443 135,188 - - Z

Profit before finance cost and income tax expenses 89,416,207 81,596,953 82,395,417 69,442,108 :

Finance cost - (102) - (102) E

Profit before income tax expenses 89,416,207 81,596,851 82,395,417 69,442,006 5

Income tax expenses 23 (12,802,155) (9,008,010)  (10,586,128) (6,437,116) ;

Profit for the year 76,614,052 72,588,841 71,809,289 63,004,890 g

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified o
to profit or loss in subsequent periods [ |

Actuarial gain (loss) 18 (238,689) 552,305 (233,960) 552,305

Less: Income tax effect 23 47,738 (110,461) 46,792 (110,461)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net

of income tax (190,951) 441,844 (187,168) 441,844
Other comprehensive income for the year (190,951) 441,844 (187,168) 441,844
Total comprehensive income for the year 76,423,101 73,030,685 71,622,121 63,446,734

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Unit : Baht
_ Note Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 797,302,029 794,699,339 797,302,029 794,699,339

™ Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08
m= Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 802,001,232 795,714,418 802,001,232 795,714,418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements
Equity attributable to owner of the Company

; Retained earnings e
Is::?: ::d Share ff)é:psll:aalr:;:::?i Appropriated - g sha;:t:lcill:ers'
Balance as at 1 January 2016 79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 193,041,376 373,844,540
Profit for the year - - - - 72,588,841 72,588,841
Other comprehensive income for
the year - - - - 441,844 441,844
Total comprehensive income for - - - - 73,030,685 73,030,685
the year
Ordinary share issued from 3
excersied warrants 19 123,650 2,228,186 (187,962) - - 2,163,874 E
Recognition of expenses against Z
capital reserve for =
share-based payment E
transactions 19 - - 1,709,927 - - 1,709,927 2
Dividend paid 28 - - - - (47,639,595) (47,639,595) ;
Balance as at 31 December 2016 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 218,432,465 403,109,431 g
Balance as at 1 January 2017 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 218,432,465 403,109,431 —
Profit for the year - - - - 76,614,052 76,614,052

Other comprehensive income for

the year - - - - (190,951) (190,951)

Total comprehensive income for

the year - - - - 76,423,101 76,423,101
Ordinary share issued from

excersied warrants 19 2,627,675 48,175,487 (6,470,499) - - 44,232,563
Recognition of expenses against

capital reserve for

share-based payment

transactions 19 - - 672,207 - - 672,207
Dividend paid - - - - (55,666,083) (55,666,083)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 28 82,050,650 139,271,186 - 8,260,000 239,189,483 468,771,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Unit : Baht
Seperate Financial Statements
[ Capital reserve Retained earnings Total
paid up Sha.re for share-based Appropriated - ; sharehc_)lders’
Tprr el premium payme.nt Statutory  Unappropriated equity
transactions reserve
Balance as at 1 January 2016 79,399,325 88,867,613 4,276,327 8,260,000 192,394,875 373,198,040
Profit for the year - - - - 63,004,890 63,004,890
Other comprehensive income for
= the year - - - - 441,844 441,844
- Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - - 63,446,734 63,446,734
Ordinary share issued from
; excersied warrants 19 123,650 2,228,186 (187,962) - - 2,163,874
:: Recognition of expenses against
E capital reserve for
= share-based payment
g transactions 19 - - 1,709,927 - - 1,709,927
© Dividend paid 28 - - - - (47,639,595) (47,639,595)
% Balance as at 31 December 2016 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 208,202,014 392,878,980
o
Balance as at 1 January 2017 79,522,975 91,095,699 5,798,292 8,260,000 208,202,014 392,878,980
Profit for the year - - - - 71,809,289 71,809,289
Other comprehensive income for
the year - - - - (187,168) (187,168)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - - 71,622,121 71,622,121
Ordinary share issued from
excersied warrants 19 2,627,675 48,175,487 (6,470,499) - - 44,232,563
Recognition of expenses against
capital reserve for
share-based payment
transactions 19 - - 672,207 - - 672,207
Dividend paid 28 - - - - (55,666,083) (55,666,083)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 82,050,650 139,271,186 - 8,260,000 224,158,052 453,739,788

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 89,416,207 81,596,851 82,395,417 69,442,006
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

Gain on changes in value of investments (128,904) (534,289) (128,904) (534,289)
Depreciation and amortisation 25,426,496 24,445,553 23,871,018 23,940,400
Share of profit from investment in associated company (185,443) (135,188) - -
Expenses for share-based payment transactions 672,207 1,709,927 672,207 1,709,927
Provision for employee benefits 1,737,964 1,437,689 1,663,192 1,306,290
Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange 168,952 (195,248) - 17,292 3
Provision for penalty delay 1,834,832 12,962,266 1,834,832 12,962,266 E
Allowance for doubtful accounts 10,772,079 - 10,772,079 - Z
Loss on diminution in value of withholding tax refundable 3,049,784 - 3,049,784 - :
Gain on sales of equipment (69,007) (962,821) (73,004) (1,180,915) =
Gain on sales of computer software - (60) - (890,060) 5
Dividend income (19,600,000)  (18,681,250)  (19,600,000) (18,681,250) 5
Interest expenses - 102 - 102 g
Interest income (1,531,450) (372,976) (1,497,946) (360,661)
Profit from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities 111,563,717 101,270,456 102,858,675 87,731,108 o
Decrease (increase) in operating assets: n
Trade and other receivables (8,300,511) 25,931,056 (7,853,735) 31,509,101
Other current assets 10,664,918  (11,779,314) 12,229,591 (9,933,277)
Other non-current assets (4,655) (3,246,473) 63,475 (3,168,473)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade and other payables (11,095,255) 13,586,263  (15,596,164) 10,559,622
Short-term provision - (2,365,5653) - (2,365,553)
Information utilisation fee payable 17,208  (10,258,361) 17,208  (10,258,361)
Other current liabilities 197,284 (438,104) (240,940) (1,224,785)
Cash flows from operating activities 103,042,706 112,699,970 91,478,110 102,849,382
Cash paid for employee benefits - (392,000) - (392,000)
Cash paid for interest expenses - (102) - (102)
Cash paid for corporate income tax (10,518,258)  (10,802,563) (7,654,659)  (10,173,702)
Net cash from operating activities 92,524,448 101,505,305 83,923,651 92,283,578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Unit : Baht

Consolidated financial statements | Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease in restricted banks deposits 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
(Increase) decrease in short-term investments (67,268,517) 20,644,086  (67,268,517) 20,644,086
Cash paid for investment in subsidiary - - (14,999,930) -
Cash paid for other long-term investment (11,750,200) - (11,750,200) -
n Cash paid for purchase of building improvement and equipment (8,022,516) (16,122,931) (7,370,783)  (16,863,767)
Cash received from sales of equipment 120,749 1,054,614 119,346 1,366,193
m. Cash paid for purchase of computer software (6,869,970) (5,989,715) (2,390,435) (9,151,327)
Cash received from sales of computer software - 62 - 6,000,062
g Dividend received 19,600,000 18,681,250 19,600,000 18,681,250
E Interest received 591,611 379,424 558,107 367,109
g Net cash from (used) in investing activities (70,598,843) 18,646,790  (80,502,412) 21,043,606
- Cash flows from financing activities
E Cash received from exercised warrants 44,232,563 2,163,874 44,232,563 2,163,874
o Dividend paid (55,636,452)  (47,602,157)  (55,636,452) (47,602,157)
g Net cash used in financing activities (11,403,889) (45,438,283)  (11,403,889)  (45,438,283)
2 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,521,716 74,713,812 (7,982,750) 67,888,901
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 100,493,192 25,779,380 92,995,573 25,106,672
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 111,014,908 100,493,192 85,012,823 92,995,573
Supplemental cash flow information:
Non-cash related transactions
Payables for purchase of assets 2,138,498 445,120 2,026,148 445,120
Increase in dividend payable 29,631 37,438 29,631 37,437

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

1. General information
Business Online Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. Its major
shareholders are Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in Thailand, and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd.,
which is incorporated in Singapore. Its principal activity is service provider and developer of local and global financial information
system and as an online and offline business information service provider as well as consulting service and database management.

The registered office of the Company is at 900/8-10 SVOA Tower, Rama III Road, Kwang Bangpongpang, Khet Yannawa, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting
Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development dated 11 October 2016, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial statements
in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited (“the Company”)

and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries™):

Percentage of shareholding

C q Nat! f busi C t fi ti
ompany's nhame ature o usiness ountry ot Incorporation 2017 2016
Percent Percent
D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Business Information Service Thai 99.99 99.99
BOL Digital Co., Ltd. Social business Service Thai 99.99 -

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its return.

c) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting policies as the Company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

f) Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are not held by the Company
and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.3 The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries and associates under the cost method.
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New financial reporting standards

Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised financial reporting standards and interpretations
(revised 2016) and new accounting treatment guidance which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with
most of the changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance
to users of standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company and
its subsidiaries’ financial statements. However, one standard involves changes to key principles, which are summarised below.

TAS 27 (revised 2016) Separate Financial Statements

This revised standard stipulates an additional option to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
separate financial statements under the equity method, as described in TAS 28 (revised 2016) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures. However, the entity is to apply the same accounting treatment for each category of investment. If an entity elects to
account for such investments using the equity method in the separate financial statements, it has to adjust the transaction
retrospectively.

This standard does not have any significant impact on the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial statements because the
management has decided to continue accounting for such investments under the cost method in the separate financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations (revised 2017) which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
and clarifications directed towards disclosures in the notes to financial statements.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries believe that the revised financial reporting standards will not have any

significant impact on the financial statements when they are initially applied.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Rendering of services
Revenues from purchases of limited numbers of hours of access to the Company’s information services by customers, granting

users access to information on juristic persons and business news, are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of usage stipulated in the agreement. This method is used because such revenues are derived from sales made direct to customers
rather than through distribution agents and because several types of service are provided to customers simultaneously over a period
which has a fixed termination date. The Company therefore believes that there is no material difference between recognising revenue
based on a straight-line basis and recognising it on hours actually used.

Service income under long-term contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion. The percentage of completion is
determined based on services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
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4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated losses
that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.
4.4 Investments

a) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are stated at cost net of
allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

b) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

c) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.

d) Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value of these securities are recorded in profit
or loss.
The fair value of unit trusts is determined from their net asset value.

4.5 Building improvement and equipment and depreciation

Building improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of
assets (if any). Depreciation of building improvement and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building improvement 5 years

Equipment and others 3 - b years
Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on building under improvement and assets under installation.
An item of building improvement and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

4.6 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of
such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.
A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:
Useful lives
Computer software 3, 5 and 10 years

4.7 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly or indirectly,
or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority

in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
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Long-term leases
Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance

leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the useful life of the assets.
Leases of equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

In cases where assets are sold and then leased back, whereby the transaction is a kind of finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds
over the carrying amount of the assets is recorded as deferred revenue and amortised over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also and measured using the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the building improvement and
equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company recognises share-based payment transactions when services from employees are rendered, based on the fair value
of the share options on the grant date. The expenses are recorded over the vesting period, in accordance with the conditions
regarding length of service rendered by employees stipulated in the share-based payment plan, together with a corresponding
increase in “Capital reserve for share-based payment transactions” in shareholders’ equity.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed by
employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company’s and its subsidiaries’
contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement
under labor law. The Company and its subsidiaries treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial
techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.




4.13

4.14

4.15

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on taxable

profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise
deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be
utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded
directly to shareholders’ equity.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between buyer
and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The Company and its subsidiaries apply a quoted market price in an active
market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards.
Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Company
and its subsidiaries measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use
of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly

Level 3 Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether transfers have occurred between levels
within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on

a recurring basis.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management to make
subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported
amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Long-term service contracts

The Company recognised service income under long-term contracts taking into account the stage of completion of service contract
activities, when the outcome of a service contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is determined based on
services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed by the project management. The management is
required to make judgement and estimate the stage of completion based on past experience and information obtained from the
project management.

Estimated project costs for long-term contracts

The Company estimates project costs of long-term contracts based on the nature of the project, taking into account the volume
and value of equipment to be used in the project and other expenses to be incurred to complete the service, including the trend
of the changes in the costs of the equipment and other expenses. The estimates are reviewed regularly or when actual costs differ
significantly from the figures used in the original estimates.

Provision for delay penalty

The management applied judgement in estimating the provision for delay penalty to be realised on each long-term service contract
based on the probability of occurrence. The management believed that the provision made would be sufficient as at the end of
the reporting period. However, actual results could differ from the estimates.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among
other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

Impairment of investments

The Company treats investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement of the management.

Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require management to make
estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of estimate future taxable profits.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

In estimation fair value for share-based payment transactions, the management is required to exercise judgement and to apply
various assumptions, including the expected life of the share options, share price volatility and dividend yield.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on

various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
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6. Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions,
which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed

upon between the Company and those related parties.

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated Separate
financial statements | financial statements Pricing policy

2017 2016 2017 2016

Transactions with subsidiaries
(eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements)
Service income - - 10 12 Market price, Mutually agreed prices as
stipulated in the agreements
Cost of services - - - 2 Market price, Mutually agreed prices as

stipulated in the agreements

4iMOd

Sale of equipment - - - 6  Market price, Cost plus margin

Transactions with related parties

Service income 22 23 22 23 Market price, Cost plus margin, Mutually agreed
prices as stipulated in the agreements

Service fee expenses 10 9 8 9  Market price, Mutually agreed prices as

stipulated in the agreements
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Cost of services 15 14 9 14 Market price, Mutually agreed prices as

stipulated in the agreements

Purchase of equipment 2 4 2 4 Market price EEm

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balances of accounts between the Company and those related companies are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

Trade and other receivables - related parties (Note 9)

Subsidiaries - - 5,659 1,938
Related companies (Common shareholders and/or directors) 6,714 7,017 4,964 8,860
Total trade and other receivables - related parties 6,714 7,017 10,623 10,798

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 16)

Parent company 629 4,307 629 4,307
Related companies (Common shareholders and/or directors) 6,891 4,213 3,917 3,973
Total trade and other payables - related parties 7,620 8,620 4,546 8,280
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Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries had employee benefit expenses payable

to their directors and management as below.

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

Short-term employee benefits 20.3 20.1 20.3 20.1
Post-employment benefits 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.3
Share-based payment 0.3 0.7 0.3 0.7
Total 20.9 21.2 20.9 21.1

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated
financial statements

2017 2016

Separate
financial statements

2017 2016

Cash 133 142 103 112
Bank deposits 110,882 100,351 84,910 92,884
Total 111,015 100,493 85,013 92,996

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits carried interests between 0.10 and 1.10 percent per annum (2016: between 0.10 and

1.10 percent per annum).

Short-term investments

8.1 As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, short-term investments consisted of the following:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated/Separate financial statements

2017 2016
Short-term investments in trading securities (Note 8.2) - 39,935
Bill of exchange 14,893 -
Fixed deposits with financial institution 93,000 -
Total short-term investments 107,893 39,935

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had investment in bill of exchange which carried interest at 4.6 percent per annum and
due for redemption within February 2018, and investment in 6 months and 12 months fixed deposits which carried interest between

0.9 and 1.4 percent per annum.
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8.2 As at 31 December 2016, the Company had short-term investments in trading securities are summarised below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated/Separate financial statements

Cost Fair value
Short-term investments in Fixed Income Fund 40,000 39,935
Less: Loss on change in value (65)
Total short-term investments in trading securities 39,935

Movements of short-term investments in trading securities for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are summarised

below.
Unit : Thousand Baht
Consolidated/Separate financial statements
2017 2016

Balance as at 1 January 39,935 60,045
Purchases - 40,000
Sales during the period - at cost

Proceeds from sales (40,064) (60,644)

Gain on sales 64 644
Total (40,000) (60,000)
Add: Gain (loss) on change in value 65 (110)
Balance as at 31 December - 39,936
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9. Trade and other receivables

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

Trade receivables - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 3,271 3,894 3,532 3,894
Past due
Up to 3 months 1,764 1,616 1,764 1,616
n Total trade receivables - related parties 5,035 5,510 5,296 5,610

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

e Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 21,772 37,756 17,305 32,837
g Past due
E Up to 3 months 4,669 3,325 4,373 2,569
= 3 - 6 months 643 - 643 -
- 6 - 12 months 826 1,052 826 -
E Total trade receivables - unrelated parties 27,910 42,133 23,147 35,406
: Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (772) - (772) -
; Total trade receivables - unrelated parties 27,138 42,133 22,375 35,406
S Total trade receivables - net 32,173 47,643 27,671 40,916

Other receivables

Other receivables - related parties - - 3,495 321
Other receivables - unrelated parties 1,293 700 1,293 700
Accrued income - related parties 1,625 1,489 1,678 4,949
Accrued income - unrelated parties 149475 131,240 147,029 130,197
Prepaid expense - related parties 154 18 154 18
Prepaid expense - unrelated parties 15,262 10,884 8,195 5,332
Total other receivables 167,709 144,331 161,844 141,617
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (10,000) - (10,000) -
Total other receivables - net 157,709 144,331 151,844 141,617
Total trade and other receivables - net 189,882 191,974 179,515 182,433
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10. Restricted banks deposits
As at 31 December 2017, the Company pledged fixed deposits at banks of approximately Baht 14.2 million (2016: Baht 17.2 million)
with three banks to secure bank overdrafts and letter of guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Company in respect of

the purchase of goods and services as required in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

11. Investment in associated company

11.1 Details of associates:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated Separate
Percentage of financial statements financial statements
Company’s name Nattfre of . ColntiY ‘.)f shareholding Carrying amount based on = Carrying amount based on
business incorporation :
equity method cost method
2017 (%) 2016 (%) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Abiks Development Property Thai 20 20 31,587 31,401 30,000 30,000
Co., Ltd. Development

11.2 Share of comprehensive income and dividend received

During the years, the Company has recognised its share of profit from investment in associated company in the consolidated

financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial statements as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Share of profit from investment in Dividend received

Company’s name associate during the year during the year

Abiks Development Co., Ltd. 185 135 - -

11.3 Summarised financial information about material associate

Summarised information about financial position

Unit : Thousand Baht

Abiks Development Co., Ltd.

2017 2016
Current assets 41,204 40,334
Non-current assets 116,864 116,993
Current liabilities (134) (321)
Net assets 157,934 157,006
Shareholding percentage 20% 20%
Share of net assets 31,687 31,401
Elimination entries - -
Carrying amounts of associate based on equity method 31,587 31,401
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Summarised information about comprehensive income

Unit : Thousand Baht

For the years ended 31 December

2017 2016
Revenue 1,889 1,945
Profit 988 676

12. Investment in subsidiaries

Details of investment in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

percentage

Paid-up capital

Company’s name

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 1,000 1,000 99.99 99.99 1,000 1,000 - -
BOL Digital Co., Ltd. 15,000 - 99.99 - 15,000 - - -
16,000 1,000 - -

On 10 November 2016, the Company’s Board of Director’s Meeting No. 4/2016 passed a resolution to approve the establishment
of a new subsidiary name “BOL Digital Co., Ltd.” with registered share capital of Baht 5 million in which the Company holds
99.99 percent interest. The subsidiary is principally engaged in providing specialised social business platform that connects and
matches businesses to enhance business opportunity for SMEs and large enterprises domestically and internationally. Moreover, the
platform will connect with financial institutions as a funding channel for SMEs seeking to raise their capital. The Company
registered the establishment of such new subsidiary with the Ministry of Commerce on 5 January 2017.

On 8 August 2017, the Company’s Board of Director’s Meeting No. 3/2017 passed a resolution to approve an increase in the
registered share capital of BOL Digital Company Limited (“the subsidiary”) from Baht 5 million (500,000 ordinary shares of
Baht 10) to Baht 15 million (1,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10) through the issuance of 1,000,000 new ordinary shares of
Baht 10 each and the Company holds 99.99 percent shareholding interest in BOL Digital Company Limited. The subsidiary

registered the share capital increase with the Ministry of Commerce on 8 September 2017.
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13. Other long-term investment

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated/Separate financial statements

Paid up Shareholding
share capital percentage

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Company’s name Business Relation Cost value Dividend received

National Credit Credit information Direct

Bureau Co., Ltd. provider holding 250,000 250,000 12.25 12256 27,864 27,864 19,600 18,681
Ecart Studio Designing, Direct

Co., Ltd. developing, holding

consulting for

Web- Based

Applications 12,942 11,765 13.64 15.00 52,941 52941 - -
Peer Power Fintech business Direct
Co., Ltd. holding 9,440 - 10.00 - 11,750 - - -

92,555 80,805 19,600 18,681

a) On 8 August 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors Meeting No.3/2017 passed a resolution to approve an investment in 10
percent of shareholding in Peer Power Company Limited. This investment is anticipated to support the Company’s business
expansion in Fintech business in the future and it is a long-term investment.

Subsequently on 7 September 2017, the Company entered into the investment agreement with the existing shareholders of that
company to purchase 140,000 newly issued ordinary shares, totaling Baht 11.75 million. On 21 September 2017, the Company
fully paid the share subscription.

b) On 10 October 2017, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. had passed a resolution

to approve an increase in the registered share capital from Baht 11.76 million (1,176,473 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to
Baht 12.58 million (1,258,263 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) through the issuance of 81,790 new ordinary shares of Baht
10 each. Subsequently on 17 November 2017, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of Ecart Studio Co., Ltd.
had passed a resolution to approve an increase in the registered share capital from Baht 12.58 million to Baht 12.94 million
(1,294,223 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) through the issuance of 35,960 new ordinary shares of Baht 10 each. However,
the Company did not make additional investment in the ordinary shares of such company which resulted in the decrease in
percentage of shareholding in Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. from 15.00 percent to 13.64 percent.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company has carrying amounts based on cost method of investment in Ecart Studio Co., Ltd.
amounting to Baht 53 million, which is higher than the proportion of the Company’s holding in such company of Baht
6 million. The Company’s management considered that this company is in the early stage and the recoverable amount is higher
than the carrying amount. Therefore, the Company had not recorded allowance for impairment of investment in Ecart Studio
Co., Ltd.
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14. Building improvement and equipment

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements

Building Office Computer and Vehicle Assets under
improvement equipment equipment installation

Cost:

1 January 2016 20,376 10,312 98,548 14,077 2,626 145,939

Additions - 403 5,668 4,284 631 10,986

Disposals - (6) (553) (3,720) (92) (4,371)

Transfer in (out) - 289 2,634 - (2,823) -
n 31 December 2016 20,376 10,998 106,197 14,641 342 152,554

Additions 231 771 5,636 - 3,078 9,716

o Disposals - (497) (14,755) - - (15,252)

Transfer in (out) - 3,420 - - (3,420) -
g 31 December 2017 20,607 14,692 97,078 14,641 - 147,018
E Accumulated depreciation:
E 1 January 2016 18,458 8,297 86,537 11,078 - 124,370
E Depreciation for the year 961 818 7,409 2,117 - 11,305
: Depreciation on disposals - (7) (553) (3,719) - (4,279)
: 31 December 2016 19,419 9,108 93,393 9,476 - 131,396
; Depreciation for the year 676 1,238 7,950 1,634 - 11,498
2 Depreciation on disposals - (450) (14,750) - - (15,200)

31 December 2017 20,095 9,896 86,593 11,110 - 127,694

Net book value:

31 December 2016 957 1,890 12,804 5,165 342 21,158

31 December 2017 512 4,796 10,485 3,631 - 19,324

Depreciation for the year

2016 (Baht 7.4 million included in services cost, and the remaining balance in administrative expenses) 11,305

2017 (Baht 8.0 million included in services cost, and the remaining balance in administrative expenses) 11,498
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Unit : Thousand Baht

Separate financial statements

Building Office Computer and Vehicle Assets under

improvement equipment equipment installation
Cost:
1 January 2016 20,303 10,238 97,052 14,077 2,626 144,296
Additions - 341 5,581 4,284 631 10,837
Disposals - (133) (1,994) (3,720) (92) (5,939)
Transfer in (out) - 289 2,634 - (2,823) -
31 December 2016 20,303 10,735 103,173 14,641 342 149,194
Additions 231 695 4,948 - 3,078 8,952
Disposals - (496) (14,747) - - (15,243)
Transfer in (out) - 3,420 - - (3,420) -
31 December 2017 20,534 14,354 93,374 14,641 - 142,903 °
Accumulated depreciation: E
1 January 2016 18,385 8,223 85,041 11,078 - 122,727 Z
Depreciation for the year 961 807 7,360 2,117 - 11,245 .
Depreciation on disposals - (111) (1,923) (3,719) - (5,753) E
31 December 2016 19,346 8,919 90,478 9,476 - 128,219 2
Depreciation for the year 676 1,207 7,711 1,634 - 11,228 ;
Depreciation on disposals - (450) (14,747) - - (15,197) g
31 December 2017 20,022 9,676 83,442 11,110 - 124,250
Net book value: —
31 December 2016 957 1,816 12,695 5,165 342 20,975
31 December 2017 512 4,678 9,932 3,631 - 18,653 =
Depreciation for the year
2016 (Baht 7.4 million included in services cost, and the remaining balance in administrative expenses) 11,245
2017 (Baht 7.7 million included in services cost, and the remaining balance in administrative expenses) 11,228

As at 31 December 2017, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount
before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 163.12 million (separate financial

statements: Baht 162.99 million) (2016: Baht 146.91 million, separate financial statements: Baht 146.91 million).
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15. Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is presented below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

Computer Software under Computer Software under

software development software development

31 December 2017

Cost 121,152 4,508 125,660 115,725 97 115,822
Less: Accumulated amortisation (87,386) - (87,386) (85,564) - (85,564)
Net book value 33,766 4,508 38,274 30,161 97 30,258
31 December 2016

Cost 109,304 9,486 118,790 103,946 9,486 113,432
Transfers in/(out) 9,389 (9,389) - 9,389 (9,389) -
Less: Accumulated amortisation (73,458) - (73,458) (72,921) - (72,921)
Net book value 45,235 97 45,332 40414 97 40,511

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2017 and 2016 is presented below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

Net book value at beginning of year 45,332 52,486 40,511 52,447
Acquisition of computer software 2,459 3,775 2,390 3,658
Acquisition of computer software under development 4411 2,212 - 2,212
Sales of computer software - net book value - - - (5,110)
Amortisation charged for the year (13,928) (13,141) (12,643) (12,696)
Net book value at end of year 38,274 45,332 30,258 40,611
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16. Trade and other payables

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade payables - related parties 496 125 228 125
Trade payables - unrelated parties 4,016 4,160 1,808 3,416
Accrued cost - related parties 3,293 3,975 293 3,975
Accrued cost - unrelated parties 16,499 17,023 13,432 13,012
Accrued expenses - related parties 539 575 487 335
Accrued expenses - unrelated parties 4,650 4,089 3,993 3,937
Other payables - related parties 2,183 2,019 1,598 2,019
Other payables - unrelated parties 4,393 1,641 3,786 1,406
Deferred income - related parties 1,009 1,826 1,940 1,826
Deferred income - unrelated parties 66,365 77,243 59,766 71,295
Total trade and other payables 103,443 112,676 87,331 101,346 é
g
17. Short-term provision 2
z
Unit : Thousand Baht :
Provision for penalty delay g
1 January 2016 12,568 =
Increase during the year 12,962
Utilised (2,365) [
31 December 2016 23,165
Increase during the year 1,835 "
31 December 2017 25,000
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18. Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to employees after they retire, was as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year 9,495 9,002 9,364 9,002
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 1,506 1,090 1,335 961
Interest cost 232 347 228 345

Included in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial (gain) loss arising from

Demographic assumptions changes 239 (1,946) 234 (1,946)
Financial assumptions changes - 946 - 946
Experience adjustments - 448 - 448
Benefits paid during the year - (392) - (392)
Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year 11,472 9,495 11,161 9,364

Line items in profit or loss under which long-term employee benefit expenses are recognised are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated
financial statements

Separate
financial statements

2017

Cost of services 387 559 387 559
Administrative expenses 1,351 878 1,176 747
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 1,738 1,437 1,563 1,306
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As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries expected not to pay the long- term employee benefits during the next
year. (2016: Baht 0.4 million, separate financial statements: Baht 0.4 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee benefit of the Company and
its subsidiaries is 12 years (Separate financial statements: 12 years) (2016: 12 years, separate financial statements: 12 years).

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below.

Unit : Percent per annum

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016

Discount rate 2.44 2.44 2.44 2.44
Salary increase rate 3.5-6.0 3.5-6.0 3.6 -6.0 3.56-6.0
Turnover rate (depending on age) 0-25.0 0-250 0-25.0 0-250

The results of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long-term employee benefit

obligation as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are summarised below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

As at 31 December 2017

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Liability increase (decrease) Liability increase (decrease)
Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
Discount rate (1,089) 1,251 (1,061) 1,217
Salary increase rate 1,180 (1,337) 1,150 (1,301)

Unit : Thousand Baht

As at 31 December 2016
Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

Liability increase (decrease) Liability increase (decrease)

Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
Discount rate (992) 1,146 (969) 1,117
Salary increase rate 1,115 (987) 1,088 (964)
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19.

210

Share capital and warrants

On 27 March 2014, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders passed a resolution to approve the issuance of warrants of

not exceeding 38,500,000 units or 5 percent of paid-up capital to the directors and/or employees of the Company (ESOP Scheme)

at free-of- charge. However, no one received more than 5 percent of allotted the ESOP warrants. The warrants are exercisable

in a ratio of 1 warrant to 1 new ordinary share and the exercise price is Baht 1.75 per share. The Annual General Meeting of the

shareholders approved the increase in the Company’s registered share capital of Baht 3,850,000 from Baht 78,750,000 (787,500,000

ordinary shares of Baht 0.1 each) to Baht 82,600,000 (826,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.1 each) to reserve for the exercise

of the warrants of ESOP Scheme.

On 9 April 2014, the Company registered such share capital with the Ministry of Commerce, resulting in share capital increase

to Baht 82,600,000.

On 19 May 2014, the Company allocated and issued 38,500,000 warrants to the directors and/or employees of the Company at

free-of-charge. The exercise period is within 4 years, commencing on the allocation date. The exercise ratio is 1 warrant per 1

new ordinary share, and the exercise price is Baht 1.75 per share. The first exercise date is 31 May 2015 and the following

exercise dates fall on the last working days of May and November. The last exercise date is 30 November 2017.

Warrant holders may exercise their warrants under the following conditions.

e Not exceeding 30 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holder are exercisable after 12 months but not later than
24 months after the allotted date.

e Additional 30 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holders are exercisable after 24 months but not later than
36 months after the allotted date.

e Additional 40 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holders are exercisable after 36 months from the allotted date
until the warrants expire.

Any remaining unexercised warrants of each exercise period can be carried forward to the subsequent exercise periods throughout

the term of the warrants.

However, the exercise price and/or ratio may be adjusted according to the stipulated right adjustment conditions. If directors or

employees of the Company resign, are removed from their position, or are otherwise no longer directors or employees of the

Company, the Company can re-allot the warrants to other directors and employees of the Company.

The estimated fair value of each share option granted is Baht 0.18 - 0.29, which was calculated by applying the Black-Scholes-

Merton formula. The model inputs were the share price at price determination date of Baht 1.56 and Baht 1.70, exercise price of

Baht 1.75, expected volatility of 30.61% - 43.33%, expected dividend yield of 5.79%, contractual life of 1 - 4 years, and

a risk-free interest rate of 2.14% - 2.80% per annum.
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Movements in the issued and paid-up ordinary share during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are summarised as

below.

Paid-up share capital Premium on ordinary shares

NUmBETeE Premium from Adjustment of Registration
Description g Amount exercise of capital reserve Total dlie witdh i
P (Thousand (Thousand warrants for share-based (Thousand Ministry of
shares) Baht) (Thousand payment transaction Baht) CEnETES
Baht) (Thousand Baht)
1 January 2016 793,993 79,399 87,864 1,004 88,868
Exercise of warrants
ESOP No. 3 1,237 124 2,040 188 2,228 6 June 2016
31 December 2016 795,230 79,623 89,904 1,192 91,096
Exercise of warrants
ESOP No. 5 684 68 1,129 115 1,244 8 June 2017
Exercise of warrants
ESOP No. 6 24,592 2,459 40,576 6,365 46,931 7 December 2017
31 December 2017 820,506 82,050 131,609 7,662 139,271

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company recorded expenses of Baht 0.67 million (2016: Baht 1.7 million)
related to the ESOP scheme as personnel expenses, together with a corresponding increase in “Capital reserve for share-based
payment transactions” in the shareholder’s’ equity.

Presented below is a summary of movements in the number of the Company’s warrants.

Unit : Thousand Units

2017 2016

Warrants at the beginning of year 30,770 32,007
Less: Warrants exercised during the year (25,276) (1,237)

Number of expired warrant (5,494) -
Warrants at the end of year - 30,770

20. Statutory reserve
Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a statutory
reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches
10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present, the statutory reserve

has fully been set aside.
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21. Service income

Service income of the Company and its subsidiaries classified by nature of services are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Service income from providing business information by
online computer systems 181,300 178,576 184,485 184,270
Service income from providing/ utilising
software under the BOI investment promotion privilege 72,191 62,593 72,191 62,5693
Other service income 160,735 136,982 97,670 81,815
Total service income 414,226 378,151 354,346 328,678

22. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Costs of database management system 121,060 89,720 86,369 58,378
Cost of projects 33,271 22,009 33,271 22,009
Salaries and wages and other employee benefits 96,219 94,443 86,893 89,697
Directors’ remuneration and consultant fee 13,050 13,239 13,050 13,239
Depreciation 11,498 11,305 11,228 11,215
Amortisation expenses 13,928 13,141 12,643 12,696
Rental expenses from operating lease agreements 8,623 4,707 7,747 4,707
Marketing expenses 7,630 4,277 4,079 4,015
Electricity charges 4,587 4,607 4,587 4,607

23. Corporate income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are made up as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 13,193 8,956 10,971 6,428
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary

differences (391) 52 (385) 9
Income tax expense reported in the profit or loss 12,802 9,008 10,586 6,437
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The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Deferred tax relating to actuarial gain (loss) (48) 110 (47) 110

The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

Accounting profit before tax 89,416 81,697 82,395 69,442
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by applicable tax rate 17,883 16,319 16,479 13,888
Effects of:

Promotional privileges (Note 25) (5,171) (6,465) (5,171) (6,465)

Utilisation of tax loss carried forward - (59) - -

Income not subject to tax (3,920) (3,736) (3,920) (3,736)

Add back expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4,001 3,259 3,986 3,396

Additional expense deductions allowed (723) (543) (673) (673)

Others 732 233 (115) 27
Total (5,081) (7,311) (5,893) (7,451)
Income tax expenses reported in the profit or loss 12,802 9,008 10,686 6,437

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Unit : Thousand Baht

Statement of financial position
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for share reduction of investment 4,003 4,003 4,003 4,003
Allowance for doubtful accounts 154 - 154 -
Accumulated amortisation - Computer software 96 288 96 288
Provision for long-term employee benefits 2,376 1,900 2,343 1,873
Total 6,629 6,191 6,596 6,164

o
o
=
m
=
(e]
-
z
-
m
(9}
o
>
-
o
2




2
o
-
<
0
O
w
[
=2
w
o
-4
w
H
o
(-5

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company (excluding
other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company (excluding
other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential
ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Consolidated financial statements

Weighted average number

Profit for the year of ordinary shares

Earnings per share

h2017 ; h2016 ; h2017 ; h2016 ; 2017 2016
(Thousan (Thousan (Thousan (Thousan (Baht) (Baht)
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company 76,614 72,589 797,302 794,699 0.10 0.09
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Warrants - ESOP (2017: Nil)

(2016: 30,770,250 Units) - - 4,699 1,015

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of warrants to

ordinary shares 76,614 72,5689 802,001 795,714 0.10 0.09

Separate financial statements

Weighted average number

Profit for the year of ordinary shares

Earnings per share

2017 2016 2017 2016
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)

2017 2016
(Baht) (Baht)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company 71,809 63,005 797,302 794,699 0.09 0.08
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Warrants - ESOP (2017: Nil)

(2016: 30,770,250 Units) - - 4,699 1,015

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of warrants to

ordinary shares 71,809 63,005 802,001 795,714 0.09 0.08
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25. Promotional privileges
The Company and a subsidiary have been granted promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520 by the

Board of Investment under certain significant conditions. Significant privileges of the Company and the subsidiary are as follows:

BOL Digital Co., Ltd.

Details The Company (the subsidiary)
Certificate No. 2423(7)/2556 60-0193-1-00-2-0
Date 9 October 2013 14 February 2017
1. Promotional privileges for Software Software
2. The significant privileges are:
2.1 Exemption from corporate income tax on net income from 8 years 5 years
promoted operations (commencing as from the date of first (will expire on
earning operating income). Furthermore, accumulated losses 15 December 2022)

incurred during the corporate income tax exemption period,
the Company allowed to utilise the losses as a deduction against
net income for a period of 5 years after the expiry of the tax
exemption period, whether from any one year or from several years.
2.2 Exemption from income tax on dividends paid from the income Granted Granted
of the promoted operations for which corporate income tax is

exempted, throughout the corporate income tax exemption.

2.3 Exemption from import duty on imported machinery for use in Throughout the period Throughout the period
production as approved by the Board. of promoted of promoted
3. Date of first earning operating income 16 December 2014 (effective Not yet utilised

date of the first agreement)

The Company and the subsidiary’s operating revenues for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, dividend between

promoted and non-promoted operations, are summarised below.

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016
Promoted operations 72,191 62,593 72,191 62,593
Non-promoted operations 342,035 315,558 282,155 266,085
Total service income 414,226 378,151 354,346 328,678
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26. Financial information by segment
Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance.
The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in an online and offline information service provider and developer of
financial news and other information services their operations are carried on only in Thailand. Segment performance is measured
based on operating profit or loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements.
As a result, all of the revenues and operating profits as presented in the comprehensive income statements and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned reportable operating segment and geographical area.
Major customers
In 2017 and 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries have no major customer with revenue of 10 percent or more of its
consolidated revenue.

27. Provident fund
The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.
Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is
managed by BBL Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund
rules. The contributions for the year 2017 amounting to approximately Baht 1.9 million (Separate financial statements: Baht 1.8
million) (2016: Baht 2.0 million, separate financial statements: Baht 1.9 million) were recognised as expenses.

28. Dividends

o e [ —
Final dividends for 2015 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 30 March 2016 47.64 0.06
Total dividends paid in 2016 47.64 0.06
Final dividends for 2016 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 30 March 2017 55.67 0.07
Total dividends paid in 2017 55.67 0.07
29. Commitments and contingent liabilities

216

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries have commitments and contingent liabilities other than
these disclosed in other notes to financial statements as follows:

29.1 Service agreements

The Company has entered into agreement with a government enterprise to obtain the right to operate an online business
information service and on 23 April 2012, the Company extended the agreement for 5 years with the government enterprise
(2016 - 2020) to obtain the right to operate an online business information service. The agreement will be terminated in
December 2020. In addition, the Company signed in the memorandum of understanding of the cooperation of business
information service which the term of such memorandum is 15 years (2021 - 2035). The Company has to pay the fee at
the fixed rate of service income or minimum guarantee for per year as specified in the agreements and such memorandum

in order to continue the project.
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During the year 2015, D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary company, entered into an agreement with an overseas
company to obtain the trademark license to provide services to customers. The subsidiary company is liable to pay a fee
as specified in the agreement. The agreement is for the period of 5 years.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries entered into service agreements related to cost of providing services with other
companies.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the future payments under these service agreements are due as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Payable:
In up to 1 year 63.18 75.76 45.75 46.32
In over 1 and up to 5 years 111.37 165.00 77.09 78.97
In over 5 years 191.75 191.75 191.75 191.75

29.2 Capital expenditure agreement

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has outstanding commitments under the agreements for development of the computer
system and has other capital expenditure totaling Baht 9.26 million (2016: Baht 0.08 million).

29.3 License agreements

The Company has entered into an agreement with a related company and an overseas company granting the Company for
the rights to utilise software applications to another related company. Under the agreement, the Company is obliged to pay
a fee at a certain percentage of revenues earned from the use of such service as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement
does not stipulate a definite term.

29.4 Bank guarantees
There were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 36.25 million (2016: Baht 36.32 million) of certain performance bonds

as required in the normal course of business to guarantee contractual performance.

30. Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries had the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value using
different levels of inputs (2017: Nil) as follows:
Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and separate financial statements
Level 2

Assets measured at fair value

Held for trade investments - Fixed Income Fund 39.9

31. Financial instruments

31.1 Financial risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries” financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No.107 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, short-
term investments and investments. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed

is described below.
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Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The Company
and its subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore do not
expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries do not have high concentrations of
credit risk since they have a large customer base and the major customers are almost financial institutes, state enterprises
and government unit. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables and other
receivables as stated in the statement of financial position.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, bank overdrafts and
short-term borrowings. However, since most of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear floating
interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.
Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those
financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing

date if this occurs before the maturity date.

Unit : Million Baht

g Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017
:: Fixed interest rates Floating Non- interest : Effective
P> S : : interest rate
o within 1 year interest rate bearing >
w (% per annum)
[
z
= Financial assets
o Cash and cash equivalent 20.00 79.79 11.22 111.01 0.10 - 1.10
-2
; Short-term investments 107.89 - - 107.89 0.90 - 4.60
2 Trade and other receivables - - 189.88 189.88 -
Deposits at banks with restrictions 14.20 - - 14.20 1.00
142.09 79.79 201.10 422.98
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 103.44 103.44 -
- - 103.44 103.44

Unit : Million Baht
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2016

Effective
interest rate
(% per annum)

Fixed interest rates Floating Non- interest
within 1 year interest rate bearing

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 20.00 53.83 11.18 85.01 0.10 - 1.10
Short-term investments 107.89 - - 107.89 0.90 - 4.60
Trade and other receivables - - 179.52 179.52 -
Deposits at banks with restrictions 14.20 - - 14.20 1.00

142.09 53.83 190.70 386.62
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 87.33 87.33 -

- - 87.33 87.33
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Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2016
Effective
interest rate
(% per annum)

Fixed interest rates Floating Non- interest
within 1 year interest rate bearing

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 60.50 28.24 11.75 100.49 0.10 - 1.10
Short-term investments - - 39.94 39.94 -
Trade and other receivables - - 191.97 191.97 -
Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - 17.20 1.00
77.70 28.24 243.66 349.60
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 112.68 112.68 -
- - 112.68 112.68
Unit : Million Baht =
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2016 2
Fixed interest rates Floating Non- interest : s ;
within 1 year interest rate bearing (;:;eitn:::l) 2
Financial assets §
Cash and cash equivalent 60.50 20.78 11.72 93.00 0.10 - 1.10 2
Short-term investments - - 39.94 39.94 - ;
Trade and other receivables - - 182.43 182.43 - g
Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - 17.20 1.00
77.70 20.78 234.09 332.57 . m
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 101.35 101.35 - [ |

- - 101.35 101.35
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Foreign currency risk
The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing or rendering services

transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company and its subsidiaries have not entered into any contract
in order to protect such foreign currency risk.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below:

Consolidated financial statements

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Foreign currency

(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million)
US dollar 0.62 0.35 0.17 0.15 32.6809 35.8307

Separated financial statements
Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Foreign currency

(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million)
US dollar 0.02 0.03 - 0.02 32.6809 35.8307

31.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying interest at
rates closed to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented

in statement of financial position.

32. Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital structure in order to support
its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.37:1 (2016: 0.43:1)
and the Company’s was 0.34:1 (2016: 0.41:1).

33. Events after the reporting period
On 14 February 2018, the Board of Directors Meeting of the Company No. 1/2018 passed resolutions approving as follows:
1) To propose of dividend payment at a rate of Baht 0.08 per share from the net profit of 2017, totaling of Baht 65.64 million.
The Company will propose these matters for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.
2) To approve the establishment of 2 new subsidiaries with registered share capital of Baht 50 million and Baht 10 million in
which the Company will hold 100 percent interest of the subsidiaries. The subsidiaries are principally engaged in providing

information and system service provider to enhance business decision in Asia.

34. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 14 February 2018.
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